
PLANNING COMMISSION AGENDA 

September 12, 2013 

7 p.m. Regular Meeting   

Newberg Public Safety Building   

       401 E. Third Street 

 
I.  CALL MEETING TO ORDER 
 

II. ROLL CALL 

 

III. PUBLIC COMMENTS  (5 minute maximum per person) 
 1. For items not listed on the agenda 
 

IV. CONSENT CALENDAR (items are considered routine and are not discussed unless requested by the 
commissioners) 

 1. Approval of July 11 and August 8, 2013  Planning Commission Meeting Minutes 
 

V. QUASI-JUDICIAL PUBLIC HEARING  (Continued from August 8 at the point of staff recommendation. Public 
testimony was closed, so no new public testimony will be taken.) 

 

 1. APPLICANT: Del Boca Vista, LLC 

  REQUEST: Approval of a 44 lot subdivision preliminary plat, to be called Terra Estates 

  LOCATION: 3805 Terrace Drive 

  TAX LOT: 3207-00500 

  FILE NO.: SUB2-12-003 ORDER NO.: 2013-13 

  CRITERIA: 15.235.060(A) 
 

VI. LEGISLATIVE PUBLIC HEARINGS (complete registration form to give testimony - 5 minute maximum per 
person, unless otherwise set by majority motion of the Planning Commission)  

   

 1. APPLICANT: Oregon Dept. of Transportation 

  REQUEST: Consider amending the Newberg Transportation System Plan to reflect the Phase 1  
  alignment of the Newberg Dundee Bypass project.   

  FILE NO.: CPTA4-13-001 RESOLUTION NO.: 2013-301 

   

 2. APPLICANT: City of Newberg 

  REQUEST: Consider a proposal to establish a Historic Preservation Commission. 

  FILE NO.: DCA-13-001 RESOLUTION NO.: 2013-300 

 

VII. ITEMS FROM STAFF 
 1. Update on Council items 
 2. Other reports, letters, or correspondence 
 3. Next Planning Commission Meeting: October 10, 2013 
 

VIII. ITEMS FROM COMMISSIONERS 
 

IX. ADJOURN  

 

FOR QUESTIONS PLEASE STOP BY, OR CALL 503-537-1240, PLANNING & BUILDING DEPT. - P.O. BOX 970 - 414 E. FIRST 

STREET   

 
ACCOMMODATION OF PHYSICAL IMPAIRMENTS: 

In order to accommodate persons with physical impairments, please notify the City Recorder’s office of any special physical accommodations 

you may need as far in advance of the meeting as possible and no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  To request these arrangements, 

please contact the city recorder at (503) 537-1283. For TTY services please dial 711. 
 

 
1 of 183



 

  

City of Newberg: Planning Commission Minutes (July, 11, 2013)  Page 1 of 3 

PLANNING COMMISSION MINUTES 

July 11, 2013 

7:00 p.m. Regular Meeting 

Newberg Public Safety Building 

401 E. Third Street 

 
I.  CALL MEETING TO ORDER 

 

Chair Cathy Stuhr called the meeting to order at 7:00 PM. 

 

OATH OF OFFICE 

 

Mayor Bob Andrews administered Commissioner Matt Fortner’s Oath of Office. 

 

II. ROLL CALL 

 

Members Present: Cathy Stuhr, Chair Gary Bliss Jason Dale 

 Allyn Edwards Matt Fortner Philip Smith  

 Art Smith, Vice Chair Mayor Bob Andrews (Ex-officio) 

 

Members Absent:  Antonio Saavedra, Student Planning Commissioner (excused) 

 

Staff Present: Barton Brierley, Planning & Building Director 

 Steve Olson, Associate Planner DawnKaren Bevill, Minutes Recorder 

 

III. CONSENT CALENDAR  

 

Approval of June 13, 2013, Planning Commission Meeting Minutes. 

 

MOTION:  Art Smith/Jason Dale to approve the Consent Calendar including the planning commission 

minutes for June 13, 2013.  Motion carried (7 Yes/0 No). 

 

IV. PUBLIC COMMENTS 

 

Chair Stuhr opened and closed the public comments, as there was no one to comment. 

 

V. QUASI-JUDICIAL PUBLIC HEARINGS 

 

1. APPLICANT:      Del Boca Vista, LLC 

REQUEST:  Approval of a 44 lot subdivision preliminary plat, to be called Terra Estates 

LOCATION:  3805 Terrace Drive 

TAX LOT: 3207-00500 

FILE NO.:  SUB2-12-003 ORDER NO.:  2013-13 

CRITERIA: 15.235.060(A) 

 

Chair Stuhr stated that the first hearing on the agenda was for a subdivision called Terra Estates, that the 

developer was Del Boca Vista LLC, and that the PC order number was 2013-13. Mr. Barton Brierley announced 

the applicant has requested a continuance to the August 8, 2013, planning commission meeting and will extend 

the 120 day deadline for one month. Chair Stuhr asked the planning commission for a vote on not opening the 

hearing and just continuing it to the next meeting. The planning commission took a consensus voice vote and 

 
2 of 183



 

  

City of Newberg: Planning Commission Minutes (July, 11, 2013)  Page 2 of 3 

unanimously agreed to not open the hearing and just continue it until the August 8, 2013, planning commission 

meeting. 

2.         APPLICANT:     Argyle Winery 

REQUEST: Approval of a conditional use permit/design review to change the use of an 

existing site and allow a winery in the former Suntron building. 

LOCATION:  800 N. Brutscher Street 

TAX LOT: 3216-2009 

FILE NO.: CUP-13-002/DR1-13-008 ORDER NO.: 2013-12 

CRITERIA: 15.220.050, 15.225.060 

 

Chair Stuhr opened the Quasi-Judicial Hearing; read ORS 197.763; and called for abstentions, bias, ex-parte 

contact, or objections to jurisdiction.  None were brought forward. 

 

Mr. Steve Olson, Associate Planner, presented the staff report accompanied by a PowerPoint presentation (see 

official meeting packet for full report).  The city requests the applicant build a pedestrian path either hard or soft 

surfaced across the northern part of the site and grant a public access easement for this path.  If this path is built 

across the northern edge of the former Suntron site, it will enable a continuous path all the way from The Greens 

subdivision to Brutscher Street.  Mr. Olson handed out an update/revision to the staff report. 

 

Chair Stuhr opened the public testimony beginning with proponents. 

 

Mr. Rollin Soles began Argyle Winery in 1986, the first winery approved in Dundee.  They have had a 

wonderful relationship with the City of Dundee and have been successful enough to have outgrown the current 

winery area.  The Suntron building is perfect for the needs of the company as it sits on twelve acres.   Mr. Soles 

is very proud that Argyle wine is served around the world and was one of the first Oregon wines in the White 

House.  Newberg is the gateway to wine country and wineries are one of the future legs of economic stability in 

Yamhill County. 

 

Vice Chair Art Smith asked if there are any expectations of having a tasting room or will the Suntron building 

be used for manufacturing and warehousing alone.  Mr. Soles said they expect it to be primarily manufacturing 

and warehousing. It took 10 years before the tasting room in Dundee received many visitors, but now it is a 

great meeting ground. They don't want to change that.  It may be appropriate to add a tasting room in Newberg 

in the future, so he would never say never. Vice Chair Smith encouraged Mr. Soles to add convenient bike 

parking to the building design. 

 

Chair Stuhr closed public testimony. 

 

MOTION:    Philip Smith/Art Smith to adopt Planning Commission Order No. 2013-12, approving the 

requested conditional use permit with the attached conditions as modified by the memo dated July 11, 2013. 

Motion carried (7 Yes/0 No). 

 

VI. ITEMS FROM STAFF 

 

1. Update on Council items 

 

Mr. Brierley reported the city council will have a work session regarding the Zoning Use Table on July 15, 

2013, with the anticipated hearing on August 19, 2013.  The south industrial urban growth boundary amendment 

was tentatively approved by the Yamhill County Commissioners, anticipating the adoption of the written 

decision next week. 

 

 
3 of 183



 

  

City of Newberg: Planning Commission Minutes (July, 11, 2013)  Page 3 of 3 

2. Other reports, letters, or correspondence 

 

Antonio Saavedra has been successful in recruiting a replacement student commissioner.  Mayor Andrews will 

probably be appointing Sulamita Barbiyeru at the August 19, 2013, city council meeting. 

 

3. The next planning commission meeting is scheduled for Thursday, August 8, 2013. 

 

VIII. ITEMS FROM COMMISSIONERS 

 

Chair Stuhr welcomed Commissioner Matt Fortner to the planning commission.  Commissioner Fortner stated 

he is actively involved with Boy Scouts, served in the Air Force for 16 years, and has wanted to volunteer in the 

community for quite some time. 

 

Chair Stuhr stated she will be unable to attend the September 12, 2013, planning commission meeting. 

 

IX. ADJOURN  

 

Chair Stuhr adjourned the meeting at 7:55 PM. 

 

Approved by the Planning Commission on this 8
th

 day of August, 2013. 

 

AYES: NO: ABSENT: ABSTAIN: 

 

________________________________ _____________________________________ 
Planning Recording Secretary Planning Commission Chair 

 

 
4 of 183



 

 
City of Newberg: Planning Commission Minutes (August 8, 2013) Page 1 of 10 

CITY OF NEWBERG PLANNING COMMISSION MINUTES 

MONDAY, AUGUST 8, 2013 

7:00 P.M. MEETING 

PUBLIC SAFETY BUILDING TRAINING ROOM (401 EAST THIRD STREET) 

 

I. CALL MEETING TO ORDER 

 

Chair Cathy Stuhr called the meeting to order at 7:00PM 

 

II. ROLL CALL 

 

Members Present: Cathy Stuhr, Chair Jason Dale Art Smith  

 Antonia Saavedra, Student PC Philip Smith Gary Bliss  

    

Members Absent: Allyn Edwards (Excused)  Mayor Bob Andrews (Ex-officio) 

 

Staff Present: Barton Brierley, Planning and Building Director  

 Jessica Nunley, Assistant Planner Mandy Dillman, Minutes Recorder 

 

III. CONSENT CALENDAR 

a. Approval of July 11, 2013, Planning Commission Meeting Minutes. 

 

MOTION:    P. Smith/Dale approving the July 11, 2013, Planning Commission Meeting Minutes.  

 

Chair Cathy Stuhr recalled she opened the hearing for the Del Boca Vista Terra Estates application.   Mr. 

Barton Brierley, Planning and Building Director, said they did not open the public testimony.  Chair Stuhr asked 

to have that reviewed to address that question. 

 

VOTE:    P Smith/Dale approving the July 11, 2013, Planning Commission Meeting Minutes. Motion 

carried (6 Yes/0 No/1 Absent [Edwards]). 

 

IV. PUBLIC COMMENTS 

 

Chair Stuhr opened and closed public comment as there was no one to testify.  

 

V. QUASI-JUDICIAL PUBLIC HEARINGS (complete registration form to give testimony - 5 minute 

maximum per person except for principals, unless otherwise set by majority motion of the Planning 

Commission). No new public hearings after 10 p.m. except by majority vote of the Planning 

Commissioners. 

 

APPLICANT: Del Boca Vista, LLC 

REQUEST: Approval of a 44 lot subdivision preliminary plat, to be called Terra Estates 

LOCATION: 3805 Terrace Drive 

TAX LOT: 3207-00500 

FILE NO.: SUB2-12-003    ORDER NO.: 2013-13 

CRITERIA: 15.235.060(A) 

 

Chair Stuhr read the procedure for quasi-judicial public hearings.  She called for conflicts of interest; none 

stated.  Commissioners Bliss, Stuhr, and Philip Smith indicated they had seen the site but did not have contact 

with neighbors. 

 

 
5 of 183



 

 
City of Newberg: Planning Commission Minutes (August 8, 2013) Page 2 of 10 

Ms. Jessica Nunley, assistant planner, gave the staff report accompanied by a PowerPoint presentation (see 

official meeting packet for full report) and recommended adoption of Order No. 2013-13.  

 

Commissioner Gary Bliss asked what elevation the water pressure was designed for.  Staff replied it was for 

approximately 300 feet.  Commissioner Bliss wondered if lot 19 was relegated to a one story, because its noted 

elevation is 288 feet.  Mr. Brierley explained it is not limited; however, if they build a two story home it will 

most likely need a booster for the water pressure.  Commissioner Bliss expressed his concern for lack of data 

and said he cannot make a decision until he has more information.  He also asked about re-naming Camelia 

Road.  He asked if they have reviewed if Morris Street will be extended to the north.  Mr. Brierley explained 

there is a stream corridor to the west, and it could make it a longer block unless the stream corridor is crossed.  

Commissioner Bliss also asked about the developer’s agreement with adjoining neighbors to include CC&R’s 

and if staff would make them follow through.  Mr. Brierley said they received the letter second hand; however 

Planning Commission could make it a condition if the developer agrees.  Commissioner Philip Smith asked 

what the rating for the intersection of College Street and Terrace Drive was.  Chair Stuhr replied it was listed on 

page 207.  Commissioner Art Smith asked for clarification on what is intended for Terrace Drive, which is 

currently a single lane.  Ms. Nunley said the developer would have to do a half street improvement along their 

frontage.  Chair Stuhr had questions about the existence of a stream corridor, if there were any criteria that 

needed addressing if it did exist, and if it would meet everything it needs to.  Ms. Nunley explained there is one 

and it shows in the surveyor’s map, however it does not show on the city’s GIS. One of the conditions is to 

delineate the stream corridor and protect it during construction.   

 

Chair Stuhr opened public testimony.  

 

Mr. Marc Willcuts concurred with staff and mentioned he feels the project meets the applicable criteria.  He 

said they met with several neighbors a few weeks ago and changed the plans to meet their concerns.  Having the 

CC&R’s as part of the conditions seemed like a good idea to Mr. Willcuts, however he is concerned if there is 

any delay in the project and he has to sell the property before completion, the CC&R’s may cause issues for 

him.  Commissioner Philip Smith asked for clarification on one of the conditions staff proposed, which was for 

Mr. Willcuts to meet with ODOT (Oregon Department of Transportation), the City of Newberg, and the County 

of Yamhill at the same time and create a plan for the College Street and Terrace Drive intersection.  Mr. 

Willcuts said he contacted ODOT about that intersection and received good information to help solve the 

problem.  Commissioner Bliss asked about the wall that will be put around the storm water pond.  Mr. Eric 

Evans, engineer, explained there will be a wall 4 feet tall and 261.5 feet long surrounding the estates.  

Commissioner Bliss wondered if there would be a fence around the pond on the map.  Mr. Evens mentioned 

Clean Water standards say that have to have a fence with locked gate around the pond.  

 

Discussion commenced on storm drainage.  

 

Mr. Willcuts ended by saying he had a good meeting with the neighbors and feels like it is always better to have 

met neighbors so they can hear each other out before a project begins.   

 

Mr. Mike Hanks addressed the concern of tall grass growing at the intersection of College Street and Terrace 

Drive, which causes visibility issues.  He said the procedure is to contact ODOT, and if they do not get back 

within 48 hours, you contact the district manager if someone feels the district manager is not listening to their 

concerns. 

 

Mr. Mike Cook, realtor representing Terrace Heights over the last three years, explained he is a proponent of 

the project because the land will be developed, and the current developer is listening to the neighbors concerns 

and proposing lots which have bigger homes, two car garages and are nicer looking.  He feels there is a need in 

the city for the types of homes Del Boca will bring and provide entry level homes as well as homes for those 

wanting to downsize.  Mr. Cook mentioned he spoke with a buyer whose home is being built directly next to 

Del Boca and they are very pleased at the changes Mr. Willcuts is making and are not afraid or sorry for the 

 
6 of 183



 

 
City of Newberg: Planning Commission Minutes (August 8, 2013) Page 3 of 10 

types of housing going in next to them.  Larger property lots with more space would be much nicer in the area, 

Mr. Cook thinks; however, it is not realistic due to the expense and narrow market for high end housing in 

Newberg.  In conclusion he said the market these houses are going for is appropriate and that he is thankful Mr. 

Willcuts is the developer and is taking the time to listen to neighbors and make changes for them, and is pleased 

with what they have decided to do.  

 

Mr. Douglas Cushing, attorney, gave some history on the property in question and explained when the zoning 

changed for minimum lot sizes it was not something the owners had requested or knew was happening until 

after it was adopted.  Mr. Cushing and the family he represents feels the developer is making the right choice 

and could essentially put ten more lots on the property if he only met the minimum.  However, he is not and 

they are pleased with Mr. Willcuts decisions.  He also mentioned Morris Street was always planned to continue 

through and connect and another street to the west would ultimately connect as well.  It was mentioned the 

property slopes away from adjacent homes, the requirements are all met, and the city has planned well for the 

development of this property by including it into the Urban Growth Boundary (UGB).  Mr. Cushing concluded 

his testimony by stating the current owners urge the commission to approve.  

 

Mr. Mark Darula expressed his concern for the lack of signage to inform the neighbors of the development.  He 

only learned of this subdivision three weeks ago and it has caught him and his neighbors by surprise.  Mr. 

Darula said the meeting with Mr. Willcuts, Mr. Evans and Mr. Brierley did not cover all the concerns of the 

neighbors.  He feels the development plan does not show any continuity to the current homes surrounding.  

Communication has been limited, there are things at the meeting tonight he has learned that he feels they should 

have been informed of beforehand and he does not feel the planning department is being the liaison they should 

be.  Mr. Darula asked audience members to raise their hands if they felt the same.  He continued to explain the 

changes in the R-1 causes the density of the lots to not follow the continuity of the neighborhood.  Furthermore, 

Mr. Darula is concerned about the lack of parks in the area, with Jaquith being the closest at a mile and a half 

away which he cannot let his children walk to because they must cross a busy street.  There has been a park 

proposed in the upper corner, however there are no intentions of developing it but there are more houses being 

built anyways.  He asked why they are moving forward with high density developments and not making more 

parks.  Next he addressed the issue of the schools in the area.  He mentioned the report states the Newberg 

school district reviewed and saw no conflicts.  Mr. Darula asked what that means and who said that a 44 unit, 

high density housing development would have zero impact on the school.  He showed the commission a letter 

from a school in the Salem Kiezer school district, which is a typical response from a school district to city 

planning when a request like this is made.  It was three pages long about how the proposed subdivision would 

affect the district.  Mr. Darula said this lack of information has made him and his neighbors very upset.  He was 

told that Newberg does not inform school districts until permits are pulled.  Mr. David Beasley, a 

superintendent of Gaston schools, enlightened Mr. Darula on his perspective of how 44 new developments will 

affect the school district.  He said Joan Austin has two empty rooms and Crater Elementary is full, so children 

will need to be removed from Crater Elementary and bussed to Joan Austin Elementary, which is disruptive on 

their community.  Mr. Darula feels if this is were to happen it should be addressed before construction begins.  

He continued by stating the citizens feel the city did not do it’s job correctly in informing the neighborhoods 

since many people he has spoken to had not received notice.  Seventeen formal complaints were sent to the city 

and are in the commissioner’s packets; however, the report says the response from citizens was excellent.  

Furthermore, he asked that the change in the R-1 zoning be further explained in laymen's terms because the 

citizens see it as the city being deceptive.  Over a two day period he walked the neighborhood and had 43 

people sign a petition against the development.  The neighbors got together and came up with nine items they 

would like to see changed.  First they would like the houses to match the continuity of the other houses in the 

area while going by the rules.  Changing from 44 houses to 33 is their second condition and Mr. Darula feels 

that could help match the houses better.  He mentioned he was taken around and shown several houses similar 

to what will be in Del Boca; however one had a three car garage which would never fit in the current purposed 

lots.  Next they are asking for wider frontal spaces to allow for front lawns and to break up the feeling of row 

homes.  Mr. Darula said he was surprised to learn that the city has no control over what size of lots a developer 

creates, but instead only sets a minimum.  He met with the developers on July 16
th

, 2013 to discuss economics 

 
7 of 183



 

 
City of Newberg: Planning Commission Minutes (August 8, 2013) Page 4 of 10 

and was told they could reduce the number of homes but will not and if he did he would have to renegotiate 

with the seller.  Mr. Darula and the citizens feel he should at least consider lowering the amount of homes and 

they believe there is a strong market for the types of homes they are proposing. Additionally they are concerned 

about the danger of the intersection of Terrace Drive and College Street.  Mr. Darula’s wife had an accident 

there resulting in $2,000.00 in damage to their car.  Mowing the grass, adding markings or pavers, will not fix 

the issue with so many new homes adding so much more traffic.  He met with a lawyer who said they would 

have to hire their own lawyer to have something done themselves, and he mentioned the citizens are willing to 

pay for a traffic study if the city will not.  He listed the remaining conditions of the nine, which also included 

adding stop signs at Natalie Road and Morris Street, a formal declaration from the school on how students from 

their development will not effect class size and will be paid for under the current budget and estimated 

increased taxes resulting in this subdivision, confirmation that the park construction north of Crater Elementary 

will begin before permits are issued, the minimum size home be 1,800 square feet, and that a cement fence 

encompassing the development be built.  He concluded with a quote from Mr. Beasley.  Commissioner Philip 

Smith asked what the criteria would be for a cement fence to encompass the development. Mr. Darula replied to 

divide the houses and for safety.  Commissioner Philip Smith repeated his question and wanted to know the 

criteria in the law.  Mr. Darula explained he is a citizen not a lawyer and did not have criteria but the proposal 

offered a wall partially encompassing the development, and they would like to enlarge it to include the whole 

development.  Commissioner Philip Smith explained to Mr. Darula the question is important because they 

cannot take away some people's property rights because other people are angry.  If the developer offers a wall 

they can put it in the plan as a requirement, however the owner is willing to sell the property and the buyer has 

the right to build what they want within the law on their property and the commission cannot take that right 

away except by the law.  Mr. Darula said that is why they need the commissions’ help, so they can better 

understand the process.  Commissioner Art Smith asked if there was any intention to grandfather in properties 

such as this one with the change in R-1.  Mr. Brierley explained the changes apply to all properties no matter 

when it was designated R-1.   

 

Discussion commenced on contacting the school district and it was decided they should have a similar report 

like the Salem Kiezer example Mr. Darula gave and they would be looking into what other cities do as well as 

to why their response, if they received one, was not more detailed.   

  

Commissioner Bliss asked how many citizens did not receive the notice.  Mr. Darula replied there were over 

seven citizens who did not receive the notice.  Commissioner Bliss mentioned the city staff puts a sign in a 

specific location by law to announce developments and Mr. Darula agreed with him.  Commissioner Bliss 

enlightened Mr. Darula that when the R-1 was changed from 7,500 square feet to 5,000 they put notices in the 

paper about meetings and they encourage Newberg residents to be involved.  He explained the fact that he did 

not know they existed speaks that perhaps he is not as attuned to what is going on in the city.  Mr. Darula said 

they know the city is following procedure but it still does not make things very clear.  Chair Stuhr sympathized 

with Mr. Darula’s frustrations and explained things are done in a very public process.  Mr. Darula explained it is 

just their perception.  Chair Stuhr suggested they take their traffic issues to the Traffic Safety Commission 

(TSC), which could address those concerns better.  Commissioner Philip Smith shared that the intersection of 

College Street and Terrace Drive is rated an A, and a B in the afternoon, by ODOT.  He also mentioned they 

could not simply change the corner because it is the county’s property and that Mr. Darula’s suggestions could 

be improved by having solutions that are feasible.  Chair Stuhr mentioned TSC again and suggested Mr. Darula 

ask them for some solutions.  Mr. Antonio Savaadra, student commissioner, was happy to see so many people 

representing the community at the meeting tonight and explained the city officials are not clear on what happens 

on the public end, which is why it is so important for citizens to come to the city meetings and be involved like 

Mr. Darula.  Mr. Darula mentioned he had no qualms with the developers; just the city officials and he wanted 

to correct himself earlier when he mentioned three car garages, which is not in the proposed plan.  

 

Mr. David Reitz was concerned about the number of vehicles the development will add to an already 

problematic area.  The numbers of how many cars will be traveling through the neighborhood did not seem 

correct to him so he went out and did his own research.  With a spreadsheet table from a website specific to 

 
8 of 183



 

 
City of Newberg: Planning Commission Minutes (August 8, 2013) Page 5 of 10 

Yamhill County from 2010 he walked the streets of the current neighborhoods and calculated the number of 

cars the new development will add, coming up with 152 cars total.  He did this by counting number of houses 

on each street and assigned the houses two cars each, an average, and then inputted them into the spreadsheet to 

found the number.  What he did not know is how many trips these 152 cars will be taking each day, but the 

numbers he came up with seemed reasonable.  He mentioned the intersection of College Street and Terrace 

Drive is very dangerous and the addition of vehicles will cause more accidents.  Mr. Reitz went with Mr. 

Willcuts to see similar houses to what the development with build and showed the commission a document Mr. 

Willcuts sent to him, and he hopes that the development will look similar and not like row houses.  Mr. Reitz 

said the document stated the houses would be 1,500 square feet minimum, have lap siding in place of vinyl, 

minimum 2 car garages, front yard sprinklers and irrigation, minimum of 3 exterior house colors, and wood 

trimming on the windows at the front of the houses.  Additionally, Mr. Reitz would like to see stone work on 

the exterior of the houses.  He feels Mr. Willcuts should not be allowed to not meet the negotiations if the 

economy goes bad because they will not be protected as homeowners.  He also asked if they could have 

driveways set up on the outside of each lot to allow for more street parking.  Commissioner Philip Smith asked 

Mr. Reitz if he was satisfied with the developer’s plan.  Mr. Reitz replied he was, however he is concerned 

about Mr. Willcuts removing the conditions if the economy should fail.  Commissioner Jason Dale mentioned 

once they vote on the development he cannot renegotiate.  Chair Stuhr mentioned they cannot add conditions 

that have to do with aesthetics; however working with the developer is a great way to achieve that.  She also 

mentioned that his traffic analysis and thoughts were very helpful; however her numbers show something 

different so they cannot solve the issue but it gives him negotiating room since he has his own numbers.  Mr. 

Reitz mentioned he just wants to make people aware of the problem.   

 

Ms. Nina Boe told the commission her family moved to the neighborhood for specific reasons and is worried 

this development will be recreating what they moved away from.  They want the houses to be varied size lots to 

match the continuity of the rest of the neighborhoods and the Heritage area example shows houses all the same 

size in a row, which is exactly what they do not want.  She also feels the developer did not listen to what they 

wanted and then returned at the second meeting with a list of his suggestions and no one gave a formal answer 

that they would accept his ideas.  She feels they want the neighborhoods to be similar so their new neighbors 

are like them.  

 

Mr. Jason Millaney read a letter from a neighbor who could not attend tonight.  It stated they are not in 

agreement with the design and are asking for a public hearing to discuss how they can keep the neighborhood 

dynamics similar from the old development to the new one.  Mr. Millaney suggested the city start advertising in 

social media ways that would reach more of the city.  He feels no one comes to meeting because they do not 

advertise well enough.  Mr. Millaney stated he will never vote yes for an annexation because Newberg cannot 

regulate how developers build their projects.  He feels Newberg is very lost and needs to step back and look at 

how the city is planned.  Higher density housing has its place, however Mr. Millaney does not feel the edges of 

town is that location.  Chair Stuhr mentioned they are always looking for new ways to reach people other than 

the city website and said she would love to hear more concrete ideas from citizens.  Additionally, she explained 

when they discuss these items it is in a very dull way at a workshop and sometimes it is hard to relate it to the 

people who are living in the situation.  Mr. Saavedra asked if the Planning Commission had a Facebook page to 

help advertise meetings.  Mr. Brierley replied they do not currently have one, however the city is exploring 

using social media.  Mr. Millaney shared Dundee has a Facebook citizens page and someone uploads scanned 

flyers of meetings and city happenings so citizens can share on their pages.  He feels more citizens would see a 

Facebook notice than notices in the Graphic.  Chair Stuhr said they had a committee seven to eight years called 

Newberg’s Future, and asked Mr. Millaney if he thought there was enough community interest to start that 

discussion again.  Mr. Millaney said he could not speak for everyone; however he and his wife would be very 

interested in being involved, but felt it would be worth exploring.  

 

Ms. Connie Farr spoke passionately about the impact on the school and the intersections of Natalie Road and 

Morris Street.  First she explained her family lived on Quail Drive when the Meadows was built and the 

residence were informed there would be no impact on the schools.  Her experience was overcrowded 

 
9 of 183



 

 
City of Newberg: Planning Commission Minutes (August 8, 2013) Page 6 of 10 

classrooms which caused her children, who were all early readers, to be kicked out into separate rooms with 

worksheets while the other children were given the teachers attention.  Ms. Farr thinks this development will 

have a big impact on the schools.  Next she addressed the intersection already is an issue without the extra 44 

homes they will add.  She has two children learning to drive and they have all almost been hit several times by 

people going through the intersection at 40 MPH.  She feels there needs to be stop sign on Natalie Road. 

Additionally she feels something needs to be done at Morris Street and Foothills Road where she has also had 

near misses because of parked cars and untrimmed trees causing sight issues.  She understands stop signs are 

expensive, but feels it is necessary with the housing development.  Mr. Saavedra mentioned it would be a good 

thing to bring up at TSC and Mr. Brierley said they meet the second Monday of each month at 7:00PM.  

 

Mr. Chris Strange reiterated several of the issues other citizens had brought up.  He feels the proposed 

development as it stands now does not provide a safe and healthful community because it will not match the 

continuity of the current neighborhood.  Furthermore, the developer says they agreed to 44 homes, which the 

citizens do not agree with, and is represented by the signatures they have brought tonight.  Mr. Strange shared 

his story of how he worked hard to earn the home he lives in and wants a neighborhood in Del Boca which will 

attract others of the same mind as him; families who believe in working hard to earn what they want and who 

care about their houses.  He was asked by a former council member to ask about the affordable housing code 

and what this does to development, who wrote the code, who benefits from it, and who understands it.  Mr. 

Strange mentioned he does not want their neighborhood to be a good example of a bad example.  As a 

contractor he understands what 1,500 square foot houses look like in a 5,000 square foot lot, and is worried they 

will look like tight, ugly row houses and not match the continuity with only 8 feet of space between houses.  He 

mentioned he is not against development, however he would like to see instead varied property sizes with varied 

house sizes and create buffers by putting a 7,500 square foot lot next to an existing home, then a 6,500 square 

foot lot, then followed by a 5,000 square foot lot.  Mr. Strange mentioned the issue of Natalie Road and Morris 

Street and as a community that is condensing land they will have issues there.  He suggested looking out 

towards St. Paul for land to build on.  There is a lot of land out that direction and Mr. Strange feels it is unfair 

they are being asked to have this type of development when it would be better suited elsewhere in the city.  He 

works in Portland and sees developments trying to squeeze in as many home as possible, which is needed there, 

however he comes home to Newberg because he does not want to live in that type of community.  Mr. Strange 

concluded by stating these are subjective things they need to think about as planning and consider the effect 

squeezing and condensing property does to development.  

 

Mr. Chad Deseranno acknowledged that safety is not this commission’s priority; however even though they are 

not specifically planning for traffic issues, this commission has the ability to control the flood gates.  He 

wondered how many people are affected by these intersections every day currently, and feels a fatal accident 

may happen on Morris Street with the probable increase in traffic.  The views shown of Morris Street tonight 

show no traffic control devices, they spoke about how dangerous Terrace Drive is, so Mr. Deseranno asked 

where the traffic is going to go to avoid Terrace Drive.  His perception is they will travel down Morris Street, 

will not stop at the assumed four way intersection, and then will bottleneck at the bottom.  Mr. Deseranno 

understands the city builds the road to avoid bottlenecking by narrowing the street; however, this allows no 

accident avoidance.  He gave the example of the housing development near the airport which has on street 

parking and by law of probability the more cars on the street, the more likely an accident will happen.  Speed 

bumps or stop signs could help lessen traffic issues, as well as increased lot sizes, which would equal less 

traffic, he feels.  The commission stated the rating is not high enough to warrant intervention, however Mr. 

Deseranno has two friends who have been in accidents because of the lack of traffic control devices to control 

speeding.  He concluded by stating the commission has the power to save a life and he knows no one wants to 

say they could have done something, or TSC could have done something, to save someone when they can make 

a decision to drastically change peoples lives on Morris Street.  Chair Stuhr mentioned the traffic study ratings 

are A-E and relate to queuing, not the level of safety, and fails when it takes longer than 60 seconds to get 

through the light.  

 

 
10 of 183



 

 
City of Newberg: Planning Commission Minutes (August 8, 2013) Page 7 of 10 

Mr. Louis Larson began by saying everyone agrees they want Newberg to be a nice place to live.  Additionally, 

they should be rejoicing in the fact that there is a good deal of willingness between Mr. Willcuts and Mr. Evans 

and the neighbors to figure out issues.  He said they could deny the application because one lot is at 5,000 

square feet and it could be a way to delay the process.  Mr. Larson does not advocate they do that, however it 

exceeds the minimum so they have legal authority to do so if the commission chooses.  The solution, he feels, is 

for the developers and neighbors to work together to compromise on lot size.  It would be easy to knock off a 

few spaces and make the neighborhood everyone is imagining.  He mentioned Edgewood Drive and Burlington 

Drive where one half of the street had more desirable places.  The old plan was to have lots across the street be 

7,500 square feet, however the lots were reduced to 5,000 square feet and now that area is not one of the most 

desirable in Newberg.  Mr. Larson feels the only way to make a community that will work well is to have an 

association to keep up the CC&R’s.  He mentioned the retention pond is an eyesore; the homeowners are 

responsible and it should be addressed if they have it laid out.  He gave an example as to why homeowners 

associations are important and concluded by saying with the expansion of a community it needs to be 

remembered that by not having continuity and variety it is less inviting than everyone wants.  He feels a narrow 

lot with all garage in front is a recipe for downgrade and you only need to drive through certain neighborhoods 

in Newberg to see that.  Mr. Larson feels minor changes can make this development a great addition to the city.  

Commissioner Philip Smith asked if Mr. Larson’s testimony to others in the room is that continuity is important 

and people will get angry if they do not get it; however a compromise between the neighborhood and the 

builders is to have CC&R’s with a homeowners association or the CC&Rs are not worth anything.  Mr. Larson 

said that was correct.  Commissioner Philip Smith explained the PC does not do that with developments; it is 

the citizen’s responsibility to create a homeowners association.  He did mention they can put it in the conditions 

if everyone agrees.  Mr. Larson agreed and repeated he was giving them a way to turn down the developer if 

they so choose, although he is not endorsing they go that route.  Additionally he is convinced the neighbors, the 

commission and the developer want the construction and he encouraged the city to use the tools they have to 

make it happen.  Chair Stuhr corrected Mr. Larson by stating they cannot turn the application down because one 

lot is less than 5,000 square feet.  The code allows the builder to use lot size averaging.     

 

Ms. Lorraine Beracque spoke on Morris Street and Natalie Drive and the dangers of speeding cars.  She said 

whether people are driving cars, motorcycles, skateboards or bicycles, they are going well over 25MPH because 

it is a downgrade and something needs to be done.  She suggested they do something similar to Springbrook 

Road and place stop signs the length of Morris Street.  If they cannot do that, she suggested they put in speed 

bumps and after cars take out their exhaust they will not speed on Morris Street anymore.  The second item she 

spoke on was the issue of traffic and the nearby school.  On school days between 8:00AM and 8:30AM it can 

take up to 15 minutes for her to go four blocks because of families dropping off their children.  The vehicles go 

faster than 25MPH as well.  She mentioned adding another 44 houses and not doing anything is not acceptable 

and suggested at minimum they add a stop sign at Morris Street and Foothills Drive, and eventually they will 

have to consider a stop light.  Additionally there is the issue on Terrace Drive and College Road.  Terrace Drive 

use to punch through onto Bell Road; however they closed it because of the dangerous intersection on that end.  

She said now they are going to add more homes and will be sending them through this intersection which 

already has issues.  She concluded by mentioning the Foothills Drive development and how those small lots are 

now becoming rentals as the first time homeowners are moving into second homes and it is deteriorating the 

neighborhood.  Ms. Beracque said she feels they do not need more of these starter homes.  

 

Ms. Jane Greller began by stating the issue is the density of the land. The state of Oregon has land use 

guidelines and land use standards and chapter 92 speaks to subdivisions and partitioning, and she respectfully 

asks the commission to read both those because those rules are governed by the city’s comprehensive plan.  She 

said there is a plan and it comes down to density and they have spent the last two weeks emailing the director to 

get a formula for density and he has given them numbers.  The Low Density Residential (LDR) is 4.4, the 

Medium Density Residential (MDR) is 9 and the High Density Residential (HDR) they had not figured she 

would use it so she had to figure out the formula on her own.  She mentioned figure 16 and stated it was the first 

time she had seen it and asked who benefitted from that information.  She asked where they get the numbers in 

the redundant email replies the city sent her.  Additionally she asked for the limits so she can figure this out.  

 
11 of 183



 

 
City of Newberg: Planning Commission Minutes (August 8, 2013) Page 8 of 10 

The comprehensive plan is driving what the limits are and her calculations say the density limit is not 4.4, by 

her calculations it is 5.1, and she asked why he is not building to the limits.  Her next issue was with the agenda 

on page 8 which labels the area at MDR; however it also says it is a R1, and it cannot be both.  She asked which 

one is true.   Ms. Nunley said it was a typo she made.  Ms. Greller said she does not know when they make 

typos and it is confusing.  Next she asked if the standards for the comprehensive plan were there until January 

of 2010 or through January of 2010, because she feels it is important that they understand.  Mr. Brierley said it 

was a change made through city council in 2010 and is still in effect.  Ms. Geller asked that they clean up the 

language in the comprehensive plan so it is not so confusing.  She explained it cannot be in place until 2010 

because at that time the density limits were 7,500 square feet and at the end of 2010, and through 2010, that 

density limit was dictated by 5,000 square foot lots.  She asked where the comprehensive plan lives.  Seventeen 

people wrote in and that makes a difference to Ms. Geller.  She mentioned Mr. Willcuts met with two or three 

neighbors and then submitted a letter of agreement.  She believes not all the citizens are in agreement with that 

letter.  The agenda on page 9 for the site info for July 11
th

, 2013 reports the site is 7.9 acres; however in the 

annexation document the traffic impact study says the site is 7.67 acres.  All land is finite and this land is 

growing; Ms. Geller asked who that benefits.  The neighborhood is getting denser and she can feel it.  She also 

asked who posts notification for land use changes.  Chair Stuhr said the applicant does.  Ms. Geller said they 

have affidavits from four citizens that it was not posted on the South boundary, which the code states each side 

of boundary needs to be posted, plus every 600 feet.  She does not drive up the dead end road and otherwise 

would not see the one sign they posted.  When she met with the director on July 16
th

, 2013 she showed him 

what that looked like on her way to the meeting and the affidavit states the first posting was not a new sign it 

was an original sign.  The first sign they saw of a land use notice was on July 24
th

, 2013, which is very 

frustrating.  She is trying to understand the process and can only make decisions based on what the city has 

provided, however she believes if they process this decision in light of their next hearing it will make a lot more 

sense.  This subdivision sets a 4.4 limit on density, and the new MDR is 8.8, which means it has shrunk 50%.  

They are feeling the stress of trying to fit 5.8, which is a little bigger but still too small, into an area that should 

be a 6.6.  The city says it is a target, however even if the words are important, if it feels tight, it is tight.  In 

conclusion she mentioned page 20, and asked whose jurisdiction it is from the curb to the sidewalk.  It feels like 

people are chasing their tails trying to get the weeds cleaned up and something needs to be done about it.  The 

traffic study was done in March when there were no weeds growing, so Ms. Geller suggested it may need to be 

re-done.  She suggested they proof read the reports more closely so as to not make mistakes in the future and 

asked they figure out which side of 2010 they are living on and what the density limit is per their growth.  

Commissioner Philip Smith asked Ms. Geller how dense she thinks it should be.  Ms. Geller replied it is not her 

position to make the rules.  Commissioner Philip Smith said they are on this side of 2010 and the R-1 change 

means there is a 5,000 square foot minimum, which is in place for the whole city, not just this issue.  Ms. Geller 

stated the density limits in place today are in the comprehensive zoning use table.  Commissioner Philip Smith 

agreed, but said the comprehensive plan says LDR means it is an R1.  Ms. Geller asked what the density limit is 

for today and suggested the table needs to be revised.  Chair Stuhr and Commissioner Philip Smith mentioned it 

is being revised currently.  Ms. Geller suggested they send out notices in water bills or other mailings about 

upcoming meeting and also include information about the zoning use table changes.  They are now going to 

average the whole district and all the R-1’s and make the density 4.4 average over the whole district.  Chair 

Stuhr said the table is not the same topic and it is for a different usage.  Ms. Geller restated the code is 6.6 for an 

R-1 with a minimum lot size of 5,000 square feet, however they are changing the code and repealing R-1 

without telling anyone.  Commissioner Philip Smith said she is misunderstanding that the definition of R-1 was 

changed in 2010 and applies to the entire city and the table they are revising is used to explain various uses of 

city property.   

 

Discussion commenced on calculating the density limit of the lot and it was determined there is confusion on 

both parts and they need to figure out where the 8.9 acres came from.  

 

Commissioner Bliss asked for clarification that there was no posting on the south side of the property until July 

24
th

, 2013.  Ms. Geller said she was correct.  

 

 
12 of 183



 

 
City of Newberg: Planning Commission Minutes (August 8, 2013) Page 9 of 10 

Mr. Willcuts mentioned they did the posting and mailing correctly, and as Mr. Saavedra mentioned they have a 

lot of attendance tonight, which means people are aware of the meetings.  He also said if someone has moved 

and the county has not updated, they cannot get a mailing to the new residence, as well as rentals.  One 

gentleman suggested he go to the seller and offer 30% less then their original offer, which Mr. Willcuts said he 

would not dignify with a response.  Mr. Willcuts said he would not apologize for Orchard Lair and feels that 

there is a need for affordable housing in Newberg.  He feels they have met all the criteria they need to, have 

made an offer, which was accepted.  He is concerned after the meeting he held that there was a couple people 

whom he felt would never want any development and are anti growth; however, the rest of the citizens he met 

seemed to understand and agree to what he was purposing with the addition of CC&R’s.  They made the 

CC&R’s list and said they would go back and look at it.  Mr. Willcuts felt before this meeting he was making 

affordable housing where there would be good neighbors who had a good understanding of his plan, however 

now he feels differently.  He restated he has met criteria and if it is appealed he wants to not be locked into the 

CC&R’s agreement.  In conclusion, Mr. Willcuts stated he is trying to be a good neighbor, is not making it as 

dense as he could, and does not appreciate the multitude of misstatements he has heard tonight.  

 

Mr. Evans mentioned the citizen’s density concerns.  He spoke about parks, saying their company donates land 

for parks, however they usually wait until the housing development is finished and houses are being sold so 

they have revenue to build the park.  They would like to help with the school issues, but he mentioned they 

cannot control the rate which kids move in and out of the community.  He spoke in high regards of Ms. Nunley 

and Mr. Brierley and felt the citizens spoke unfairly about them in some ways when they are just doing their 

jobs.  The reduction of 44 homes to 33 is unbalanced and he feels the houses they are proposing will match the 

continuity, and gave The Greens development as and example, which has 5,000 square foot lots, however the 

houses are designed to make it look nicer.  Mr. Evans spoke about the citizen who said he worked hard to live 

where he does, however Mr. Evans wants everyone to work hard, no matter what side they are on.  He 

mentioned the citizens have control over the CC&R’s and what happens in their neighborhood.  Mr. Evans 

mentioned the traffic issues and suggested they work with ODOT to try and figure out a solution.  

Commissioner Philip Smith asked Mr. Willcuts if he is willing to work with the citizens.  Mr. Willcuts said if 

they can move forward he is; however repeated if they get appealed or delayed he does not want the risk 

associated with that.  Commissioner Bliss asked if it will be required for the CC&R’s to have maintenance plan 

for the storm drainage.  Mr. Willcuts replied they will have that request.  Commissioner Bliss asked who is 

assigned to be responsible to honor and maintain the CC&R’s.  Mr. Willcuts explained if the citizens own it 

they must take responsibility for it.   

 

Discussion commenced on who is responsible for the storm and water drainage maintenance and it was 

determined in Newberg the developer is responsible unless there is a Home Owners Association (HOA), 

however the city may look into maintaining it themselves like other cities in Oregon.  

 

Chair Stuhr closed public testimony. 

 

Ms. Nunley asked that they close public testimony but leave written record open until August 15, 2013 4:30 

p.m., allow people to respond until August 22, 2013 4:30 p.m., and give the applicant the final opportunity until 

August 29, 2013 at 4:30 p.m., and bring back the discussion at their September 12, 2013, meeting.  

 

Commissioner Philip Smith mentioned they can ask staff to make an attempt to get a full report from the school 

district in this time as well.  

 

Commissioner Art Smith feels the traffic issues need addressed before they can make a decision, but mentioned 

the TSC has a full agenda next month.  

 

Chair Stuhr suggested they ask TSC to look into the issue and give some feedback, but not make any decisions 

right now.  She asked staff to find out if the property is 7.9 acres or 7.67 acres, since this is very important.  She 

asked for clarification of the “safe and healthful” criterion.   

 
13 of 183



 

 
City of Newberg: Planning Commission Minutes (August 8, 2013) Page 10 of 10 

 

Commissioner Bliss seconded Commissioner Art Smith in regards to traffic issues and mentioned he does not 

understand submitting revised plat after a hearing as a condition of approval.  He feels it needs to be presented 

on the map prior to the meeting. 

 

MOTION: P. SMITH/A. SMITH to close public testimony and continue the hearing to September 12, 

2013, at the point of staff recommendation.  The written record to remain open until 4:30pm on August 15, 

2013, with an additional seven days for anyone to respond to any new testimony submitted (until 4:30pm on 

August 22, 2013), and a final seven day period for the applicant to respond to any new testimony (until 4:30pm 

on August 29, 2013). Motion carried (6 Yes/0 No/1 Absent [Edwards]). 

 

Discussion commenced on how citizens can get information for their questions in the future.  

 

V. ITEMS FROM STAFF 

TIME: 11:30PM 

 

Mr. Brierley reported the zoning use table was shared with the city council and they gave their thanks and 

congratulated them on their good work.  At the next PC meeting they will discuss pursuing becoming a certified 

local government for historical review and to change the transportation plan to reflect some changes with Phase 

One of the Bypass.  He thanked Mr. Saavedra for his hard work.  Mr. Saavedra thanked the commission for the 

opportunity and spoke a little about the new student planning commissioner who will be attending meetings 

after him.  

 

Chair Stuhr spoke about having liaisons from PC and TSC attending each others meetings and asked for ideas 

on how to continue.  

 

VI. ITEMS FROM COMMISSIONERS 

 

Commissioner Art Smith mentioned he is surprised when people do not know about the PC and suggested 

anytime a commissioner or council member is present at a city event, they be announced to the public to help 

build awareness.  Chair Stuhr mentioned city council members are listed on the website and suggested maybe 

PC and TSC commissions could also have website profiles to increase knowledge of citizens.  

 

Discussion commenced on TSC looking into the traffic issues brought forth tonight and the process to get traffic 

control devices in the area. 

 

VII. ADJOURNMENT 

 

The meeting adjourned at 11:50PM.  

 

Approved by the Newberg Planning Commission this 12th day of September, 2013. 

 

 

 

____________________________ ____________________________  

Minutes Recorder Planning Commission Chair 
 

 

 

 

 
14 of 183



Exhibit “2” 
To Planning Commission Rules 

 

 

City of Newberg: Planning Commission Rules & Guidelines                                   Page 18 

OUTLINE FOR QUASI-JUDICIAL PUBLIC HEARING 
Newberg Planning Commission 

 
1. CALL TO ORDER 

OPEN THE PUBLIC HEARING, ANNOUNCE THE PURPOSE, DISCUSS TESTIMONY 
PROCEDURE, AND TIME ALLOTMENTS 

 
2.    CALL FOR ABSTENTIONS, BIAS, EX PARTE CONTACT, AND OBJECTIONS TO 

JURISDICTION  
 
3. LEGAL ANNOUNCEMENT 
 READ “QUASI-JUDICIAL ANNOUNCEMENTS” SHEET 
 
4. STAFF REPORT 
 COMMISSION MAY ASK BRIEF QUESTIONS FOR CLARIFICATION 

   
5. PUBLIC TESTIMONY 
 5 MINUTE TIME LIMIT PER SPEAKER (15 MINUTE LIMIT FOR APPLICANT AND 
PRINCIPAL OPPONENT).  SPEAKER GOES TO WITNESS TABLE, STATES NAME & 
PRESENTS TESTIMONY.  COMMISSION MAY ASK QUESTIONS OF SPEAKERS. 
 A. APPLICANT(S) 
 B. OTHER PROPONENTS                 
 C. OPPONENTS AND UNDECIDED 
 D. STAFF READS WRITTEN CORRESPONDENCE (TIME LIMIT APPLIES)  
 E. APPLICANT REBUTTAL 
 
6 CLOSE OF PUBLIC TESTIMONY PORTION OF HEARING 
 
7.  FINAL COMMENTS FROM STAFF AND RECOMMENDATION  
 
8. PLANNING COMMISSION DELIBERATION INCLUDING DISCUSSION OF CRITERIA 

WITH FINDINGS OF FACT 
 
9. ACTION BY THE PLANNING COMMMISSION 
 A. ORDER OR RESOLUTION – Usually requires passage of order if the 

commission is the final decision maker, or a resolution if the commission is only 
advisory to the council. 

 B. VOTE – Vote is done by roll call. 
C. COMBINATION – Can be combined with other commission action; separate vote 

on each action is required. 

 
15 of 183



 

QUASI-JUDICIAL 

 PUBLIC HEARING PROCESS 

 TESTIMONY AND EVIDENCE REQUIREMENTS 

  
 

ORS 197.763 requires certain statements to be made at the commencement of a public hearing. 

 

• The applicable City and State zoning criteria must be listed.  This means that we must advise you of 

the standards that must be satisfied by the applicant prior to our approval of an application.  The 

Planning Staff will list the applicable criteria during his or her presentation of the staff report. 

 

• Persons wishing to participate in this hearing must direct their testimony or the evidence toward the 

criteria stated by the Planner or other specific City or State criteria which you believe apply.  You 

must tell us why the testimony or evidence relates to the criteria. 

 

• Any issue which might be raised in an appeal of this case to the Land Use Board of Appeals 

(LUBA) must be raised in person or by letter at the local level prior to the City approving or 

denying the application.  The law states that the issue must be raised in enough detail to afford the 

decision-maker and the parties an opportunity to respond.  This part of the law is also known as the 

"raise it or waive it" requirement.  If you do not bring it up now, you can't bring it up at LUBA. 

 

• Failure of the applicant to raise constitutional or other issues relating to proposed conditions of 

approval in enough detail to allow the local government or its designee to respond to the issue 

precludes an action for damages in Circuit Court. 

 

•  Prior to the conclusion of the initial evidentiary hearing on an application, any participant may 

request an opportunity to present additional evidence or testimony regarding the application.  The 

Planning Commission will grant such a request through a continuance or extension of the record. 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
16 of 183



   Planning and Building Department 
      P.O. Box 970 ▪ 414 E First Street ▪ Newberg, Oregon 97132  
      503-537-1240 ▪ Fax 503-537-1272 ▪ www.newbergoregon.gov 

 
 

MEMORANDUM 
 
 

TO:  Newberg Planning Commission 
FROM: Jessica Nunley, AICP 
SUBJECT: Terra Estates Subdivision – File No. SUB2-12-003 
DATE:  September 4, 2013  
 
**REMINDER: PLEASE BRING YOUR MEETING MATERIALS FROM JULY 11, 2013 AND 
AUGUST 8, 2013** 
 
At the August 8, 2013 Planning Commission hearing on the Terra Estates subdivision, the Planning 
Commission asked for clarification and more information about a number of issues.  Several of the 
issues were discussed in a staff memo submitted into the record on August 15, 2013 and attached here as 
Attachment 2.  This memo will discuss the following issues: 1) density standards for the proposed 
subdivision, as well as target and maximum densities overall; 2) interpretation of the “safe and 
healthful” criterion; 3) several street issues, including concerns about the College Street/Terrace Drive 
intersection, the Morris Street/Natalie Drive intersection, temporary turnarounds for each phase of the 
proposed subdivision, and frontage improvements to Terrace Drive; 4) stormwater pond maintenance; 5) 
potential house design CC&R’s; and 6) parking for the subdivision.   

 
1. Density 
 
At the hearing, there were questions about density.  The property is in an R-1 Zone.  The Newberg 
Development Code states: 
 
15.405.010 Lot area – Lot areas per dwelling unit. 
A. In the following districts, each lot or development site shall have an area as shown below except as 
otherwise permitted by this code: 
 
1. In the R-1 district, each lot or development site shall have a minimum area of 5,000 square feet or as 
may be established by a subdistrict. The average size of lots in a subdivision intended for single-family 
development shall not exceed 10,000 square feet. 
      
      * * * 
 
D. Lot size averaging is allowed for any subdivision. Some lots may be under the minimum lot size 
required in the zone where the subdivision is located, as long as the average size of all lots is at least the 
minimum lot size. 
 

"Working Together For A Better Community-Serious About Service" 
Z:\WP5FILES\FILES.S\2012\SUB2-12-003 TERRA ESTATES\2013-0912 PC PACKET\PC MEMO_2013-0904.DOC 

  
17 of 183



The subdivision meets the development code standards for density, as the average lot size is in excess of 
5,000 square feet.   
 
Additional details are in Attachment “5”. 
 
2. Interpretation of Criterion.   
 
The Planning Commission asked for clarification of the following criterion: 
 
Newberg Code Section 15.235.060(A)(1):  Approval does not impede the future best use of the 
remainder of the property under the same ownership or adversely affect the safe and healthful 
development of such remainder or adjoining land or access thereto. 
 
This criterion, though not worded very clearly, requires that a subdivision can’t create safety problems 
for future development of any portion of the property not developed nor for development or 
redevelopment of adjacent properties.  This is what gives the city the right to require streets and utilities 
to be “to and through” the property being developed to the edges of adjacent undeveloped properties.  In 
other words, if a property were going to be subdivided but did not put a road to the edge of their 
property to allow the adjacent undeveloped property to have access, it would be in violation of this 
criterion.  Similarly, if public utilities were not extended to a point adjacent to the neighboring property, 
it would be an unacceptable adverse impact on the development potential of the adjacent property.  In 
this particular case, the roads and public utilities are planned to be extended through the lot to the east 
and west edges to allow for future development of adjacent properties, and the entirety of the lot is 
planned for development so there is no remainder.   
 
This is also a land use criterion that gives the city the ability require development to meet other 
applicable parts of the development code related to street improvements and public utilities.  This is how 
the city may require such things as public utility hookups, sidewalks, street trees, and public pathways 
necessary for safety.   
 
This criterion does not require correction of existing problems not caused by or affected by the 
development.  It is a reasonable interpretation that the criterion could be used to require improving 
health or safety issues that are worsened by the subdivision.  However, per case law, those requirements 
(1) must be directly tied to the impact of the development, and (2) must be roughly proportional to those 
impacts.     
 
3. Street Issues 
 

a. College Street/Terrace Drive Intersection 
 
Testimony raised concerns about safety at the Terrace Drive/College Street intersection.  This 
intersection was redesigned as part of the Terrace Heights subdivision to the south to meet engineering 
sight distance standards.  Realigning the intersection, as suggested by testimony, would further extend 
sight distance.  However, the intersection cannot be realigned without acquisition of right-of-way from 
an abutting private property owner.  Staff recommends that this issue be referred to the Traffic Safety 

"Working Together For A Better Community-Serious About Service" 
Z:\WP5FILES\FILES.S\2012\SUB2-12-003 TERRA ESTATES\2013-0912 PC PACKET\PC MEMO_2013-0904.DOC 

  
18 of 183



Commission for review.  If the commission feels the intersection should be realigned, then they can 
recommend to the City Council that the city begin the process of acquiring right-of-way.   
 
In addition, there are other safety improvements that may be done at the intersection, such as better 
marking the existing culvert at the northwest corner or removing existing vegetation.  Staff included a 
condition that the applicant coordinates with city staff, Yamhill County, and ODOT on potential safety 
improvements there as that will be the primary access point to the neighborhood.   
 
 b.  Morris Street/Natalie Drive Intersection 
 
Testimony included a request to place a stop sign at the Morris Street/Natalie Drive intersection.  Staff 
has attached information on stop sign warrants (See Attachment “2.c”).  Staff recommends that this 
request be forwarded to the Traffic Safety Commission.  If the commission determines that stop signs 
are warranted at this intersection, then staff recommends that the subdivider pay to have them installed. 
 
 c. Temporary turnarounds.   
 
The applicant has submitted plans for temporary turnarounds between phases.  Therefore, staff 
recommends removal of condition A.1.a., as that condition has been fulfilled. 
 
 d. Terrace Drive cross section 
 
Commissioner Bliss will be absent from the hearing on September 12, 2013, but he has submitted 
comments into the record along with recommended additional conditions of approval regarding Terrace 
Drive.  We appreciate Commissioner Bliss’ input and recommend the condition be added with minor 
changes as follows: 
 
Condition A.2.b.v. Terrace Drive is to be constructed with the proper structural road section applicable 
to its designation to provide a half street improvement as depicted by the typical section on the “Site and 
Utility Plan” plus additional paving and improvements as necessary to construct a 28-foot wide street 
matching the construction profile of the southern portion of Terrace Drive adjacent to the Terrace 
Heights subdivision. 
 
This condition is slightly modified to direct the applicants to match the as-builts for the existing 
improved section of Terrace Drive to the south, but keeps the intent of Commissioner Bliss’ concern for 
adequate roadway width.  
 
4. Stormwater pond maintenance. 
 
Commissioner Bliss also recommended a condition regarding maintenance of the stormwater pond.  We 
appreciate Commissioner Bliss’ input and recommend the conditions be added with minor changes as 
follows: 
 

 Condition A.2.c.v. The applicant shall coordinate with City Engineering staff to prepare a 
protocol for the maintenance of the stormwater quality/detention pond and water quality 
swale.  

"Working Together For A Better Community-Serious About Service" 
Z:\WP5FILES\FILES.S\2012\SUB2-12-003 TERRA ESTATES\2013-0912 PC PACKET\PC MEMO_2013-0904.DOC 

  
19 of 183



 
This condition is slightly modified from Commissioner Bliss’ suggest to direct the condition to the 
applicant. 
 
5. House Design CC&R’s 
 
A letter from Marc Willcuts to the Planning Commission was included into the record on August 8, 
2013 in testimony from Mr. Reitz.  The letter refers to the applicant’s offer to include the following 
items in CC&Rs in exchange for neighbor support of the subdivision: 
 

• 1500 square feet minimum lot size 
• Minimum two car garages 
• Lap siding; no vinyl 
• Front yard to have sprinklers and irrigation 
• Minimum of three exterior colors on house 
• Wood trimmed windows on front of house 

 
At the hearing on August 8, 2013, the applicants indicated they would be willing to do these items if 
their project was approved, but not if the project were appealed.  As indicated in staff’s memo to 
Planning Commission dated July 31, 2013, the city cannot require such conditions because aesthetics are 
not related to the quasi-judicial criteria for a subdivision; however, the applicant can agree to add such 
things in CC&Rs as a condition if they so choose.  At this time, staff recommends the Planning 
Commission modify condition of approval C.3.d.in the staff report to read as follows: 
 

 [Documents required:] C.3.d. A final draft copy of Codes, Covenants and Restrictions 
(CC&Rs) for the subdivision.  Planning staff will review the proposed CC&Rs for 
compliance with City Code prior to recordation.  The CC&Rs must include the following: 

o Maintenance responsibility for the paved pedestrian path between lots 4, 5, 10, and 
11. 

o If the subdivision has final preliminary plat approval by March 12, 2014, the CC&Rs 
shall include the following design elements: 

 1500 square feet minimum lot size 
 Minimum two car garages 
 Lap siding; no vinyl 
 Front yard to have sprinklers and irrigation 
 Minimum of three exterior colors on house 
 Wood trimmed windows on front of house 

 
6. Parking 
Public testimony raised questions about parking within the subdivision.  Single family dwellings 
typically require at least two off-street parking spaces on each lot.  Developers may elect to provide 
more.  In the proposed subdivision, the streets are classified as local streets.  The proposed street cross 
section allows on street parking on both sides of the interior streets.  A typical 50-foot wide lot would 
have one or possibly two on street parking spaces in front.    
 

"Working Together For A Better Community-Serious About Service" 
Z:\WP5FILES\FILES.S\2012\SUB2-12-003 TERRA ESTATES\2013-0912 PC PACKET\PC MEMO_2013-0904.DOC 

  
20 of 183



"Working Together For A Better Community-Serious About Service" 
Z:\WP5FILES\FILES.S\2012\SUB2-12-003 TERRA ESTATES\2013-0912 PC PACKET\PC MEMO_2013-0904.DOC 

 

Attachments: 
1. Revised Planning Commission Order 2013-13 with 

Exhibit “A”: Findings 
Exhibit “B”: Conditions of Approval 

2. Supplemental information for the record through 8/15/13 
2.a. Revised plat showing temporary turnarounds 
2.b. Preliminary cross-sections for Petunia Drive & Terrace Drive 
2.c. Staff memo 
2.d. Public comments & media received from 8/8/15 to 8/15/13 
2.e. Email correspondence regarding density 

3. Supplemental information for the record from 8/16/13 to 8/22/13 
3.a. Public comments received from 8/16/13 to 8/22/13 

4. Supplemental information for the record from 8/23/13 to 8/29/13 
4.a. Applicant final comments, received 8/23/13 

5. Letter explaining density, dated August 23, 2013 
 
 

 
21 of 183



 

PLANNING COMMISSION ORDER 2013-13 

AN ORDER APPROVING SUB2-12-003 FOR A SUBDIVISION TO BE KNOWN AS TERRA 

ESTATES THAT INCLUDES 44 LOTS AND ONE TRACT, LOCATED AT 3805 TERRACE DRIVE, 
YAMHILL COUNTY TAX LOT 3207-00500 

RECITALS: 

1. Mike Hanks, member of Del Boca Vista, LLC, submitted an application for tentative subdivision 
approval for a subdivision to include 44 lots and one tract, Yamhill County Tax Lot 3207-00500.  
The proposed tract A would be used for a stormwater quality/detention pond to serve the 
subdivision. 

2. The Planning Division received a citizen request to hold a public hearing about the subdivision.     

3. After proper notice, the Newberg Planning Commission held a hearing on July 11, 2013 to 
consider the application.  The Planning Commission continued the item to August 8, 2013, at the 
request of the applicant.  On August 8, 2013, the Planning Commission heard public testimony 
and continued the item to September 12, 2013 for deliberation.  

4. On September 12, 2013, the Commission deliberated on the item.  The Newberg Planning 
Commission finds that the application meets the applicable criteria as shown in the findings 
attached in Exhibit “A” and must comply with the conditions of approval shown in Exhibit “B”. 

The Newberg Planning Commission orders as follows: 

1. The tentative subdivision plan application SUB2-12-003 for the Terra Estates Subdivision is 
hereby approved, subject to the conditions contained in Exhibit “B”.  Exhibit "B" is hereby 
adopted and by this reference incorporated. 

2. The findings attached as Exhibit “A” are hereby adopted and by this reference incorporated. 

3. This order shall be effective September 27, 2013 unless appealed prior to that date.  This order 
shall expire two years after the effective date above if the applicant does not record the final plat 
by that time, unless an extension is granted per Newberg Development Code 15.235.130(B). 

Adopted by the Newberg Planning Commission this 12th day of September, 2013. 
 
        ATTEST: 

 
Planning Commission Chair     Planning Commission Secretary 

Attached: 
 Exhibit “A”: Findings  
 Exhibit “B”: Conditions  
 

Attachment 1

 
22 of 183



Exhibit “A”  
to Planning Commission Order 2013-13 

Findings –File SUB2-12-003 – Terra Estates
 

I. Applicable Subdivisio

The Director (Type II) or Planning Commission (Type III) shall approve a 

 and healthful 

Findin  the property 
will be uested subdivision 

80 and 15.235.030 et seq. 

Finding:  Foll , the 
subdivi e.  See sections II through IV for 

 a. Improvements required to be completed prior to final plat 

ity 
ired improvements prior to final plat approval, and enter into a 

required improvements; or 

ovement project that is budgeted and 

Finding:  The  developer 
will enter into remainder of the improvements to be completed.  In 

 Subdivision 

n Criteria:  Newberg Development Code 15.235.060(A). 

subdivision of four parcels or more under a Type II or Type III procedure if the 
resulting parcels comply with the following approval criteria: 

 1. Approval does not impede the future best use of the remainder of the 
property under the same ownership or adversely affect the safe
development of such remainder or adjoining land or access thereto. 

g:  Approval will not impede the future best use of the property as the entirety of
 divided into buildable lots and a stormwater tract.  Approval of the req

would allow the adjoining land to develop in the future by extending the city’s road network and 
utilities to the edges of the parcel.   

 2. The subdivision complies with this code including but not limited to  
15.340.010 through 15.440.0

owing compliance with the conditions of approval as shown in Exhibit “B”
sion complies with all applicable requirements of the cod

specific Development Code standards and findings.   

 3. Either: 

approval; or 

 b. The sub divider will substantially complete, as defined by c
policies, requ
performance agreement to complete the remaining improvements.  The 
performance agreement shall include security in a form acceptable to the 
city in sufficient amount to insure completion of all required improvements; 
or 

 c. A local improvement district shall have been formed to complete 
the 

 d. The required improvements are contained in a city or other 
government agency capital impr
scheduled for construction. 

 required improvements will either be completed prior to final plat or the
an agreement with the city for the 

this case, public improvements include: construction of Morris Street northward through the 
subdivision; construction of both east-west roads through the subdivision; a half street improvement 
to Terrace Drive along the frontage of the subdivision; a half street improvement to Petunia Drive; 
construction of city water, sewer, and stormwater infrastructure throughout the subdivision; and 
construction of a stormwater quality/detention facility to serve the subdivision.  All street 

 
23 of 183



improvements will include sidewalk, curb, gutter, and planting strip.   

II. Applicable Lot Requirement:   Newberg Development Code 15.405.010, Lot Area; Lot 

own 

r as may be established by a subdistrict. The average size of lots 
 

Finding: The property is all zoned R-1.  The size of the lots in the proposed subdivision range from 
5,000 square f
square feet, wh

D. Lot size averaging is allowed for any subdivision. Some lots may be under the minimum 
lot size required in the zone where the subdivision is located, as long as the average size of 

nment and resulting lot configuration, one lot is below the 
5,000 square foot lot size.  However, the average size of all lots in the subdivision is 5,656 square 
feet, w

III. rg Development Code 15.405.030 Lot Dimensions 
and Frontage 

B. Depth to Width Ratio. Each lot and parcel shall have an average depth between 

e lines. Depths of lots shall conform to the standards of this code. 
Development of lots under 15,000 square feet are exempt from the lot depth to 

ntage 

a. Each lot or development site shall have either frontage on a public 
street for a distance of at least 25 feet or have access to a public 
street through an easement that is at least 25 feet wide. No new 

ide frontage or access. 

Areas per Dwelling Unit 

A. In the following districts, each lot or development site shall have an area as sh
below except as otherwise permitted by this code: 

1. In the R-1 district, each lot or development site shall have a minimum area of 
5,000 square feet o
in a subdivision intended for single-family development shall not exceed 10,000
square feet. 

eet to 7,629 square feet, and the subdivision has an overall average lot size of 5,656 
ich meets the criteria.   

all lots is at least the minimum lot size. 

Finding: Due to the east-west road alig

hich meets this criterion.  

Applicable Lot Requirements – Newbe

A. Width. Widths of lots shall conform to the standards of this code. 

the front and rear lines of not more than two and one-half times the average width 
between the sid

width ratio requirement. 

C. Area. Lot sizes shall conform to standards set forth in this code. Lot area 
calculations shall not include area contained in public or private streets as defined 
by this code. 

D. Frontage. 

1. No lot or development site shall have less than the following lot fro
standards: 

private streets, as defined in NMC 15.05.030, shall be created to 
prov

b. Each lot in an R-2 and R-3 zone shall have a minimum width of 
30 feet at the front building line. 

 
24 of 183



c. Each lot in an R-1, AI, or RP zone shall have a minimum width of 
50 feet at the front building line. 

t at 

Finding:  Each proposed lot meets the required width for the R-1 zone and all have adequate 
frontage on a public st tion of 
the lot in order to com t 7 is conditioned to have the house facing 
Terrace Drive; lots 25 and 34 are conditioned to have houses facing Morris Street; and lot 36 and lot 
8 are conditioned to h

IV. Applicable Development Standards  

NDC 15.510.040:  Water Supply.  All lots and parcels within subdivisions and 

NDC 15.510.060:  Land Surface Drainage.  Such grading shall be done and such 
 by the land divider as are adequate for the 

d 
eral public, 

nd 
 specified in 

 

e 

 

.220.(A):  Public Walkways.  The review body for a design review or 

e the 

s of public paths according to adopted plans, or 
 areas 
 use.  

d. Each lot in an AR zone shall have a minimum width of 45 fee
the front building line. 

reet.  Lots 7, 8, 25, 34, and 36 must have buildings facing the wide sec
ply with the criterion. Therefore, lo

ave a house facing the east-west road.   

partitions shall be served by the water system of the City of Newberg. 

 NDC 15.510.050:  Sewage.  All lots and parcels within subdivisions and partitions 
shall, where practicable, as determined by the Director, in accordance with the 
provisions of this Code, be served by the sewage system of the City. 

drainage facilities shall be constructed
purpose of proper drainage of the partition or subdivision, of areas affected 
thereby, and for the preservation of healthful and convenient surroundings an
conditions for residents of the subdivision or partition, and for the gen
in accordance with specifications adopted by the City Council under 15.510.030. 

NDC 15.505.030:  Streets and Alleys. The land divider or developer shall grade a
pave all streets and alleys in the subdivision or partition to the width
15.505.060, and provide for drainage of all such streets and alleys, construct curbs
and gutters within the subdivision or partition in accordance with specifications 
adopted by the City Council under 15.510.030.  Such improvements shall be 
constructed to specifications of the City under the supervision and direction of th
Director.  It shall be the responsibility of the land divider or developer to provide 
street signs 

NDC 15.505.040:  Existing Streets.  A subdivision, partition or development 
requiring a Type II design review abutting or adjacent to an existing road of 
inadequate width, shall dedicate additional right-of-way to and improve the street to
the width specified in 15.505.060. 

NDC 15.505.210:  Sidewalks.  Sidewalks shall be located and constructed in 
accordance with the provisions of 15.510.030. Minimum width is five feet. 

NDC 15.505
land division may require easements for and construction of public walkways 
where such walkway is needed for the public safety and convenience or wher
walkway is necessary to meet the standards of this code or a walkway plan.  Public 
walkways are to connect to cul-de-sacs, to pass through oddly shaped or unusually 
long blocks, to provide for network
to provide access to schools, parks or other community destinations or public
of such design, width, and location as reasonably required to facilitate public

 
25 of 183



Where possible, said dedications may also be employed to accommodate public 
utilities. 

l public 

Findin ilities.  
The existing 8-inch sanitary sewer line in Terrace Drive will be extended north and west “to and 
through” the property in Terrace Drive and the northern east-west road in order to serve future 
develop y and 
south d ll be 
extende  
extended “to and through” to the edges of the property.  There is an existing fire hydrant at the north 
edge of the property in Terrace Drive; two new fire hydrants are planned for the north and south 
boundaries of Morris Street in the subdivision.  The applicant subm
report i
conditi vision 
standar

 

 

ent 

y.  
strip.  As conditioned, all 

 

NDC 15.510.070:  Street Trees.  Street trees shall be provided adjacent to al
rights-of-way abutting or within a subdivision or partition.  Street trees shall be 
installed in accordance with the provisions of 15.420.010(B) (4). 

g:  All of the proposed lots will be served by an extension of city sewer and water fac

ment on adjacent properties.  The sewer line will also be extended west on Drèa’s Wa
own Morris Street from the northern east-west road.  The existing 8-inch water line wi
d north in both Terrace Drive and Morris Street, looped through the site, and similarly

itted a preliminary fire flow 
ndicating there was adequate domestic and fire flow capacity.  The applicant will be 
oned to submit further calculations conforming to Fire Department and Building Di
ds indicating minimum service requirements will be met.   

In accordance with the city’s new stormwater standards, the development will include a tract set 
aside for a stormwater quality/detention pond facility to serve the subdivision.  There will be new
stormwater lines installed at various points in the subdivision to collect the stormwater.  Stormwater 
will be conveyed from the detention pond to the existing creek.  As conditioned, the outfall will have
erosion control measures to protect against water velocity and the design must be approved by the 
Engineering Services Department.  The detention pond facility will be privately owned and 
maintained with a public storm drainage easement, and must be designed to Clean Water Services 
Standards and approved by the Engineering Services Department.  A private maintenance agreem
through a homeowners association will be required, as conditioned.       

Morris Street and the two east-west streets are all standard local streets with a 54-foot right-of-wa
All will be fully improved with sidewalk, curb, gutter, and planter 
sidewalks are setback behind the planter strip.  Terrace Drive required a right-of-way dedication of 
10 feet along the frontage, and will be improved with a half-street improvement to widen the paved
area and add sidewalk, curb, gutter, and planter strip along the frontage.  Petunia Drive required a 
right-of-way dedication of 7-15 feet along the frontage, and will be improved with a half street 
improvement to widen the paved area and add sidewalk, curb, gutter, and planter strip along the 
frontage.  All public streets will have street trees in accordance with the code.  In addition, a paved 
pedestrian path will be built in the public access easement between lots 4, 5, 9, and 10.  The 
pedestrian path will be privately maintained and maintenance responsibility will need to be included 
in the CC&Rs, as conditioned.   

NDC 15.505.160: Platting standards for blocks.  B. Maximum Block Length and 
Perimeter. The maximum length and perimeters of blocks in the zones listed below shall be 
according to the following table. The review body for a subdivision, partition, conditional 
use permit, or a Type II design review may require installation of streets or walkways as 
necessary to meet the standards below. 

Zone(s) Maximum Block 
Length 

Maximum Block 
Perimeter 

 
26 of 183



Zone(s) Maximum Block 
Length 

Maximum Block 
Perimeter 

R-1 800 feet 2,000 feet 

R-2, R-3, RP, I 1,200 feet 3,000 feet 

 

Findin d perimeter standard.  The northern east-west road 
is approximately 620 feet from Terrace Drive to the west edge of the property.  Morris Street is 
approximately 722 feet from Camellia Road south to Natalie Drive.  The block bounded by the 
northern east-west road/M eet/D  D ly 1325 feet in 
perimeter length.  The block bounded by Dr
Street/Petunia Drive/Terrace Drive is approxim
plat shows a paved pedestrian path between lots 4, 5, 10, and 11 that will contribute to the overall 
connectivity through the subdivision.    

 Applicable Newberg Comprehensive Plan Section:  Public Facilities and Services, All 
Facilities and Services Policy #1.h.  

 
ter, 
rg 

the 

 completion of the attached conditions. 

g: The proposal meets the block length an

orris Str rèa’s Way/Terrace
èa’s Way/Morris Street/Natalie Drive/Dahlia 

rive is approximate

ately 1792 feet in perimeter length.  The tentative 

V.

Finding:  According to the finding above for Development Code requirements for infrastructure, the
proposed subdivision complies with the policy to have paved streets, curbs, pedestrian ways, wa
sewer, storm drainage, street lights and underground utilities, and meets the intent of the Newbe
Comprehensive Plan.   

VI. Conclusion:  Based on the above findings, the application meets the goals and policies of 
Newberg Comprehensive Plan and the required criteria within the Newberg Development 
Code for a subdivision, subject to

 
27 of 183



Exhibit “B”  
to Planning Commission Order 2012-02 

Conditions of Approval – File SUB2-12-003 – Terra Estates

A. The applicant must provide the follow

 Subdivision 

ing information for review and approval prior to 
cons

d, as the new road does not line up with the existing Camellia Road. 

l 
heet; 

 

i. Submit detailed utility construction plans for review and approval for 
meters, sanitary sewer mains, and sanitary sewer 

erve 
velopment in the basin.  A basin plan shall be prepared by 

 
e project 

itted by the applicant.  Fire flow calculations will be 

 

roposed subdivision that 

 
b. 

i. Full improvements for Morris Street, the northern east-west road, and 
rèa’s Way, including curb, gutter, planter strip, and sidewalk.  Note: 

lk.  Note: the 
sidewalk must be setback behind the planter strip.   

truction of any improvements: 

1. Revised Tentative Plan:  Provide a revised tentative subdivision plan that shows the 
following: 

a. Name the northern east-west road.  Note that the name cannot be Camellia 
Roa

2. Construction Plans: Submit engineered construction plans for review and approva
of all public utilities.  Plans should be drawn to show storm information on one s
water and sanitary on another sheet.  Please note that additional Engineering Services
Department plan review application and fees apply for review of plans.  The plans 
must note the following: 

a. Sanitary Sewer/Water: 

all public water 
laterals. 

ii. Sanitary sewer facilities in Terrace Drive shall be constructed to s
future de
engineer of record and submitted to the Engineering Services 
Department. 

iii. An abbreviated fire flow calculation dated July 25, 2013 for th
site was subm
required to be submitted to the Engineering Services Department for 
the proposed subdivision that conform to the City of Newberg Fire 
Department standards, indicating  that each lot in the new subdivision
will meet the minimum service requirements. 
 

iv. Domestic water flow calculations will be required to be submitted to 
the Engineering Services Department for the p
conform to the City Building Division requirements indicating that 
minimum service pressures are available at the future highest fixtures 
in the development. 

Streets: 

D
all sidewalks are to be setback behind the planter strip.   

ii. Half street improvement to the north side of Petunia Drive along the 
frontage, to include curb, gutter, planter strip, and sidewa

 
28 of 183



iii. Street names should be “Morris Street” and “Drèa’s Way”, plus a new 
street name for the northern east-west road. 

e a half street 

file of the 
race Heights 

c. 

 fully 

 
posed design.  The stormwater facility should be 

ed according to Clean Water Services standards, and the control 
re shall discharge into a rock armored open channel/ditch to 

 

m 

3. 
mainte ater facility.  The 

4. Geote  

5. Grading: If required, obtain a DEQ 1200-C permit and a city grading permit prior to 
site grading. 

iv. Each street intersection in the proposed subdivision shall meet 
AASHTO vertical and horizontal intersection sight distance 
requirements, as verified by the engineer of record.  

v. Terrace Drive is to be constructed with the proper structural road 
section applicable to its designation to provid
improvement as depicted by the typical section on the “Site and Utility 
Plan” plus additional paving and improvements as necessary to 
construct a 28-foot wide street matching the construction pro
southern portion of Terrace Drive adjacent to the Ter
subdivision.   

Stormwater: 

i. The proposed stormwater quality/detention pond facility shall be
constructed with the first phase of development.  Applicant’s Civil 
Engineer is to meet with Engineering Services Department Staff to
review the pro
design
structu
transmit the stormwater flows to the receiving stream.  The plan for the
stormwater facility shall include a secure fence around the pond. 
 

ii. The proposed stormwater tract shall be under ownership separate fro
the City and subject to a recorded public storm drainage easement over 
its entirety. A City standard private stormwater facility maintenance 
agreement shall be completed by the applicant and recorded for private 
maintenance of the stormwater facility.  The agreement shall state the 
esponsible party(s) for the required facility maintenance.   r

 
iii. All stormwater detention and water quality hydraulic and sediment 

control structures shall have adequate maintenance access for the City 
vactor truck within 10 feet of the proposed structure. 
  

iv. Delineate the stream corridor and provide a plan to protect the stream 
orridor during site grading and construction. c

v. The applicant shall coordinate with City Engineering staff to prepare a 
protocol for the maintenance of the stormwater quality/detention pond 
and water quality swale. 

Stormwater Facility Maintenance Agreement: Provide a stormwater facility 
nance agreement for private maintenance of the stormw

agreement must state the responsible party(s) for the required facility maintenance.   

chnical Report.  Provide a geotechnical engineering report for the subdivision. 

 
29 of 183



6. Stream Corridor Protection Plan.  Provide a plan to protect the stream corridor 
during construction with erosion control measures.   

ter 

8. Terrace Drive/College Street Intersection Safety. Coordinate with city staff, 

7. Stormwater Outfall. Provide an erosion control plan for the proposed stormwa
outfall area into the existing creek to reduce water velocity and speed.  

Yamhill County, and ODOT on safety improvements to the intersection.  
Improvements may include installation of safety reflectors, additional striping, or 
additional paving, as warranted and approved by all agencies.  

B. The applicant must complete the following prior to final plat approval.  

1. Substantially Complete the Construction Improvements:  Prior to final plat 

 
t (503-537-

 for 

s 

ns.   

 

2. Street Tree Bond: Provide a landscape plan that identifies all planned tree species 

n the 

C. Final Plat Application:  In accordance with NDC 15.235.150, submit the following for 

approval, the applicant must substantially complete the construction improvements 
and secure for them in accordance with city policy.  Complete construction and call
for a walk-through inspection with the Engineering Services Departmen
1273).  In addition to those items listed below, the inspector will also be looking
completion of items such as street signs, street lights, etc. 

a. Construct all water meters, sanitary sewer mains, and sanitary sewer lateral
as shown on the approved utility construction plans. 

b. Construct the stormwater system as shown in the approved pla

c. Construct all public roads and the public pathway identified on the approved
tentative plat.   

d. Install stop signs at the intersection of Natalie Drive and Morris Street if 
found to be warranted by the Newberg Traffic Safety Commission.   

for street trees in accordance with NDC 15.420.010.  A landscape bond will be 
required for installation of street trees prior to final plat approval. 

3. Existing Wells/Septic: Decommission any wells or septic tanks currently o
property. 

City review of the final plat application.  Construction improvements should be 
substantially complete at this point. 

1. Application Materials: 
a. Type I application form (found either at City Hall or on the website – 

www.newbergoregon.gov in the Planning Forms section) with the appro
fees. 

priate 

s of 

ritten response to these Conditions of Approval that specifies how each 

b. A current title report (within 6 months old) for the property.  Include copie
all existing easements and CC&Rs that pertain to the property. 

c. A w
condition has been met. 

d. Two blue-line copies of the final subdivision plat for preliminary review by 
the City Engineering Services Department.  The Engineering Services 

 
30 of 183



Department will make red-line comments on these sheets for your 
surveyor/engineer to correct prior to printing final Mylar copies. 

ent along the northern edge of the subdivision as 

nd Petunia 
Drive improvements.  

 approval: 

aintenance of the 

 

by the Planning 

odes, Covenants and Restrictions (CC&Rs) for the 
 

ts 

al preliminary plat approval by March 12, 
2014, the CC&Rs shall include the following design elements: 

(c) Lap siding; no vinyl 

Minimum of three exterior colors on house 

 the approved tentative plan and shall conform to the 

e: 

 
2. Dedications/Easements Required:  The plat must show the following: 

a. 10 ft public utility easements along all street frontages. 

b. A 15-foot wide public access and storm drainage easement between lots 4, 5, 
9, and 10. 

c. The storm drainage easem
shown on the tentative plat.  In addition, the entirety of Tract A shall have a 
public surface water and public storm drainage easement.   

d. Right-of-way as shown on the preliminary plat for Terrace Drive a

3. Documents Required:  Provide the following documents for review and

a. Stormwater facility maintenance agreement for private m
stormwater facility.  The agreement must state the responsible party(s) for the 
required facility maintenance.   

b. A signed and notarized performance agreement that assures construction and
performance in accordance with the approved final plans. 

c. A bond for street tree planting in an amount to be approved 
Division. 

d. A final draft copy of C
subdivision.  Planning staff will review the proposed CC&Rs for compliance
with City Code prior to recordation.  The CC&Rs must include the following: 
i. Maintenance responsibility for the paved pedestrian path between lo

4, 5, 10, and 11. 
ii. If the subdivision has fin

(a) 1500 square feet minimum lot size 
(b) Minimum two car garages 

(d) Front yard to have sprinklers and irrigation 
(e) 
(f) Wood trimmed windows on front of house 

4. Final Mylar Copies of the Subdivision Plat:  Submit final mylar copies of the 
corrected final subdivision plat (after red-line corrections have been made). 

a. Two sets (one original and one copy) of the plat.  Original plats shall be in 
substantial conformity to
Yamhill County Surveyor’s specifications and requirements.  Scale 
requirements shall be the same as specified for the tentative plans.  Not
Newberg Development Code requires a mylar copy of the recorded plat.  To 
complete this requirement, you may either record a mylar copy of the plat for 
the city or you may have your surveyor/engineer print a copy of the recorded 
plat on mylar.  This requirement must be met to complete the final plat 

 
31 of 183



process, and building permits will not be issued until the mylar copy is 
received. 

D. The final plat process must be completed prior to issuance of any building permits.  The 
City will review leted all of the 

1. City Review: In accordance with NDC 15.235.160 and 15.235.180, Planning staff 

h street or 

 
ater 

tems. 

ate quantity and quality of water and an adequate 
 

) or suitable substitute as agreed upon 

d 

n 

ds payments, monumentation or any other elements deemed relevant 
 

 
2. sion 

a. 

 the final plat application after the applicant has comp
conditions of approval listed above.   

shall determine that: 
a. Streets, roads, and alleys for public use are dedicated without any reservation 

or restriction other than reversionary rights upon vacation of any suc
road and easements for public utilities. 

b. The proposal complies with this code. 
c. The plat is in substantial conformity with the provisions of the tentative plan 

for the subdivision, as approved. 
d. The plat contains a donation to the public of all common improvements,

including but not limited to streets, roads, parks, sewage disposal and w
supply sys

e. Explanations of all common improvements required as conditions of approval 
of the tentative plan of the subdivision have been accounted for and 
referenced on the plat. 

f. There will exist an adequ
sewage disposal system to support the proposed use of the land described in
the plat. 

g. Either: 
i. Improvements as required by this code or as a condition of tentative 

plan approval have been filed with the Director; or 
dii. A performance agreement (bon

by the city and applicant has been filed with the Director in sufficient 
amount to insure the completion of all required improvements; or 

iii. A petition for improvements has been properly executed by the 
applicant who is effecting the subdivision and will be assessed for sai
improvements. 

h. Taxes, as well as public liens, assessments and fees, with respect to the 
subdivision area have been paid, or adequate guarantee has been provided 
assuring said taxes, liens, assessments and fees will be paid prior to 
recordation. 

i. The subdivider has entered into agreement with the city relating to completio
of improvements, payment of sewer and water hookup fees, inspection fees, 

anpublic l
the pto urpose of this or any other city ordinance, state statute or federal law.

j. If the conditions set at the time of tentative land division approval are not 
fulfilled and the final plat or final map is not recorded by the tentative plan 
expiration date, the tentative land division approval is null and void. 

iviRequired Signatures: According to NDC 15.235.180, approval of a final subd
plat must be acknowledged and signed by the following: 

Planning and Building Director 
b. The County Assessor 
c. The County Surveyor 
d. The City Recorder 

 
32 of 183



3. Recording: Deliver the approved subdivision plat to the office of the County Clerk 
for recording.  The County Clerk’s office is located at 414 NE Evans St, 

4.  an exact mylar copy of the recorded plat to the Director to 

E. Devel

1. 
Office 

for assistance at 503-554-8014. 

der terms of the current 
nse and easements.  Contact the Service & 

3-463-4348. 

t coordinate trench/conduit requirements with Frontier. 
ent, Frontier, at 541-269-3375. 

.  
a 

 for Lots 7, 8, 25, 34, and 36: The building plans for these lots must 
st portion of the lot.  Lot 7 must face 

e the 

McMinnville, OR 97128.    

Completion: Return
complete the subdivision process.  Note: the city will not issue building permits or 
other permits for construction on individual lots until the mylar copy is returned.   

opment Notes: 

Postal Service: The applicant shall submit plans to the Newberg Postmaster for 
approval of proposed mailbox delivery locations.  Contact the Newberg Post 

2. PGE: PGE can provide electrical service to this project un
tariff which will involve developer expe
Design Supervisor, PGE, at 50

3. Frontier: The developer m
Contact the Engineering Services Departm

us

4. Waste Management: Contact Waste Management for garbage service to the new 
lots. 

5. Addresses:  The Planning Division will assign addresses for the new subdivision
Planning Division staff will send out notice of the new addresses after they receive 
recorded mylar copy of the final subdivision plat.  

6. Building Plans
show the front of the house facing the wide
Terrace Drive, lots 25 and 34 must face Morris Street, and lots 7 and 36 must fac
northern east-west road.   

7. Street Trees on Corner Lots: Street trees on corner lots shall be adjusted to not 
interfere with street signs as necessary.   

8. Fence: Consider constructing a six foot tall opaque fence along the southern 
boundary of the subdivision.   

 
33 of 183



Attachment 2 
 
 

Supplemental information to be included in the 
record (through 8/15/13) 

 
File No. SUB2-12-003 | Terra Estates 

Subdivision | Planning Commission Order 
2013-13 

 
 
 
 
 
Attached: 
2.a. Revised plat showing temporary turnarounds 
2.b. Preliminary cross-sections for Petunia Drive & Terrace Drive 
2.c. Staff memo 
2.d. Public comments & media received from 8/8/15 to 8/15/13 
2.e. Email correspondence regarding density 

 
34 of 183



T
E

R
R

A
P

R
O

P
O

S
E

D
 4

4 
L

O
T

 S
U

B
D

IV
IS

IO
N

T
A

X
 L

O
T

 3
 2

 0
7 

50
0

C
IT

Y
 O

F
 N

E
W

B
E

R
G

Y
A

M
H

IL
L

 C
O

U
N

T
Y

, O
R

E
G

O
N

7

R
E

V
IS

E
D

P
H

A
S

IN
G

P
L

A
N

8-
14

-1
3

Attachment 2.a.

 
35 of 183



S
H

E
E

T
 N

o.

D
R

A
W

N
 B

Y
:

O
R

IG
. D

A
T

E
:

P
R

O
JE

C
T

 N
O

.

P
lo

tt
e

d
: 
A

u
g

 1
5

, 
2

0
1

3
 -

 5
:5

1
a

m
, 

P
:\
2

4
4

-0
0

5
 T

e
rr

a
\d

w
g

\P
la

n
n
in

g
\2

4
4

-0
0

5
 (
0

4
) 
S

it
e

.d
w

g
, 

L
a

yo
u
t:

 L
a

yo
u
t1

 (
2

)

A
D

D
IT

IO
N

A
L

 S
T

R
E

E
T

 S
E

C
T

IO
N

S
"T

E
R

R
A

" 
S

U
B

D
IV

IS
IO

N
T

A
X

 L
O

T
 3

 2
 0

7 
50

0
C

IT
Y

 O
F

 N
E

W
B

E
R

G

24
4-

00
5

8-
14

-1
3

R
R

1 
O

F
 1

Y
A

M
H

IL
L

 C
O

U
N

T
Y

, O
R

E
G

O
N

Attachment 2.b.

 
36 of 183



"Working Together For A Better Community-Serious About Service" 
Z:\WP5FILES\FILES.S\2012\SUB2-12-003 TERRA ESTATES\2013-0912 PC PACKET\PC MEMO_2013-0815.DOC 

 

   Planning and Building Department 
      P.O. Box 970 ▪ 414 E First Street ▪ Newberg, Oregon 97132  
      503-537-1240 ▪ Fax 503-537-1272 ▪ www.newbergoregon.gov 

 
 

MEMORANDUM 
 
 

TO:  Newberg Planning Commission 
FROM: Jessica Nunley, AICP 
SUBJECT: Terra Estates Subdivision – File No. SUB2-12-003 
DATE:  August 15, 2013  
 
At the August 8, 2013 Planning Commission hearing on the Terra Estates subdivision, the Planning 
Commission asked for clarification and more information about several issues, including: further 
comments from the Newberg School District; coordination with the Traffic Safety Commission on 
existing traffic issues in the neighborhood; notice to the neighborhood; development of nearby parks; 
and size of the subject lot.   
 
Newberg School District Response 
In our conversation with the school district, they indicated they don’t normally send detailed comments 
for every application.  Our normal practice is to send the application packet to the school district, along 
with other agencies1, for any comments they may have.  One option on our regular notification form is 
to check the box for “reviewed, no conflict”, which is what the school district checked after they 
reviewed the application.  This does not mean that the proposed subdivision will have zero impact, but 
that the school district is aware, has no current conflicts, and will keep a careful eye on enrollment as it 
occurs.  We asked the school district to submit more comprehensive comments in response to questions 
raised at the hearing, and their response is attached as Attachment 1.   
 
Coordination with Traffic Safety Commission  
The Traffic Safety Commission (TSC) has recently created a Neighborhood Traffic Calming Plan 
(2013), with a stated purpose to “establish a set of consistent standards offering the City of Newberg’s 
approach to potential traffic calming requests by the public, City staff, Newberg Traffic Safety 
Commission, and others.”  The plan includes sections on the evaluation process, funding of traffic 
calming measures, design and construction, traffic calming measures, and references.  The plan is 
attached as Attachment 2, along with a STOP Sign application memo from the Engineering Services 
Department.  Testimony at the Planning Commission hearing indicated there may be an existing traffic 
safety problem with speeding on Morris Street, and the potential need for a stop sign at Morris Street 
and Natalie Drive.  This issue is ripe for referral to the TSC so that they may evaluate the problem and 
recommend solutions.  Note that the plan does say that the city may subsidize some traffic calming 
projects, but the neighborhood would be expected to contribute, at a minimum, but may be assessed the 
full cost if warranted by the point scale.  The proposed development may also have to pay a fair share if 

                                                 
1 We send subdivision applications to the following departments and agencies for comments: city manager, public works 
director, building official, police, fire, finance, public works maintenance superintendent, legal, NW Natural, School District, 
PGE, Comcast, Frontier, Waste Management, CPRD, postmaster.  

Attachment 2.c. ~

 
37 of 183



"Working Together For A Better Community-Serious About Service" 
Z:\WP5FILES\FILES.S\2012\SUB2-12-003 TERRA ESTATES\2013-0912 PC PACKET\PC MEMO_2013-0815.DOC 

 

traffic calming was found to be warranted.  Staff is willing to refer this issue to the TSC at their October 
8, 2013 meeting for their consideration and study.      
 
Notice 
There were several mentions of lacking notice at the hearing.  Attachment 3 includes the applicant’s 
notice affidavits, notice mailing list, photos of the notice signs on Terrace Drive, and an email and photo 
regarding the notice sign on Petunia Drive.  We did receive comments from five neighbors at the first 
neighborhood meeting that they did not receive notice.  After checking the list and GIS records, we 
found that three of the neighbors were on the notice mailing list and two were outside the 500 foot 
notice boundary. Notice guidelines specify that notice signs must be posted 10 days before the first 
hearing.  The applicant posted the Terrace Drive frontage in June 2013, and posted a sign on the Petunia 
Drive frontage on July 25, 2013, which was at least 10 days prior to the hearing.   
 
Development of Area Parks 
The Darnell Wright Sports Complex/Crater Park is located north of Chehalem Valley Middle School, 
and contains “softball fields, walking and jogging trails, restrooms, playground equipment, picnic 
tables”, according to Chehalem Park and Recreation District (CPRD).  We spoke with Don Clements, 
CPRD Director, about whether any further improvements were planned for this park.  Mr. Clements 
indicated that the park was currently developed and that no further developments were planned at this 
time.  The Darnell Wright Sports Complex/Crater Park is accessible to the neighborhood by a public 
pathway off Jones Street, halfway in between Natalie Drive and Hilltop Drive, and is located within a 
half mile from the proposed subdivision.  Attachment 4 contains a map of Newberg parks along with 
several aerial photos of the park and the neighborhood.  
 
Lot Size 
The applicants hired a professional surveyor to survey the property.  The survey shows the lot size as 7.9 
acres, and also makes it clear the northern boundary of the lot is at more of an angle than is shown in 
GIS data.  The assessor’s office, and subsequently the city’s GIS data, has the property at 7.67 acres and 
with a more straight line northern boundary.   It is fairly common to have a discrepancy in things such as 
lot sizes when you are relying on data from the assessor’s office and GIS versus an actual survey of 
property.  Where things are resolved in the field are through actual on the ground surveys done by a 
professional surveyor.  Therefore, the city’s staff report uses the more accurate 7.9 acre number.  This 
doesn’t really change any analysis of the project as the project proposal still depends on how things fit 
with extending roads, creating adequate access for all proposed lots, and creating a lot layout plan that 
fits the code criteria. 
 
 
Attachments: 

1. Newberg School District comments 
2. Neighborhood Traffic Calming Plan and Engineering Services Department memo 
3. Notice information for File No. SUB2-12-003 
4. Neighborhood parks information 

Attachment 2.c. ~

 
38 of 183



Attachment 1 
to PC Memo, 8/15/13

Attachment 2.c. ~

 
39 of 183



Attachment 2 
to PC Memo, 8/15/13

Attachment 2.c. ~

 
40 of 183



Attachment 2 
to PC Memo, 8/15/13

Attachment 2.c. ~

 
41 of 183



Attachment 2 
to PC Memo, 8/15/13

Attachment 2.c. ~

 
42 of 183



Attachment 2 
to PC Memo, 8/15/13

Attachment 2.c. ~

 
43 of 183



Attachment 2 
to PC Memo, 8/15/13

Attachment 2.c. ~

 
44 of 183



Attachment 2 
to PC Memo, 8/15/13

Attachment 2.c. ~

 
45 of 183



Attachment 2 
to PC Memo, 8/15/13

Attachment 2.c. ~

 
46 of 183



Attachment 2 
to PC Memo, 8/15/13

Attachment 2.c. ~

 
47 of 183



Attachment 2 
to PC Memo, 8/15/13

Attachment 2.c. ~

 
48 of 183



Attachment 2 
to PC Memo, 8/15/13

Attachment 2.c. ~

 
49 of 183



Attachment 2 
to PC Memo, 8/15/13

Attachment 2.c. ~

 
50 of 183



Attachment 2 
to PC Memo, 8/15/13

Attachment 2.c. ~

 
51 of 183



Attachment 3 
to PC Memo, 8/15/13

Attachment 2.c. ~

 
52 of 183



Attachment 3 
to PC Memo, 8/15/13

Attachment 2.c. ~

 
53 of 183



Attachment 3 
to PC Memo, 8/15/13

Attachment 2.c. ~

 
54 of 183



Attachment 3 
to PC Memo, 8/15/13

Attachment 2.c. ~

 
55 of 183



Attachment 3 
to PC Memo, 8/15/13

Attachment 2.c. ~

 
56 of 183



Attachment 3 
to PC Memo, 8/15/13

Attachment 2.c. ~

 
57 of 183



Attachment 3 
to PC Memo, 8/15/13

Attachment 2.c. ~

 
58 of 183



Attachment 3 
to PC Memo, 8/15/13

Attachment 2.c. ~

 
59 of 183



Attachment 3 
to PC Memo, 8/15/13

Attachment 2.c. ~

 
60 of 183



Attachment 3 
to PC Memo, 8/15/13

Attachment 2.c. ~

 
61 of 183



Attachment 3 
to PC Memo, 8/15/13

Attachment 2.c. ~

 
62 of 183



Attachment 3 
to PC Memo, 8/15/13

Attachment 2.c. ~

 
63 of 183



Attachment 3 
to PC Memo, 8/15/13

Attachment 2.c. ~

 
64 of 183



Attachment 3 
to PC Memo, 8/15/13

Attachment 2.c. ~

 
65 of 183



Attachment 3 
to PC Memo, 8/15/13

Attachment 2.c. ~

 
66 of 183



Attachment 3 
to PC Memo, 8/15/13

Attachment 2.c. ~

 
67 of 183



Attachment 3 
to PC Memo, 8/15/13

Attachment 2.c. ~

 
68 of 183



Newberg Area Parks - Google Maps

https://maps.google.com/...F8&ll=45.308338,-122.949715&spn=0.031993,0.077162&t=m&z=14&vpsrc=6&ei=6fkMUsfABuWZiQLo4YHQCg&pw=2[08/15/2013 9:01:08 AM]

©2013 Google - Map data ©2013 Google - Terms of Use

1 mi

1 km

Newberg Area Parks

Newberg and Dundee Parks

Public · 27,234 views

Created on May 27, 2010 · By Scott ·  Updated Jul 15

Herbert Hoover Park

Print

Attachment 4 
to PC Memo, 8/15/13

Attachment 2.c. ~

 
69 of 183

http://www.google.com/intl/en_us/help/terms_maps.html
https://maps.google.com/maps/user?uid=205932115824091955484&hl=en&gl=us
javascript:void(0)
javascript:void(0)
https://maps.google.com/maps?ct=reset


Newberg Area Parks - Google Maps

https://maps.google.com/...F8&ll=45.308338,-122.949715&spn=0.031993,0.077162&t=m&z=14&vpsrc=6&ei=6fkMUsfABuWZiQLo4YHQCg&pw=2[08/15/2013 9:01:08 AM]

114 S River St, Newberg

 

Summary:  Frisbee Golf, Restrooms, Picnic Tables, Walking and Jogging trails.

(click for details)

411 S. Howard St., Newberg

 

Summary:  Covered Area, Playground Equipment, Restrooms, Walking and Jogging Trails, Picnic Tables.

(click for details)

1802 Haworth Ave., Newberg

 

Summary:  Basketball Court, Playground Equipment, Restrooms, Walking and Jogging Trails, Picnic Tables.

(click for details)

3815 Vittoria Way, Newberg

 

Memorial Park

Babe Nicklous Pool Park

Spring Meadow Park

Attachment 4 
to PC Memo, 8/15/13

Attachment 2.c. ~

 
70 of 183

http://www.cprdnewberg.org/ParksFacilities/parks.shtml#HooverPark
http://www.cprdnewberg.org/ParksFacilities/parks.shtml#MemorialPark
http://www.cprdnewberg.org/ParksFacilities/parks.shtml#PoolPark


Newberg Area Parks - Google Maps

https://maps.google.com/...F8&ll=45.308338,-122.949715&spn=0.031993,0.077162&t=m&z=14&vpsrc=6&ei=6fkMUsfABuWZiQLo4YHQCg&pw=2[08/15/2013 9:01:08 AM]

Summary:  Basketball Court,Playground Equipment, Walking and Jogging Trails, Picnic Tables.

(click for details)

1310 E. 10th St., Newberg

 

Summary:  Basketball Court, Playground Equipment, Picnic Tables.

(click for details)

1201 S. Blaine St., Newberg

 

Summary:  Skateboard Park, BMX Track, Walking and Jogging Trails, Covered Shelter, Playground Equipment, Restrooms,

Picnic Tables, Frisbee Golf Course.

(click for details)

415 E. Sheridan St., Newberg

 

Summary:  Playground Equipment, Picnic Tables.

(click for details)

Scott Leavitt Park

Ewing Young Park

Rotary Centennial Park

Dundee Billick Park

Attachment 4 
to PC Memo, 8/15/13

Attachment 2.c. ~

 
71 of 183

http://www.cprdnewberg.org/ParksFacilities/parks.shtml#SpringMeadowPark
http://www.cprdnewberg.org/ParksFacilities/parks.shtml#LeavittPark
http://www.cprdnewberg.org/ParksFacilities/parks.shtml#EwingYoungPark
http://www.cprdnewberg.org/ParksFacilities/parks.shtml#CentennialPark


Newberg Area Parks - Google Maps

https://maps.google.com/...F8&ll=45.308338,-122.949715&spn=0.031993,0.077162&t=m&z=14&vpsrc=6&ei=6fkMUsfABuWZiQLo4YHQCg&pw=2[08/15/2013 9:01:08 AM]

320 5th St., Dundee

 

Summary:  Basketball Court, Covered Area, Horseshoe Pits, Playground Equipment, Restrooms, Soccer Fields, Softball Fields,

Tennis Courts, Walking and Jogging Trails, Picnic Tables.

(click for details)

1155 S. W. Falcon Crest Dr., Dundee

 

Summary:  Undeveloped.

(click for details)

1070 S.W. Falcon Crest Dr., Dundee

 

Summary:  Basketball Court, Playground Equipment, Walking and Jogging Trails, Picnic Benches.

(click for details)

Dundee Scenic Overlook

Falcon Crest Park

Crabtree Park

Attachment 4 
to PC Memo, 8/15/13

Attachment 2.c. ~

 
72 of 183

http://www.cprdnewberg.org/ParksFacilities/parks.shtml#BillickPark
http://www.cprdnewberg.org/ParksFacilities/parks.shtml#DundeeOverlook
http://www.cprdnewberg.org/ParksFacilities/parks.shtml#FalconCrestPark


Newberg Area Parks - Google Maps

https://maps.google.com/...F8&ll=45.308338,-122.949715&spn=0.031993,0.077162&t=m&z=14&vpsrc=6&ei=6fkMUsfABuWZiQLo4YHQCg&pw=2[08/15/2013 9:01:08 AM]

Worden Hill Rd., Dundee

 

Summary:  Covered Area, Horseshoe Pits, Playground Equipment, Restrooms, Walkingand Jogging Trails, Picnic Tables.

(click for details)

N Center St & Hilltop Dr, Newberg

 

Summary: Playground Equipment,  Picnic Tables

 

(click for details)

Between N. College & N. Main St, Newberg

 

Summary: Basketball Court, Covered Area, Horseshoe Pits, Playground Equipment,  Restrooms, Soccer Fields, Softball Fields,

Tennis Courts, Walking and Jogging Trails, Picnic Tables

 

(click for details)

Oak Knoll Tot Lot

Jaquith Park

College Park

Attachment 4 
to PC Memo, 8/15/13

Attachment 2.c. ~

 
73 of 183

http://www.cprdnewberg.org/ParksFacilities/parks.shtml#CrabtreePark
http://www.cprdnewberg.org/ParksFacilities/parks.shtml#OakKnollPark
http://www.cpdnewberg.org/ParksFacilities/parks.shtml#JaquithPark


Newberg Area Parks - Google Maps

https://maps.google.com/...F8&ll=45.308338,-122.949715&spn=0.031993,0.077162&t=m&z=14&vpsrc=6&ei=6fkMUsfABuWZiQLo4YHQCg&pw=2[08/15/2013 9:01:08 AM]

 

1200 Sierra Vista St, Newberg

 

Summary: Basketball Court,  Horseshoe Pits, Playground Equipment, Walking and Jogging Trails, Picnic Tables

 

(click for details)

 

1378 N Main St, Newberg

 

Summary: Basketball Court, Covered Area, Horseshoe Pits, Playground Equipment,  Restrooms, Soccer Fields, Softball Fields,

Tennis Courts, Walking and Jogging Trails, Picnic Tables

 

(click for details)

303 W Foothills Dr, Newberg

 

Summary:  Softball Fields, Walking and Jogging Trails, Restrooms, Playground Equipment, Picnic Tables.

(click for details)

Jaquith Park Softball Fields

Darnell Wright Sports Complex

Armory Park

Attachment 4 
to PC Memo, 8/15/13

Attachment 2.c. ~

 
74 of 183

http://www.cprdnewberg.org/ParksFacilities/parks.shtml#CollegePark
http://www.cprdnewberg.org/ParksFacilities/parks.shtml#JaquithPark
http://www.cprdnewberg.org/ParksFacilities/parks.shtml#DarnellWright


Newberg Area Parks - Google Maps

https://maps.google.com/...F8&ll=45.308338,-122.949715&spn=0.031993,0.077162&t=m&z=14&vpsrc=6&ei=6fkMUsfABuWZiQLo4YHQCg&pw=2[08/15/2013 9:01:08 AM]

 

620 N. Morton St, Newberg

 

Summary: Playground Equipment, Picnic Tables.

 

(click for details)

 

 201 E Mountainview Rd, Newberg

 

Summary: asketball Courts, Playground Equipment, Walking and Jogging Trails,

Picnic Tables.

 

(click for details)

 

 

 

 1060 E. Edgewood Dr., Newberg

 

Summary: This neighborhood park features a basketball court, playground,

climbing structure and is wrapped by a walking trail.

 

(click for details)

 

3575 Oak Grove St

 

Summary: This quite little spot suprisingly near the bustle of our shopping

centers holds White Oak trees and picnic tables.

 

(click for details)

 

Buckley Park

Tom Gail Park

White Oak Park

Gladys Park

Attachment 4 
to PC Memo, 8/15/13

Attachment 2.c. ~

 
75 of 183

http://www.cprdnewberg.org/ParksFacilities/parks.shtml
http://www.cprdnewberg.org/ParksFacilities/parks.shtml
http://www.cprdnewberg.org/ParksFacilities/parks.shtml
http://cprd-new.cprdnewberg.org/ParksFacilities/parks.shtml


Newberg Area Parks - Google Maps

https://maps.google.com/...F8&ll=45.308338,-122.949715&spn=0.031993,0.077162&t=m&z=14&vpsrc=6&ei=6fkMUsfABuWZiQLo4YHQCg&pw=2[08/15/2013 9:01:08 AM]

3720 Mistletoe Dr, Newberg

 

Summary: Basketball Court, Playground Equipment, Picnic Tables.

 

(click for details)

 

Eagle St, Newberg

 

Summary: Outstanding high elevation view, paths, wild roses from NHS, a nature-style playground, benches, basketball court, a

large netted climbing dome, and a 30' stainless steel slide.

 

(click for more)

700 SE Locust St, Dundee

 

Summary: Basketball Court, Playground Equipment, 2 Picnic Tables

(click for more)

Schaad Park

Fortune Park

Attachment 4 
to PC Memo, 8/15/13

Attachment 2.c. ~

 
76 of 183

http://cprd-new.cprdnewberg.org/ParksFacilities/parks.shtml
http://cprd-new.cprdnewberg.org/ParksFacilities/parks.shtml
http://cprd-new.cprdnewberg.org/ParksFacilities/parks.shtml


D
ar

ne
ll 

W
ri

gh
t S

po
rt

s 
Co

m
pl

ex
/C

ra
te

r P
ar

k 

 

 
 

D
ar

ne
ll 

W
ri

gh
t S

po
rt

s 
Co

m
pl

ex
/ 

Cr
at

er
 P

ar
k 

Pu
bl

ic
 P

at
hw

ay
 

Pr
op

os
ed

 
Su

bd
iv

is
io

n 

Attachment 4 
to PC Memo, 8/15/13

Attachment 2.c. ~

 
77 of 183



 

 

D
ar

ne
ll 

W
ri

gh
t S

po
rt

s 
Co

m
pl

ex
/ 

Cr
at

er
 P

ar
k 

Pu
bl

ic
 P

at
hw

ay
 

Attachment 4 
to PC Memo, 8/15/13

Attachment 2.c. ~

 
78 of 183



Attachment 2.d.

 
79 of 183



Attachment 2.d.

 
80 of 183



Attachment 2.d.

 
81 of 183



Attachment 2.d.

 
82 of 183



Attachment 2.d.

 
83 of 183



Attachment 2.d.

 
84 of 183



Attachment 2.d.

 
85 of 183



Attachment 2.d.

 
86 of 183



Attachment 2.d.

 
87 of 183



Attachment 2.d.

 
88 of 183



Attachment 2.d.

 
89 of 183



Attachment 2.d.

 
90 of 183



Attachment 2.d.

 
91 of 183



Attachment 2.d.

 
92 of 183



Attachment 2.d.

 
93 of 183



Attachment 2.d.

 
94 of 183



Attachment 2.d.

 
95 of 183



Attachment 2.d.

 
96 of 183



Attachment 2.d.

 
97 of 183



Attachment 2.d.

 
98 of 183



Attachment 2.d.

 
99 of 183



Attachment 2.d.

 
100 of 183



Attachment 2.d.

 
101 of 183



Attachment 2.d.

 
102 of 183



Attachment 2.d.

 
103 of 183



Attachment 2.d.

 
104 of 183



Attachment 2.d.

 
105 of 183



Attachment 2.d.

 
106 of 183



Attachment 2.d.

 
107 of 183



Attachment 2.d.

 
108 of 183



Attachment 2.d.

 
109 of 183



ATTACHMENT 3 (2 pages) 
 
 

To: barton.brierley@newbergoregon.gov 
Cc: jessica.nunley@newbergoregon.gov 
 
 
I understand that.  So how many 5000 square foot lots could be built out on one 
acre? 
 
 C. In calculating lot area for this section, lot area does not include land within public or 
private streets. In calculating lot area for maximum lot area/minimum density 
requirements, lot area does not include land within stream corridors, land reserved for 
public parks or open spaces, commons buildings, land for preservation of natural, scenic, 
or historic resources, land on slopes exceeding 15 percent or for avoidance of identified 
natural hazards, land in shared access easements, public walkways, or entirely used for 
utilities, land held in reserve in accordance with a future development plan, or land for 
uses not appurtenant to the residence. 
 
This is the question I have been asking you since July 26, Barton.  What is the formula 
that the city uses to determine the density limit in the R‐1 district?  I am not asking for 
the philosophy of density calculations.  It is your responsibility, as Director of City 
Planning to provide that information to any citizen in a timely and understandable 
manner. To date, that has not been my experience. 
 
I am still waiting for an answer. 
 
Jane 

Up to 8.7 lots could be created out of one acre (actually 8, since you can’t get 0.7 of a 
lot) 

1 acre x 43,560 square feet per acre/5,000 square feet per lot = 8.7 lots 

 It would be rare to achieve that many lots, as usually some street dedication would be 
required. (August 14 email from director) 

  

Vocabulary from August 12 email from director: 

Attachment 2.d.

 
110 of 183



Gross buildable acre:  This is an acre of land (43,560 square feet) before it is developed 
with roads, sidewalks, utilities, buildings or other development.  It excludes unbuildable 
areas, which in Newberg are mostly areas next to streams. 

 Net buildable acre:  This is an acre of land (43,560 square feet) that already has all 
needed roads, sidewalks, utilities, and similar deductions taken out. 

 For planning purposes, we estimate that 1.0 gross buildable acre yields about 0.75 net 
buildable acres, because about 25% of the land is used for roads, sidewalks, utilities, 
etc.  This amount can vary on individual projects which may require more or less right‐
of‐way (or even none). 

Attachment 2.d.

 
111 of 183



Attachment 2.d.

 
112 of 183



Attachment 2.d.

 
113 of 183



Attachment 2.d.

 
114 of 183



From: Barton Brierley
To: "jane greller"
Cc: Jessica Nunley
Subject: RE: Density limits in revised zoning use table
Date: Wednesday, August 14, 2013 10:08:00 AM

Up to 8.7 lots could be created out of one acre (actually 8, since you can’t get 0.7 of a lot)
 
1 acre x 43,560 square feet per acre/5,000 square feet per lot = 8.7 lots
 
It would be rare to achieve that many lots, as usually some street dedication would be required.
 
Might I suggest we talk via phone if you’d like more information.
 
Barton Brierley, AICP
Planning and Building Director
City of Newberg
P.O. Box 970, Newberg, OR  97132
503-537-1212    Fax 503-537-1272
barton.brierley@newbergoregon.gov
 

From: jane greller [mailto:janeogrell@hotmail.com] 
Sent: Wednesday, August 14, 2013 9:12 AM
To: Barton Brierley
Cc: Jessica Nunley
Subject: RE: Density limits in revised zoning use table
 
I understand that.  So how many 5000 square foot lots could be built out on one acre?
 
 
 C. In calculating lot area for this section, lot area does not include land within public or private
streets. In calculating lot area for maximum lot area/minimum density requirements, lot area does
not include land within stream corridors, land reserved for public parks or open spaces, commons
buildings, land for preservation of natural, scenic, or historic resources, land on slopes exceeding
15 percent or for avoidance of identified natural hazards, land in shared access easements, public
walkways, or entirely used for utilities, land held in reserve in accordance with a future
development plan, or land for uses not appurtenant to the residence.
 
This is the question I have been asking you since July 26, Barton.  What is the
formula that the city uses to determine the density limit in the R-1 district?  I am
not asking for the philosophy of density calculations.  It is your responsibility, as
Director of City Planning to provide that information to any citizen in a timely and
understandable manner. To date, that has not been my experience.
 
I am still waiting for an answer.
 
Jane

Attachment 2.e.

 
115 of 183

mailto:janeogrell@hotmail.com
mailto:jessica.nunley@newbergoregon.gov


 

From: barton.brierley@newbergoregon.gov
To: janeogrell@hotmail.com
CC: jessica.nunley@newbergoregon.gov
Subject: RE: Density limits in revised zoning use table
Date: Wed, 14 Aug 2013 15:59:48 +0000

As stated below:

 

In the R-1 district, there shall be a minimum of 5,000 square feet per dwelling unit.

 

This was determined by the City Council by ordinance and not by a particular formula, though in a
previous e-mail I shared with you some of the logic in choosing that number.   Also note, the
proposed revisions to the zoning table do not change this section or the density allowed in R-1.

 

Barton Brierley, AICP

Planning and Building Director

City of Newberg

P.O. Box 970, Newberg, OR  97132

503-537-1212    Fax 503-537-1272

barton.brierley@newbergoregon.gov

 

From: jane greller [mailto:janeogrell@hotmail.com] 
Sent: Tuesday, August 13, 2013 3:11 PM
To: Barton Brierley
Subject: RE: Density limits in revised zoning use table

 

I am asking you specifically what that number is for the R-1 district.  I am also asking what
the formula is for determining that number.

 

Jane

Attachment 2.e.

 
116 of 183

mailto:barton.brierley@newbergoregon.gov
mailto:janeogrell@hotmail.com
mailto:jessica.nunley@newbergoregon.gov
mailto:barton.brierley@newbergoregon.gov
mailto:janeogrell@hotmail.com


From: barton.brierley@newbergoregon.gov
To: janeogrell@hotmail.com
Subject: RE: Density limits in revised zoning use table
Date: Tue, 13 Aug 2013 22:06:30 +0000

Here is that section.  These were established by the City Council by ordinance.

 

15.405.010 Lot area – Lot areas per dwelling unit.

A. In the following districts, each lot or development site shall have an area as shown below except
as otherwise permitted by this code:

 

1. In the R-1 district, each lot or development site shall have a minimum area of 5,000 square feet
or as may be established by a subdistrict. The average size of lots in a subdivision intended for
single-family development shall not exceed 10,000 square feet.

 

2. In the R-2, R-3, and RP districts, each lot or development site shall have a minimum area of 3,000
square feet or as may be established by a subdistrict. In the R-2 and R-P districts, the average size
of lots in a subdivision intended for single-family development shall not exceed 5,000 square feet.

 

3. In the AI, AR, C-1, C-2, and C-3 districts, each lot or development site shall have a minimum area
of 5,000 square feet or as may be established by a subdistrict.

 

4. In the M-1, M-2 and M-3 districts, each lot or development site shall have a minimum area of
20,000 square feet.

 

5. Institutional districts shall have a minimum size of five contiguous acres in order to create a large
enough campus to support institutional uses; however, additions to the district may be made in
increments of any size.

 

6. Within the commercial zoning district(s) of the riverfront overlay subdistrict, there is no minimum
lot size required, provided the other standards of this code can be met.

Attachment 2.e.

 
117 of 183

mailto:barton.brierley@newbergoregon.gov
mailto:janeogrell@hotmail.com


 

B. Lot or Development Site Area per Dwelling Unit.

 

1. In the R-1 district, there shall be a minimum of 5,000 square feet per dwelling unit.

 

2. In the R-2, AR, and R-P districts, there shall be a minimum of 3,000 square feet of lot or
development site area per dwelling unit. In the R-2 and R-P districts, lots or development sites in
excess of 15,000 square feet used for multiple single-family, duplex or multiple-family dwellings
shall be developed at a minimum of one dwelling per 5,000 square feet lot area.

 

3. In the R-3 district, there shall be a minimum of 1,500 square feet of lot or development site area
per dwelling unit. Lots or development sites in excess of 15,000 square feet used for multiple single-
family, duplex or multiple-family dwellings shall be developed at a minimum of one dwelling per
2,500 square feet lot area.

 

C. In calculating lot area for this section, lot area does not include land within public or private
streets. In calculating lot area for maximum lot area/minimum density requirements, lot area does
not include land within stream corridors, land reserved for public parks or open spaces, commons
buildings, land for preservation of natural, scenic, or historic resources, land on slopes exceeding 15
percent or for avoidance of identified natural hazards, land in shared access easements, public
walkways, or entirely used for utilities, land held in reserve in accordance with a future
development plan, or land for uses not appurtenant to the residence.

 

D. Lot size averaging is allowed for any subdivision. Some lots may be under the minimum lot size
required in the zone where the subdivision is located, as long as the average size of all lots is at
least the minimum lot size. [Ord. 2730 § 1 (Exh. A (2)), 10-18-10; Ord. 2720 § 1(14), 11-2-09; Ord.
2647, 6-5-06; Ord. 2564, 4-15-02; Ord. 2507, 3-1-99; Ord. 2451, 12-2-96. Code 2001 § 151.565.]

 

 

Barton Brierley, AICP

Planning and Building Director

City of Newberg

Attachment 2.e.

 
118 of 183



P.O. Box 970, Newberg, OR  97132

503-537-1212    Fax 503-537-1272

barton.brierley@newbergoregon.gov

 

From: jane greller [mailto:janeogrell@hotmail.com] 
Sent: Tuesday, August 13, 2013 12:57 PM
To: Barton Brierley
Cc: Jessica Nunley
Subject: Density limits in revised zoning use table

 

Hello, Barton,

 

On the proposed revised zoning use table (draft of the Zoning Use Table Ordinance 2013-
2763), section 200 RESIDENTIAL USES:  line item for Dwelling, single-family detached notes:

 

Subject to density limits of 15.405.010(B)

 

 

What is that limit?

What is the formula used to determine that limit?

 

Thanks,

Jane

Attachment 2.e.

 
119 of 183

mailto:barton.brierley@newbergoregon.gov
mailto:janeogrell@hotmail.com


1

Barton Brierley

From: Barton Brierley
Sent: Wednesday, August 07, 2013 3:14 PM
To: 'jane greller'
Cc: Jessica Nunley
Subject: RE: planning commission hearing

We can have those things at the commission meeting. 
 
In answer to your other questions: 
 
The Newberg Comprehensive Plan sets a target density or planned density for Low Density Residential 
areas of 4.4 dwelling units per gross buildable acre.   It does not establish a density limit.   The Newberg 
Development Code establishes a minimum of 5,000 square feet per dwelling unit for the R‐1 zone. 
 
The Newberg Comprehensive Plan has been updated a number of times to reflect future land needs.   It 
continues to be a guiding document for future land uses.  A number of sections have been updated, 
including needs for residential, commercial, and industrial land to reflect needs through 2025, 2032, 
and/or beyond.  
 
Barton Brierley, AICP 
Planning and Building Director 
City of Newberg 
P.O. Box 970, Newberg, OR  97132 
503‐537‐1212    Fax 503‐537‐1272 
barton.brierley@newbergoregon.gov 
 

From: jane greller [mailto:janeogrell@hotmail.com]  
Sent: Wednesday, August 07, 2013 10:57 AM 
To: Barton Brierley 
Subject: planning commission hearing 
 
Hello, Barton, 
 
I wasn't sure what would be available at the planning commission hearing for Terrace Estates 
on Thursday, August 8. 
Could you please provide a small table, an easel, and a printed copy of the zoning use map as 
well as the comprehensive plan map? 
 
If you could email me the answers to those questions that we submitted(in the supplement), 
that would be helpful. 
 
Thanks, 
Jane 

Attachment 2.e.

 
120 of 183



1

Barton Brierley

From: Barton Brierley
Sent: Thursday, August 01, 2013 5:30 PM
To: 'jane greller'
Cc: Jessica Nunley
Subject: RE: target density

Suppose a property owner has a 10 acre piece of property.  They want to build 100 townhouse units on 
that property.  Their proposal would be 10 dwelling units per gross buildable acre (100 units/10 gross 
buildable acres).   They build several streets through the property, dedicate some land along the 
frontage, and build a storm water detention pond.  They end up with 7.5 acres of private property, as 
2.5 acres has been dedicated for these other uses.  They build their 100 townhouses on the remaining 
property.  This is still 10 units per gross buildable acre, and also can be counted as 13.3 units/net 
buildable acre (100 units/7.5 net buildable acres). 
 
Some documents you read do this math differently, that’s why I note the caution. 
 
Barton Brierley, AICP 
Planning and Building Director 
City of Newberg 
P.O. Box 970, Newberg, OR  97132 
503‐537‐1212    Fax 503‐537‐1272 
barton.brierley@newbergoregon.gov 
 

From: jane greller [mailto:janeogrell@hotmail.com]  
Sent: Thursday, August 01, 2013 10:38 AM 
To: Barton Brierley 
Cc: Jessica Nunley 
Subject: Re: target density 
 
Can you provide with an appropriate context to use the definition of "net buildable" acre? 
 
Sent from my iPhone 
 
On Aug 1, 2013, at 8:51 AM, "Barton Brierley" <barton.brierley@newbergoregon.gov> wrote: 

The definition of “net buildable acre” depends on the context.   It normally means one 
acre of land that can be developed and does not require any further land to be 
dedicated or set aside for streets, sidewalks, utilities, open space, natural resource 
preservation, or similar set asides.  Some professionals and documents use the term 
differently. 
  
Barton Brierley, AICP 
Planning and Building Director 
City of Newberg 

Attachment 2.e.

 
121 of 183



2

P.O. Box 970, Newberg, OR  97132 
503‐537‐1212    Fax 503‐537‐1272 
barton.brierley@newbergoregon.gov 
  

From: jane greller [mailto:janeogrell@hotmail.com]  
Sent: Wednesday, July 31, 2013 5:40 PM 
To: Barton Brierley 
Cc: Jessica Nunley 
Subject: Re: target density 
  
Great! What would the definition of "net buildable acre" be? 
 
Sent from my iPhone 
 
On Jul 31, 2013, at 4:50 PM, "Barton Brierley" 
<barton.brierley@newbergoregon.gov> wrote: 

Those are good questions.   Let me do my best to direct a response to 
that Sixth Grade student: 
  
Newberg’s vision is guided by the city’s comprehensive plan, which is 
adopted by City Council.  The comprehensive plan seeks to provide all 
the things Newberg needs to be a great community: places for everyone 
to live, work, play, worship, shop, and more.  The target densities are 
based on the community’s choice about how to best meet these needs.  
  The city arrived at this based on asking:  “How can Newberg be the 
best community for you and your classmates?”  This led to a number of 
other questions:  “Where will you play?” “Where will you shop?”  
“Where will you work?” “How will you get around town”  “How can we 
keep what’s good and improve the community you will live in?”  The city 
engaged the community in many forums to help find answers to these 
questions. 
  
A fundamental question the city asked is “where will you live?”   We 
hope that you will choose to and continue to be able to live in 
Newberg.  In order to keep that a possibility, the city studied both your 
probable choices of where to live and the economics of what you will be 
able to afford.  Those studies tell us that,  out of a group of 10 of your 
classmates: 
  
4 will live in apartments 
1 will live in a duplex, townhouse, or manufactured home 
1 will live in a detached single family home on a lot under 5,000 square 
feet in size. 
2 will live in a detached single family home on a lot between 5,000 and 
7,500 square feet. 

Attachment 2.e.

 
122 of 183



3

2 will live in a detached single family home on a lot over 7,500 square 
feet in size.  
  
The city then sought and continues to seek to make sure there is 
enough land with the proper zoning so that you will have a place to 
continue to make your home in Newberg.  The city generally designates 
land in three classifications: 
  
High Density Residential (For most of the apartments) 
  
Medium Density Residential (For most of the duplexes, townhouses, 
manufactured homes, and single family homes on lots under 5,000 
square feet) 
  
Low Density Residential (for most of the single family homes on lots 
5,000 square feet and over):  The City has planned for Low Density 
Residential areas to be built at 4.4 dwelling units per gross buildable 
acre since the 1970’s.   This corresponds roughly to an average of one 
house per 7,500 square feet (43,560 sf/ac / 4.4 du/ac x 75% (25% 
deducted for streets etc.) = 7,425 sf/du.) 
  
A few years ago, the city did a study to see whether development in low 
density residential areas was in fact being developed according to the 
plan.  Those studies found that these areas were being developed at 
about 3.6 dwelling units per acre, or only about 80% of the planned 
density.   One of the main reasons for this was that the zoning code 
required all the lots to be at least 7,500 square feet, whereas the 
comprehensive plan and projected land needs was  for an average of  
about one house per 7,500 square feet.  Thus, it was clear then that the 
city needed to change its minimum lot size to allow smaller than 7,500 
square foot lots in low density residential areas to provide the kind of 
homes half of your classmates looking to live in low density residential 
areas will need.  In 2010 this is what the city chose to do. 
  
You asked for some vocabulary clarification: 
  
1.            Dwelling unit:  This is an independent living unit for one family 
or group of people.  It can be a house, an apartment unit, or one side of 
a duplex.  A fourplex would be four dwelling units.  A duplex would be 
two dwelling units. 
  
2.            Density:  This is the number of dwelling units in a certain area 
of land.  It is usually expressed as the number of dwelling units per acre 
of land.  
  
3.            Target density:  This is the density the community is trying to 
get on a certain area of land. 

Attachment 2.e.

 
123 of 183



4

  
4.            Planned density:  This is the density the community is counting 
on being provided on a certain area of land.  This is essentially the same 
the target density. 
  
5.            Gross buildable acre:  This is an acre of land (43,560 square 
feet, or an area roughly 200 feet by 200 feet) before it is developed with 
roads, sidewalks, utilities, buildings or other development.  It excludes 
unbuildable areas, which in Newberg are mostly areas next to streams. 
  
6.             Density limits:  This the highest number of dwelling units that 
are allowed on a certain area of land. 
  
7.            Units per gross acre:  This is the number of dwelling units that 
are placed on a certain area of land.  It includes the entire area of land 
including the streets, sidewalks, utilities, small pocket parks, etc.   
Basically, it’s the number dwelling units you would count if you drew a 
square on a map to scale one acre and counted the number of dwelling 
units in that square. 
  
8.            Units per net acre:  This is the number of dwelling units that are 
placed in a certain area of land excluding the street, sidewalks, utilities, 
pocket parks, etc.  Newberg estimates that 25% of the land area is used 
in these other areas. 
  
9.            Until 2010, Through 2010:  These depend on the context. 
  Newberg’s comprehensive plan was adopted in 1979, updated in 1991, 
and has been updated a number of times since.  Some of the older 
provisions still refer to “until 2010” or “through 2010” as a planning 
horizon as that used to be 20 years away. 
  
I hope this information helps. 
  
  
Barton Brierley, AICP 
Planning and Building Director 
City of Newberg 
P.O. Box 970, Newberg, OR  97132 
503‐537‐1212    Fax 503‐537‐1272 
barton.brierley@newbergoregon.gov 
  

From: jane greller [mailto:janeogrell@hotmail.com]  
Sent: Tuesday, July 30, 2013 3:06 PM 
To: Barton Brierley 
Subject: RE: target density 
  

Attachment 2.e.

 
124 of 183



5

Help, again, Barton!  I have those figures before me already, but I 
don't think you are answering my question. 
  
Imagine I am a 6th grader at Antonia Crater, working on my civics 
project.  The question I'm directing to you is this: 
  
Hello, Mr. Brierley, 
  
My class is studying densities in our neighborhood. Can you please 
tell me how our city of Newberg arrived at the 4.4 units (I think 
that means houses) per gross acre? What is a gross acre? My report 
is due on Monday and it would help me out a lot if you could show 
me how you did that. 
  
Thank you,  
Jane Greller, Mrs. Smith's class 

 
From: barton.brierley@newbergoregon.gov 
To: janeogrell@hotmail.com 
Subject: RE: target density 
Date: Tue, 30 Jul 2013 16:24:38 +0000 

Those figures come from the Newberg Comprehensive Plan. See the 
attached. 

  

Barton Brierley, AICP 

Planning and Building Director 

City of Newberg 

P.O. Box 970, Newberg, OR  97132 

503‐537‐1212    Fax 503‐537‐1272 

barton.brierley@newbergoregon.gov 

  

From: jane greller [mailto:janeogrell@hotmail.com]  
Sent: Monday, July 29, 2013 2:40 PM 
To: Barton Brierley 
Subject: Re: target density 

Attachment 2.e.

 
125 of 183



 

  
 June 2013 Page 25 
 C:\Users\morgan\Desktop\Comprehensive Plan June 2013.doc 

c. Commercial development will be encouraged to be clustered and to develop 
off-street parking facilities in conjunction with other nearby developments. 

 
d. To maintain the integrity and function of the highway system, new 

commercial development shall be discouraged along the route of any 
limited access highway. 

 
e. Deleted by Ordinance 2004-2602, September 29, 2004 

 
 4. Riverfront District Policies 
 

a. The City will enhance commercial diversity and activity in the Riverfront 
area by encouraging a business mix that provides goods and services to 
satisfy neighborhood and visitor needs and that also draws people from the 
greater region. 

 
b. The City will encourage development of the Riverfront District as a distinct 

river-oriented center that can help support a variety of local businesses. 
 

c. The City will encourage the development of commercial and retail uses that 
have a strong reason for locating near the Riverfront and support the vision 
of the Riverfront District as a walkable and bikeable mixed-use area. 
(Ordinance 2002-2564, April 15, 2002) 

 
I. HOUSING 
 

GOAL: To provide for diversity in the type, density and location of housing within 
the City to ensure there is an adequate supply of affordable housing units to 
meet the needs of City residents of various income levels. 

   (Ordinance 2006-2534) 
    

POLICIES: 
 

1. Density Policies 
 

a. Density rather than housing type shall be the most important development 
criteria and shall be used to classify different types of residential areas on 
the plan. 

 
b. Target densities shall be as follows: 

 

Attachment 2.e.

 
126 of 183



 

  
 June 2013 Page 26 
 C:\Users\morgan\Desktop\Comprehensive Plan June 2013.doc 

                                                         Units Per 
Classification    Gross Acre* 

 
Urban Low Density   4.4 

 
Urban Medium Density  9 

 
Urban High Density   16.5 
*Includes a 25 percent allowance for streets, walkways and other right-of-

ways, utilities, small open spaces, preservation of resources, and similar 
features. 

 
c. In determining net residential densities, developers may be given density 

credit for land donated and accepted by the City for needed public facilities. 
 
d. The City encourages the creation of affordable housing through density 

bonuses. Developers may be given density bonuses for projects meeting 
minimum City standards for housing affordability and design, as defined 
under subsection 3, Housing Mix and Affordability.. (Ordinance 2006-
2534, January 3, 2006, Ordinance 2010-2730, October 18, 2010) 

 
e. In determining net residential densities, developers may be given density 

credit for land donated and accepted by the City for needed public facilities. 
 

2. Location Policies 
 

a. Medium and high density areas should be located for immediate access to 
collector streets or minor arterials and should not cause traffic to move 
through low density areas.  High density areas should be easily accessible to 
arterial streets.  They should also be located near commercial services and 
public open spaces. 

 
b. The City will encourage medium density housing in and adjacent to the 

commercial core of the Riverfront District and lower intensity residential 
uses in the western portions of the Riverfront District. (Ordinance 2002-
2564, April 15, 2002) 

 
 
 
 
 

Attachment 2.e.

 
127 of 183



6

  

I am not following how you arrive at the 4.4 dwelling units per 
gross buildable acre for LDR? 

  

What figures would you use for the MDR and LDR as well to 
arrive at the 9 and 16.6 dwelling units? 

  

Thanks, 

Jane 
 
Sent from my iPad 

 
On Jul 29, 2013, at 2:07 PM, "Barton Brierley" 
<barton.brierley@newbergoregon.gov> wrote: 

LDR:  4.4 dwelling units per gross buildable acre 

MDR:  9 dwelling units per gross buildable acre 

LDR:  16.6 dwelling units per gross buildable acre 

Barton Brierley, AICP 

Planning and Building Director 

City of Newberg 

P.O. Box 970, Newberg, OR  97132 

503‐537‐1212    Fax 503‐537‐1272 

barton.brierley@newbergoregon.gov 

  

From: jane greller [mailto:janeogrell@hotmail.com]  
Sent: Monday, July 29, 2013 1:51 PM 
To: Barton Brierley 
Subject: RE: target density 

Attachment 2.e.

 
128 of 183



7

  

That is very helpful.  How would that translate into 
R1 / LDR?  What would that target density be? 

  

Thanks, 

Jane 

 

From: barton.brierley@newbergoregon.gov 
To: janeogrell@hotmail.com 
Subject: RE: target density 
Date: Mon, 29 Jul 2013 20:32:34 +0000 

The target density is expressed in terms of number of 
dwelling units per gross buildable acre.  We factor in an 
estimate that 25 percent of the land will be used for 
street right‐of‐way, utilities, and similar uses.  We 
exclude protected stream corridors or similar 
unbuildable areas.  Note that it is a “target” density and 
not a “maximum” or “minimum” density.  The 
expectation is that some areas are likely to be 
developed at higher than the target and some at lower 
than the target density.  So for example in HDR the 
target density is 16.5 dwelling units per acre.  If you had 
a 10 acre property with no streams, we would expect 
165 dwelling units and about 2.5 acres used in streets, 
utilities, etc.  Some projects might have more and some 
might have less. 

  

I hope this helps.  

  

Barton Brierley, AICP 

Planning and Building Director 

City of Newberg 

Attachment 2.e.

 
129 of 183



8

P.O. Box 970, Newberg, OR  97132 

503‐537‐1212    Fax 503‐537‐1272 

barton.brierley@newbergoregon.gov 

  

From: jane greller [mailto:janeogrell@hotmail.com]  
Sent: Friday, July 26, 2013 3:38 PM 
To: Barton Brierley 
Subject: target density 

  

Hi, Barton, 

  

Could you please advise me as to the formula the 
city uses to determine target densities for LDR, 
MDR, and HDR?   

  

Thanks, 

Jane Greller 

Attachment 2.e.

 
130 of 183



Attachment 3 
 
 

Supplemental information to be included in the 
record (8/16/13 to 8/22/13) 

 
File No. SUB2-12-003 | Terra Estates 

Subdivision | Planning Commission Order 
2013-13 

 
 
 
 
 
Attached: 
3.a. Public comments received from 8/16/13 to 8/22/13 
 
 

 
131 of 183



Attachment 3.a.

 
132 of 183



Attachment 3.a.

 
133 of 183



Attachment 3.a.

 
134 of 183



Attachment 3.a.

 
135 of 183



Attachment 3.a.

 
136 of 183



Attachment 3.a.

 
137 of 183



Attachment 3.a.

 
138 of 183



Attachment 3.a.

 
139 of 183



Attachment 3.a.

 
140 of 183



Attachment 3.a.

 
141 of 183



Attachment 3.a.

 
142 of 183



Attachment 3.a.

 
143 of 183



Attachment 3.a.

 
144 of 183



Attachment 3.a.

 
145 of 183



Attachment 4 
 
 

Supplemental information to be included in the 
record (8/23/13 – 8/29/13) 

 
File No. SUB2-12-003 | Terra Estates 

Subdivision | Planning Commission Order 
2013-13 

 
 
 
 
 
Attached: 
4.a. Applicant final comments, received 8/23/13 

 
146 of 183



 
 
 
To   Planning Commission,        August 23rd, 2013  

Members of City Staff 
 and Interested Citizens: 

 
I would like to thank everyone for the input and the combined efforts in order to evaluate and enhance 
the application for Terra. 
 
After a review of the supplemental comments, and looking at key documents, I believe that the 
standards have been met.   In addition to our review (Marc and I) we have asked our planning 
consultant, and engineer if they see any standards not being met.  The answer is that they also believe 
that the criteria has been met and done so in a reasonable and responsible fashion. 
 
We would like to highlight a few areas and point to parts of the record that helps to answer some of the 
questions / comments that occurred during the August planning commission hearing. 
 

 School Impact.  The letter from Dr. Kym Leblanc‐Esparza (August 13, 2013) and 
the review from Jessica Nunley, (Memo August 15th 2013) confirm that no 
current conflicts exist, and that school capacity is not an issue.  In addition Dr 
LeBlanc‐Esparza, correctly points out three positive impacts from a revenue 
base with new homes. 

 
 Traffic.  We all agree that having a good TSP system in place is important for all.  

The thoughts would be to have the Traffic Safety Committee review and see if 
traffic calming measures are warranted.   

 
 Lancaster Traffic Study.   The study submitted (Original Record  see page 10) 

shows that the Safety Analysis has no impact for Warrants, Sight Distance, and 
Crash Data Analysis. 

 
 Notices.  We agree with Staff’s Report of August 15th, 2013 that notice has 

occurred.  We hope that with the combination of the notice posted, advertised, 
and meetings with neighbors that everyone is aware of this application. 
 

 Parks.  We enjoy the parks that Newberg has created/made.   It is our opinion 
that the Parks Department is one of the best in Oregon. 

 

 
 
700 Deborah Road, Suite 270 
Newberg, OR 97132 
 
Office  (503) 590 – 8600           Fax  (503) 590 ‐ 8640

Attachment 4.a.

 
147 of 183



 Lot Sizes.  A question arose as to the conflict between 7.67 acres per the 
assessors map, and 7.9 acres per the survey.  The correct size is 7.9 acres as 
shown on the site map.   

 
We will continue to reach out to the community and answer/address questions and look for good ideas 
that will make the development successful. 
 
 
 
 
Marc Willcuts              Michael Hanks 
Managing Owner            Managing Owner 

Attachment 4.a.

 
148 of 183



Working Together For A Better Community-Serious About Service" 
Z:\FILES.DCA\DCA-12-002  Zoning Use Table\Greller Density Response.doc 

  Planning and Building Department 
    P.O. Box 970 ▪ 414 E First Street ▪ Newberg, Oregon 97132     
    503-537-1240. Fax 503-537-1272   www.newbergoregon.gov 
 

  
 
August 23, 2013 
 
Jane Greller 
Via e-mail janeogrell@hotmail.com 
 
Dear Mrs. Greller: 
 
Subject:   Response to your question regarding residential densities 
 
At the August 19, 2013 City Council hearing regarding updates to the zoning use table, you 
asked questions regarding residential densities.  I am happy to share with you answers to your 
questions.  Please note that the proposed changes to the zoning use table do not change the 
densities or minimum lot sizes allowed in the zones. 
 
In brief, you asked what are the target density and the maximum density in the R-1 zone.  The 
target density is 4.4 dwelling units per gross buildable acre (or 5.9 dwelling units per net 
buildable acre).  The maximum density is 6.5 dwelling unit per gross buildable acre1

 

 (or 8.7 
dwelling units per net buildable acre).  

You also asked for definitions of terms, explanations of the formulas used to determine these 
densities, and similar information for the R-2 and R-3 zones.  Below are detailed responses to 
these questions. 
 
“Density” is a term that is used to denote the number of dwelling units in a particular area of 
land.  A dwelling unit is an independent living unit for one family or group of people.  It can be a 
house, an apartment unit, or one side of a duplex.  For example, a fourplex would be four 
dwelling units, and a duplex would be two dwelling units. 
 
Density is expressed either as “gross density” or “net density.”  “Gross density” is the number of 
dwelling units in a given area of land before land is deducted for streets, utilities, and similar 
features.  This is usually expressed in terms of the number of dwelling units per gross buildable 
acre (though it also can be expressed in square feet).  “Net density” is the number of dwelling 
units in a given area of land after land is deducted for streets, utilities, and similar features.  Net 
density is usually expressed in terms of the number of square feet per dwelling unit (though it 
also can be expressed in acres).   
 
For planning purposes, we estimate that 1.0 gross buildable acre yields about 0.75 net buildable 
acres, because about 25% of the land is used for roads, sidewalks, utilities, etc.  This amount can 
vary on individual projects which may require more or less right-of-way (or even none).    
 
                                                 
1 This is based on a planning level assumption that 25 percent of the tract would need to be dedicated for right-of-
way, utilities, or similar features.  The actual maximum density could be lower or higher if more or less dedications 
are required.  If no such dedications are required, which would be unusual, the maximum density is 8.7 dwelling 
units per gross buildable acre. 

Attachment 5

 
149 of 183



Working Together For A Better Community-Serious About Service" 
Z:\FILES.DCA\DCA-12-002  Zoning Use Table\Greller Density Response.doc 

Other terms that will help in understanding this concept are: 
 
“Target density” or “planned density”:  This is the density the community is planning on being 
provided on a certain area of land.  In order to achieve the target or planned density, the average 
density of residential development in that district needs to be this density.  
 
“Maximum density” or “density limit”:  This is the highest density that is allowed on a certain 
tract of land.  This is usually expressed in terms of minimum lot size or minimum square feet per 
dwelling unit, though it can be expressed as maximum dwelling units per acre.  
 
“Minimum density”:  This is the lowest density that is allowed on a certain tract of land.  This is 
usually expressed in terms of maximum lot size or maximum square feet per dwelling unit, 
though it can be expressed as minimum dwelling units per acre. 
 
Put in simple terms, the “minimum density” is the floor, the “maximum density” is the ceiling, 
and the “target density” is close to the middle. 
 
The Newberg Comprehensive Plan establishes three main residential density categories:  low 
density, medium density, and high density.  It also establishes target densities for each of those 
classifications.  The following is taken from Section I.1.b of the Newberg Comprehensive Plan: 
 

Target densities shall be as follows: 
 
                                                         Units Per 
Classification   Gross Acre* 
 
Urban Low Density   4.4 
 
Urban Medium Density   9 
 
Urban High Density   16.5 
*Includes a 25 percent allowance for streets, walkways and other right-of-ways, 
utilities, small open spaces, preservation of resources, and similar features.  
[bold added] 

 
The Newberg City Council established these target densities in 2005 along with forecasts of 
housing needs through 2025 and 2040 at these target densities.  The target density for low 
density residential has remained at 4.4 units per gross acre since the adoption of the 1979 
comprehensive plan.  In 2005 the medium residential density was adjusted from 8.8 to 9, and the 
high density was adjusted from 21.8 to 16.5. 
 
The Newberg Development Code establishes maximum densities or density limits as follows: 
 
15.405.010 Lot area – Lot areas per dwelling unit. 
A. In the following districts, each lot or development site shall have an area as shown below 
except as otherwise permitted by this code: 
 
1. In the R-1 district, each lot or development site shall have a minimum area of 5,000 square 
feet or as may be established by a subdistrict. The average size of lots in a subdivision intended 
for single-family development shall not exceed 10,000 square feet. 

Attachment 5

 
150 of 183



Working Together For A Better Community-Serious About Service" 
Z:\FILES.DCA\DCA-12-002  Zoning Use Table\Greller Density Response.doc 

 
2. In the R-2, R-3, and RP districts, each lot or development site shall have a minimum area of 
3,000 square feet or as may be established by a subdistrict. In the R-2 and R-P districts, the 
average size of lots in a subdivision intended for single-family development shall not exceed 
5,000 square feet. 
 
* * * 
 
B. Lot or Development Site Area per Dwelling Unit. 
 
1. In the R-1 district, there shall be a minimum of 5,000 square feet per dwelling unit. 
 
2. In the R-2, AR, and R-P districts, there shall be a minimum of 3,000 square feet of lot or 
development site area per dwelling unit. In the R-2 and R-P districts, lots or development sites in 
excess of 15,000 square feet used for multiple single-family, duplex or multiple-family dwellings 
shall be developed at a minimum of one dwelling per 5,000 square feet lot area. 
 
3. In the R-3 district, there shall be a minimum of 1,500 square feet of lot or development site 
area per dwelling unit. Lots or development sites in excess of 15,000 square feet used for 
multiple single-family, duplex or multiple-family dwellings shall be developed at a minimum of 
one dwelling per 2,500 square feet lot area. 
 
C. In calculating lot area for this section, lot area does not include land within public or private 
streets. In calculating lot area for maximum lot area/minimum density requirements, lot area 
does not include land within stream corridors, land reserved for public parks or open spaces, 
commons buildings, land for preservation of natural, scenic, or historic resources, land on 
slopes exceeding 15 percent or for avoidance of identified natural hazards, land in shared access 
easements, public walkways, or entirely used for utilities, land held in reserve in accordance 
with a future development plan, or land for uses not appurtenant to the residence. 
 
D. Lot size averaging is allowed for any subdivision. Some lots may be under the minimum lot 
size required in the zone where the subdivision is located, as long as the average size of all lots 
is at least the minimum lot size. [Ord. 2730 § 1 (Exh. A (2)), 10-18-10; Ord. 2720 § 1(14), 11-2-
09; Ord. 2647, 6-5-06; Ord. 2564, 4-15-02; Ord. 2507, 3-1-99; Ord. 2451, 12-2-96. Code 2001 
§ 151.565.]  [bold added] 
 
These most recently were amended in 2010. 
 

Attachment 5

 
151 of 183



Working Together For A Better Community-Serious About Service" 
Z:\FILES.DCA\DCA-12-002  Zoning Use Table\Greller Density Response.doc 

The table below summarizes this information for each comprehensive plan district and zone, and 
shows the source or formula from which these were derived. 
 
 
Comprehensive 

Plan 
District/Zoning 

District 

Expressed as 
Low 

Density/ 
R-1 

Medium 
Density/R-2 

High 
Density/R-3 

Source/ 
Formula 

  
Target/Planned 
Density 
 

units per gross 
buildable acre 4.4 9.0 16.5 

Newberg 
Comprehensive Plan 

units per net 
buildable acre 5.9 12.0 22.0 

Units per gross 
buildable acre/75% 

average square 
feet lot area 
per unit 

7,425 3,630 1,980 

43,560 sf/acre 
divided by units 
per net buildable 

acre 

  
Maximum 
Density 
  

units per gross 
buildable acre 

Typically 
6.5, but 
could be 

more or less 
depending on 

dedication 
requirements, 

in no case 
more than 

8.7  

Typically 
10.9, but 
could be 

more or less, 
depending on 

dedication 
requirements, 

in no case 
more than 

14.5 

Typically 
21.8, but 
could be 

more or less, 
depending on 

dedication 
requirements, 

in no case 
more than 

29.0 

Units per net 
buildable acre x 

75% 

units per net 
buildable acre 8.7 14.5 29.0 

43,560 sf/acre 
divided by average 
square feet lot area 
per unit buildable 

acre 
average square 
feet lot area 
per unit 

5,000 3,000 1,500 
Newberg 

Development 
Code 

 
I hope this information, along with several previous e-mails I have sent you on this subject, 
answers your questions.  If you would like additional information, I suggest we talk on the phone 
or meet in person. 
 
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
 
 
Barton Brierley, AICP 
Planning and Building Director 
 
Z:\FILES.DCA\DCA-12-002  Zoning Use Table\Greller Density Response.doc 

Attachment 5

 
152 of 183



Exhibit “1” 
To Planning Commission Rules 

 

 

City of Newberg: Planning Commission Rules & Guidelines                                   Page 17 

OUTLINE FOR LEGISLATIVE PUBLIC HEARING 
Newberg Planning Commission 

  
1. CALL TO ORDER 

OPEN THE PUBLIC HEARING, ANNOUNCE THE PURPOSE, DISCUSS TESTIMONY 
PROCEDURE, AND TIME ALLOTMENTS 

 
2.    CALL FOR ABSTENTIONS AND OBJECTIONS TO JURISDICTION  
 
3. STAFF REPORT 
 COMMISSION MAY ASK BRIEF QUESTIONS FOR CLARIFICATION 

   
4. PUBLIC TESTIMONY 
 5 MINUTE TIME LIMIT PER SPEAKER (15 MINUTE LIMIT FOR APPLICANT AND 
PRINCIPAL OPPONENT).  SPEAKER GOES TO WITNESS TABLE, STATES NAME & 
PRESENTS TESTIMONY.  COMMISSION MAY ASK QUESTIONS OF SPEAKERS. 
 A. APPLICANT(S) (IF ANY) 
 B. OTHER PROPONENTS                 
 C. OPPONENTS AND UNDECIDED 
 D. STAFF READS WRITTEN CORRESPONDENCE (TIME LIMIT APPLIES)  
 E. APPLICANT (IF ANY) REBUTTAL 
 
5. CLOSE OF PUBLIC TESTIMONY PORTION OF HEARING 
 
6.  FINAL COMMENTS FROM STAFF AND RECOMMENDATION  

 
7. PLANNING COMMISSION DELIBERATION 

 
8. ACTION BY THE PLANNING COMMMISSION 
 A. RESOLUTION – Usually requires passage of resolution. 
 B. VOTE – Vote is done by roll call. 

C. COMBINATION – Can be combined with other commission action; separate vote 
on each action is required. 

 

 
153 of 183



Planning Division 
P.O. Box 970 ▪ 414 E First Street ▪ Newberg, Oregon 97132  
503-537-1240 ▪ Fax 503-537-1272 ▪ www.ci.newberg.or.us 

 
 

Planning Commission Staff Report  
Transportation System Plan Amendment for Bypass Phase 1 

 
 
File No.:  CPTA4-13-001 
Proposal: Amend the Tranportation System Plan to reflect the Phase 1 alignment of the Newberg 

Dundee Bypass project.    
 
Planning Commission Hearing Date:  September 12, 2013 
 
Summary of Proposal:  The Transportation System Plan (TSP) contains the full Bypass alignment, 
which will be an 11-mile, four-lane highway around the cities of Newberg and Dundee from Highway 
99W northeast of Newberg to the Highway 18 interchange south of Dundee.  However, funding 
constraints preclude full construction of the Bypass at this time, and the Bypass will be a phased 
development.  Phase 1 of the Bypass will include construction of one lane of the Bypass in each direction 
between Highway 219 and Highway 99W south of Dundee, about 4 miles in length, and will reestablish 
the intersection of Wilsonville Road and Highway 219.   
 
Summary of TSP Amendment: Newberg’s TSP shows Wilsonville Road as a minor arterial that 
connects to Springbrook Road.  Phase 1 reestablishes the previous connection of Wilsonville Road 
directly to Highway 219 and removes the connection with Springbrook Road.  The current north-south 
segment of Wilsonville Road from the proposed new intersection with Highway 219 to the current 
Springbrook Road connection would be reclassified as a local road and would end in a cul-de-sac at the 
southern end by the new intersection.  Exhibit “A” contains a proposed text amendment to the TSP and a 
revised TSP Figure 6-1, Functional Classification Plan. 
 
The realignment of Wilsonville Road will improve connectivity between Wilsonville Road and Highway 
219 and meet Oregon Department of Transportation (ODOT) operating standards in 2016, the opening 
year of the Phase 1 Bypass.  If left unimproved, the current Wilsonville Road/Springbrook Road 
intersection would not meet the city’s operating standard in 2016 and would operate at a lower level of 
service than the No Build Alternative due to increased traffic on Springbrook Road following the opening 
of the Bypass.  
 
The connection of Wilsonville Road to Highway 219 is an interim connection that is within the footprint 
of the Bypass and the Highway 219 Interchange as shown in the Newberg Comprehensive Plan and TSP. 
When the full Bypass and Highway 219 Interchange are built in a future phase, Wilsonville Road will be 
rerouted south to connect to Highway 219 near Wynooski Road. The connection of Wilsonville Road to 
Highway 219 will remain in place until such time as the Bypass and the Highway 219 Interchange are 
funded and constructed. The portion of Wilsonville Road that is converted to a cul-de-sac will be a 

"Working Together For A Better Community-Serious About Service" 
Z:\WP5FILES\FILES.CPTA\CPTA4-13-001 BYPASS PHASE I ALIGNMENT\PC PACKET 2013-0912\PC STAFF REPORT_2013-0823.DOC 

  
154 of 183



"Working Together For A Better Community-Serious About Service" 
Z:\WP5FILES\FILES.CPTA\CPTA4-13-001 BYPASS PHASE I ALIGNMENT\PC PACKET 2013-0912\PC STAFF REPORT_2013-0823.DOC 

 

permanent change, and the Planning Commission should consider street name options for that short 
section of road.  That road section serves as access to the Springbrook Estates mobile home park and 
several other residences and businesses, which will need to be readdressed following this change.   
 
The Phase 1 intersection and roadway realignment will have the following elements, as shown in Exhibit 
“B”: 

• Extend Wilsonville Road west to connect to a new signalized intersection with Highway 219, 
which is the beginning of the Phase 1 Bypass. 

• Construct left, through, and right turn lanes on westbound Wilsonville Road. 

• Construct a five-lane section on Highway 219 between the Springbrook Road intersection and the 
new Phase 1 Bypass intersection.  

• Construct a cul-de-sac at the southern end of the existing Wilsonville Road between the 
realignment and Springbrook Road.  

 
The full layout of the Phase 1 Bypass is shown in Exhibit “C”.   
 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
Planning Commission Resolution 2013-301 with: 

Exhibit “A”: TSP Text Amendment and Revised Figure 6-1, Functional Classification Plan  
 Exhibit “B”: Figure 2 Phase 1 Wilsonville Road Realignment 
 Exhibit “C”: Figure 1 Phase 1 Location and Segments 
 Exhibit “D”: Findings 
 
 

 
155 of 183



 

 

PLANNING COMMISSION RESOLUTION 2013-301 
 

A RESOLUTION RECOMMENDING CITY COUNCIL APPROVAL OF TRANSPORTATION 

SYSTEM PLAN AMENDMENTS TO REFLECT THE PHASE 1 ALIGNMENT OF THE NEWBERG 

DUNDEE BYPASS 

RECITALS: 

1. Oregon Department of Transportation submitted an application to amend Newberg’s 
Transportation System Plan (TSP) to reflect the Phase 1 alignment of the Newberg Dundee 
Bypass project (Bypass).     

2. The TSP contains the full Bypass alignment, which will be an 11-mile, four-lane highway around 
the cities of Newberg and Dundee from Highway 99W northeast of Newberg to the Highway 18 
interchange south of Dundee.  However, funding constraints preclude full construction of the 
Bypass at this time, and the Bypass will be a phased development.  Phase 1 of the Bypass will 
include construction of one lane of the Bypass in each direction between Highway 219 and 
Highway 99W south of Dundee, about 4 miles in length, and will reestablish the intersection of 
Wilsonville Road and Highway 219.  Phase 1 will add a traffic signal to the Wilsonville Road and 
Highway 219 intersection and will remove the current connection between Wilsonville Road and 
Springbrook Road.  The current north-south section of Wilsonville Road between the new 
Highway 219 intersection and Springbrook Road will end in a cul-de-sac at the southern end.   

3. After proper notice, the Newberg Planning Commission held a hearing on September 12, 2013 to 
consider the proposal.   

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Planning Commission of the City of Newberg that it 
recommends to the City Council adoption of the Transportation System Plan text amendment and Figure 
6-1 amendment as shown in Exhibit “A”.  This recommendation is based on the staff report, the findings 
in Exhibit “D”, and testimony. 

Adopted by the Newberg Planning Commission this 12th day of September, 2013. 
 
        ATTEST: 

 
Planning Commission Chair     Planning Commission Secretary 

 
Attached: 
Exhibit “A”: TSP Text Amendment and Revised Figure 6-1, Functional Classification Plan  
Exhibit “B”: Figure 2 Phase 1 Wilsonville Road Realignment 
Exhibit “C”: Figure 1 Phase 1 Location and Segments 
Exhibit “D”: Findings 

 
156 of 183



Exhibit “A” 
to PC Resolution 2013-301 

 
 
The following text amendment should be made to section 6.2.2(6) of the Newberg Transportation System 
Plan (2005).  Deletions are shown as strikethrough; additions are shown as double underline: 
 
(From page 123 of 2005 TSP.) 
6. Wilsonville Road: Wilsonville Road is to be rerouted to the north to cross the Bypass (without an 
interchange) and to intersect with Springbrook Street.  Wilsonville Road will then extend westward from 
its intersection with Springbrook Street to a new signalized intersection with Ore 219 at about 8th Street.  
The reroute and extension of Wilsonville Road will be constructed to minor arterial street standards.  The 
purpose of this project is to provide adequate spacing of intersections on Ore 219 from the proposed 
interchange with the bypass.  The cost of this project is estimated at about $2.0 million, and will be 
funded by ODOT as a safety improvement project.  The improvement will comply with spacing standards 
as defined in the NDTIP bypass project.  Moreover, this project will be full considered and potentially 
modified under the context of the NDTIP Bypass/Ore 219 Interchange Area Management Plan.  This 
project is included as a Safety Project in the Statewide Transportation Improvement Program, 2002-2005, 
Key#09274.  See Appendix “N” for a conceptual plan of this project. Wilsonville Road is to be extended 
to the west to connect to Oregon 219. A cul-de-sac will be placed on Wilsonville Road between the new 
extension to Oregon 219 and Springbrook Road. The rerouting and extension of Wilsonville Road will be 
constructed to minor arterial street standards. The purpose of this project is to provide access to Phase 1 of 
the Bypass at acceptable levels of service and improve safety. The improvement will comply with ODOT 
spacing standards for a District Highway.  The future Phase 2 of the Bypass will disconnect the new 
intersection of Wilsonville Road and Oregon 219.  During Phase 2 construction, Wilsonville Road will be 
rerouted further south to a new intersection with Oregon 219.   
 
 

 
157 of 183



Exhibit “A” 
 
 

Excerpt from Figure 6-1, Functional Classification Plan, Newberg TSP (2005) 
 

 
 

 
158 of 183



D
EB

O
R

A
H

EL
LI

O

SP
R

IN
G

B
R

O
O

K
 R

O
A

D

SP
R

IN
G

B
R

O
O

K
 R

O
A

D

SP
R

IN
G

B
R

O
O

K
 R

O
A

D

OREGON  99W

2ND STREET

E FERNWOOD ROAD

NE WILSONVILLE ROAD

219

219

IN
D

USTR
IA

L
PA

RK

99W

EL
LI

O
T 

R
O

A
D

2

Figure 2 Phase 1 Wilsonville Road 
Realignment

Map ID: Fig2.2-7 Ph1NewAreaENewberg.indd 
Print Date: December 2011

0 200 400
Feet

Roadway Improvements

Phase 1 Right-of-Way

Sidewalks

Planter Strip

Bike Lane

IN
D

USTR
IA

L
PPAAPPPPPAP

RK

AY

Additional
southbound
left turn lane.

Widen Springbrook Road 
to three lanes.

Add traffi c signal.
Restricted
right in/right out.

Additional
southbound
left turn lane.

Add right 
turn lane.

WYNOOSKI RD

WWWiWiWWiWiWWiWWidddddddedededeededdddd nnnnnnn SpSpSSSSprriringngngngbrbrbrooooooookkkk

NewbergNewberg

Cul-de-sac

Widen Oregon 219 to 
fi ve lanes. Add traffi c signal. 

Connect Wilsonville Road to 
new Bypass.

Exhibit "B"

 
159 of 183



��

N
e

w
b

e
r

g
N

e
w

b
e

r
g

D
u

n
d

e
e

D
u

n
d

e
e

W
ill

am
et

te
 &

 P
ac

ifi
c 

R
ai

lro
ad

W
illam

ette
 R

iv
e

r

S
eg

m
en

t 6
S

eg
m

en
t 5

S
eg

m
en

t 4

S
eg

m
en

t 3

S
eg

m
en

t 2

D
at

e:
 1

2/
7/

20
11

  
 P

at
h:

 P
:\G

IS
\P

ro
je

ct
s\

N
ew

be
rg

D
un

de
e\

F
E

IS
\C

ha
pt

er
1\

N
D

_P
ha

se
1.

m
xd

F
ig

u
re

 1
  P

h
as

e 
1 

L
o

ca
ti

o
n

 a
n

d
 S

eg
m

en
ts

0
0.

5
1 M

ile
s

File Path: N:\B_TaskProcessing\Revised_DEIS_08\MXD\EIS_07\Chapter2_Alternatives\DEIS_Segements Index.mxd, Date: April 11, 2008 11:09:43 AM

P
ha

se
 1

 S
eg

m
en

ts
 2

, 
4,

 a
nd

 6

P
ha

se
 1

 S
eg

m
en

ts
 3

 a
nd

 5

C
ity

 L
im

its

U
rb

a
n 

G
ro

w
th

 B
ou

nd
ar

y 
(U

G
B

)

Exhibit "C"

 
160 of 183



Exhibit “D”: Findings 
to PC Resolution 2013-301 

 
Transportation System Plan (TSP) amendments must be consistent with the Newberg Comprehensive 
Plan and the applicable statewide planning goals.   
 
Newberg Comprehensive Plan – applicable goals and policies 
 

A. Citizen Involvement 
 
GOAL: To maintain a Citizen Involvement Program that offers citizens the opportunity for involvement in 
all phases of the planning process. 
 
Section A, Citizen Involvement, notes that the city will continue to implement an ongoing citizen 
involvement program that provides residents opportunity to be involved in all phases of the planning 
process. For the Wilsonville Road realignment, the city will provide public notice to affected property 
owners, opportunities for testimony at public hearings, and opportunities for appeal of local decisions. 
 

B. Land Use Planning 
 
GOAL: To maintain an ongoing land use planning program to implement statewide and local goals. The 
program shall be consistent with natural and cultural resources and needs. 
 
The proposed TSP amendments are consistent with the land use planning goal because they will help 
implement Phase 1 of the Bypass which is an approved project in the Newberg TSP and Comprehensive 
Plan. 
 

H. The Economy 
 
GOAL: To develop a diverse and stable economic base. 
Policy 1.o. The City shall collaborate with other public and private entities and project developers to 
construct and maintain the best surface transportation infrastructure possible (e.g. roads, airpark, 
railroad). 
 
The Phase 1 Bypass Project, including the Wilsonville Road realignment, will improve mobility and 
accessibility in general, and freight movement in particular, throughout the Newberg Dundee urban area, 
thus resulting in substantially reduced congestion and hours of delay when compared to a No Build 
Alternative. This supports the goal of developing a diverse and stable economic base.  
 

K.       Transportation 
 
Policy1.f. The City shall coordinate with Yamhill County and the State on the development of the 
Newberg Dundee Bypass. 
 

 
161 of 183



The city is directly coordinating with ODOT and Yamhill County on the development of the Bypass.  The 
TSP currently contains the full Bypass alignment, which will be an 11-mile, four-lane highway around the 
cities of Newberg and Dundee from Highway 99W northeast of Newberg to the Highway 18 interchange 
south of Dundee.  However, funding constraints preclude full construction of the Bypass at this time, and 
the Bypass will be a phased development.  The proposed TSP amendments are necessary to implement 
Phase 1 of the Bypass.   
 

M. Energy 
 
GOAL: To conserve energy through efficient land use patterns and energy-related policies and 
ordinances. 
 
The Bypass project, including Phase 1 and the Wilsonville Road realignment, is intended to improve 
statewide and regional mobility through the area and to make existing Highway 99W more accessible for 
local and regional traffic. The project will help relieve much of the substantial traffic congestion that 
currently exists along Highway 99W. Facilitating the smooth flow of traffic at acceptable levels of service 
also helps conserve fuel by avoiding the wasteful burning of fuel at intersections already above capacity 
or expected to exceed capacity during the planning period.  
 
 
Oregon Statewide Planning Goals – applicable goals 
 
Goal 1 (Citizen Involvement) 
Goal 1 requires the opportunity for citizens to be involved in all phases of the planning process. 
Generally, Goal 1 is satisfied when a local government follows the public involvement procedures set out 
in its acknowledged comprehensive plan and land use regulations. 
The City of Newberg Comprehensive Plan requires the city maintain a Citizen Involvement Program that 
offers citizens the opportunity for involvement in all phases of the planning process. Compliance with 
these regulations results in compliance with Goal 1.  
 
Goal 2 (Land Use Planning), Part I 
Goal 2, Part I requires that actions related to land use be consistent with acknowledged comprehensive 
plans of cities and counties. It is specifically noted that the City of Newberg updated the Comprehensive 
Plan to include the Newberg Dundee Bypass.  
 
Goal 2, Part I also requires coordination with affected governments and agencies, evaluation of 
alternatives, and an adequate factual base. In developing the Wilsonville Road realignment, ODOT 
engaged in coordination efforts with planners, officials, and other representatives of Newberg. The 
amendment also is consistent with the Phase 1 Bypass as authorized by the Oregon Legislature and 
approved by Yamhill County.  
 
Goal 5 (Open Spaces, Scenic and Historic Areas, and Natural Resources) 
Goal 5 requires local governments to adopt programs to protect natural resources and conserve scenic, 
historic, and open space resources for present and future generations as provided in the Oregon  
Department of Land Conservation and Development’s Goal 5 administrative rule, OAR 660, Division 23. 

Exhibit "D"

 
162 of 183



Under OAR 660-023-0250(3)(b), local governments are not required to apply Goal 5 in post-
acknowledgment plan amendment proceedings unless the amendment affects a Goal 5 resource to allow 
new uses that could be conflicting uses with a particular significant Goal 5 resource site. The Wilsonville 
Road realignment does not impact any resource sites inventoried and designated as significant under Goal 
5. Therefore, Goal 5 does not apply.  
 
Goal 6 (Air, Water and Land Resources Quality) 
Goal 6 addresses the quality of air, water, and land resources. In the context of a comprehensive plan 
amendment, a local government complies with Goal 6 by explaining why it is reasonable to expect that 
the proposed uses authorized by the plan amendment will be able to satisfy applicable federal and state 
environmental standards, including air and water quality standards. Because the Wilsonville Road 
realignment is part of Phase 1, which provides the first step in implementing the Bypass project, and 
because the Bypass project is an approved project in the City of Newberg’s acknowledged TSP and 
Comprehensive Plan, the Wilsonville Road realignment is consistent with the City’s TSP and 
Comprehensive Plan findings of compliance with Goal 6. 
 
By substantially relieving congestion in the region, the Bypass project will improve air quality. This 2013 
amendment will help substantially relieve congestion in the region by facilitating implementation of 
Phase 1. Like the Bypass project in its entirety, the Wilsonville Road realignment will impact water 
resources by adding a small amount of impervious surface to the watershed area. Where areas are paved, 
water cannot penetrate the soils, so it rushes over the surface. This can increase erosion, increase the 
movement of fine sediments, and increase pollutant loads in watercourses. However, these impacts can 
adequately be mitigated through the use of effective land-based stormwater treatment systems that include 
measures to preserve and restore mature vegetation and maximize infiltration. The use of construction 
techniques that include temporary and permanent best management practices (BMPs) for erosion and 
sediment control and spill control and prevention also can achieve compliance with clean water standards. 
OHP 5A.1 directs ODOT to implement BMPs. These BMPs will apply to development of JTA Phase 1. 
Mitigation strategies have been identified and agreed to in the Newberg Dundee Tier 2 Final EIS. 
 
Stormwater is also subject to statewide permits that are issued to ODOT. For construction activities, 
ODOT will comply with the terms and conditions of its statewide National Pollution Discharge 
Elimination System (NPDES) permit: 1200-CA. ODOT will also comply with the terms and conditions of 
its statewide MS4 permit for ongoing maintenance and operation of the highway. To comply with the 
terms of the permits, ODOT follows BMPs set out in the Routine Road Maintenance Water Quality and 
Habitat Guide, or Blue Book, which details the standard maintenance activities and describes how to 
perform them in the most environmentally sensitive way. The Blue Book, first published in 1999, is the 
basis for Endangered Species Act compliance with the National Marine Fisheries Service under the Clean 
Water Act’s 4(d) exemption for maintenance activities. Goal 6 is met. 
 
Goal 8 (Recreational Needs) 
Goal 8 provides for local governments to meet the recreational needs of the citizens of Oregon. The 
Bypass project, including the Wilsonville Road realignment, will further Goal 8's objectives by improving 
access to recreational destination areas such as the Oregon coast, Yamhill County wineries, and the Spirit 
Mountain Casino. The proposed road realignment will not impact existing park or recreational lands. 
 
Goal 9 (Economic Development) 

Exhibit "D"

 
163 of 183



Goal 9 requires local governments to adopt comprehensive plans and policies that "contribute to a stable 
and healthy economy in all regions of the state." The City of Newberg’s Comprehensive Plan has been 
acknowledged to comply with Goal 9. The Bypass project, including the Wilsonville Road realignment to 
implement Phase 1, will improve mobility and accessibility generally, and freight movement in particular, 
throughout the Newberg Dundee urban area, thus resulting in substantially reduced congestion and hours 
of delay when compared to a No Build Alternative. 
 
Goal 10 (Housing) 
Goal 10 applies inside urban growth boundaries. While the Wilsonville Road realignment is within land 
zoned as medium-density residential, there are no impacts to housing, because the road will be placed on 
land that was previously roadway. Wilsonville Road will be reconnected to Highway 219 in its previous 
location. Therefore, this action is consistent with Goal 10.  
 
Goal 12 (Transportation) 
Goal 12 requires local governments to "provide and encourage a safe, convenient, and economic 
transportation system." Goal 12 is implemented through the Transportation Planning Rule (TPR), OAR 
660, Division 12. Because the Newberg Dundee Bypass Project is an approved project in the City of 
Newberg’s acknowledged TSP, and the Wilsonville Road realignment is necessary to implement Phase 1 
of the project, it is consistent with Goal 12 and with the TPR planning and coordination requirements. The 
Wilsonville Road realignment will improve connectivity between the Bypass, Highway 219 and 
Wilsonville Road and avoid violating roadway performance standards on Springbrook Road by severing 
the connection between the two roads. The new intersection of Wilsonville Road and Highway 219 will 
operate within ODOT’s performance standards. 
 
Goal 13 (Energy Conservation) 
Goal 13 directs cities and counties to manage and control land and uses developed on the land to 
maximize the conservation of all forms of energy, based on sound economic principles.  The Bypass 
project, including JTA Phase 1 and the Wilsonville Road realignment, is intended to improve statewide 
and regional mobility through the area and to make existing Highway 99W more accessible for local and 
regional traffic. The project will help relieve much of the substantial traffic congestion that already exists 
along Highway 99W and that will only deteriorate further in its absence. Providing safe and convenient 
travel through an area and facilitating the efficient movement of people, goods, and services in that area 
serves the growth needs and objectives of the region and the state, and follows sound economic principles. 
Facilitating the smooth flow of traffic at acceptable levels of service also helps conserve fuel by avoiding 
the wasteful burning of fuel at intersections already above capacity or expected to exceed capacity during 
the planning period. 
 
 

Exhibit "D"

 
164 of 183



 
“Working Together For A Better Community-Serious About Service" 

Z:\WP5FILES\FILES.DCA\DCA-13-001 Historic Preservation Commission\PC.Res 2013-300.CC recommendation.doc 

   Planning and Building Department 
    P.O. Box 970 ▪ 414 E First Street ▪ Newberg, Oregon 97132 

        503-537-1240 ▪ Fax 503-537-1272 ▪ www.newbergoregon.gov 
 

PLANNING COMMISSION STAFF REPORT 
HISTORIC PRESERVATION COMMISSION  

MUNICIPAL CODE AMENDMENT  
  

HEARING DATE: September 12, 2013 

FILE NO:  DCA-13-001 

APPLICANT: Initiated by Newberg City Council 

REQUEST: Amend the Newberg Municipal Code to:  

 1.  Establish a Historic Preservation Commission. 

2. Transfer application review responsibility regarding designation, 
alteration, new construction, and demolition of city designated historic 
landmarks from the Planning Commission to the Historic Preservation 
Commission.  

ATTACHMENTS: 

Resolution 2013-300 with 
 Exhibit “A”:  Proposed Development Code Text Amendments 
 Exhibit “B”:  Findings 
Attachment 1: Requirements and Benefits of a Certified Local Government 
Attachment 2: Comments from Kuri Gill of Oregon Heritage Program 

 

 

A. SUMMARY: In general, the proposal establishes a Historic Preservation Commission.  The 
main charges of the Commission would be to: (1) reviewing the code requirements for historic 
landmarks; and, (2) reviewing and maintaining the historic inventory. 

Specifically, the proposed amendments do the following: 

1. Add a new definition to Chapter 15.05.030 of the municipal code regarding a “Historic 
preservation commission”. 

2. Add new Sections 2.15.500 to 2.15.610 which establishes the historic preservation 
commission as well as describes it purpose, powers and duties, and administration.  

3. Change Chapter 15.344 HISTORIC LANDMARKS (H) SUBDISTRICT as follows: 

a. Add Section 15.344.015 Historic Preservation Commission Review, which 

 
165 of 183



 
“Working Together For A Better Community-Serious About Service" 

Z:\WP5FILES\FILES.DCA\DCA-13-001 Historic Preservation Commission\PC.Res 2013-300.CC recommendation.doc 

describes the commission’s Type III review process for designation, alteration, 
new construction and demolition of city designated landmarks.  It also states in 
the case where an application requires both historic preservation commission 
and planning commission review, such as a modification of a landmark for a 
conditional use, the commissions shall hold a combined hearing.  However, the 
two commissions shall make separate decisions. 

b. Change all references to the planning commission to the historic preservation 
commission in Section 15.344.020 Landmark designation and Section 
15.244.030 Alteration, new construction, demolitions.  

The proposed action is an important step in Newberg becoming a Certified Local Government 
(CLG).  Becoming a CLG would bring many benefits to the community, such as access to 
grants for historic preservation projects.   

B. BACKGROUND:  On April 1, 2013, the Newberg City Council heard a presentation by Kuri 
Gill of the Oregon Parks and Recreation Department – Heritage Programs regarding their 
CLG program.  After hearing of the CLG program and discussion, the Council instructed city 
staff to bring to Council a proposal regarding the designation of Newberg as a CLG.  The 
recommended municipal code changes included in this resolution is a first step in complying 
with many of the criteria needed to be met in becoming a designated CLG.  City staff has been 
working with the Heritage Program in the development of the proposed recommended 
municipal code changes in this resolution.   

There are multiple requirements and benefits to becoming a CLG: 

Requirements 

 Establish a Historic Preservation Commission 

 Establish a historic preservation ordinance 

 Help update state’s historic building inventory 

 Comment on local nominations to National Register of Historic Places (NRHP) 

 Enforce state preservation laws 

Benefits 

 Access to state grant funds for historic preservation projects 

 Access to technical training opportunities 

 Access to state and federal technical assistance 

 Increased overall effectiveness to local historic preservation program 

Attachment 1 provides a more detailed description of the requirements and benefits of 
becoming a CLG.   

 
166 of 183



 
“Working Together For A Better Community-Serious About Service" 

Z:\WP5FILES\FILES.DCA\DCA-13-001 Historic Preservation Commission\PC.Res 2013-300.CC recommendation.doc 

C. PROCESS:  A development code amendment is a Type IV application and follows the 
procedures in Newberg Development Code 15.100.060.  The Planning Commission will hold 
a legislative hearing on the application.  The Commission will make a recommendation to the 
Newberg City Council.  Following the Planning Commission’s recommendation, the Newberg 
City Council will hold a legislative hearing to consider the matter.   Important dates related to 
this application are as follows: 

1. April 1 2013: The Newberg City Council directed staff to begin process to 
have Newberg become a Certified Local Government. 

2. August 26, 2013 Planning staff placed notice on Newberg’s website. 

3. August 28, 2013: Planning staff posted notice in four public places.  The Newberg 
Graphic published notice of the Planning Commission hearing. 

4. September 12, 2013: The Planning Commission will hold a legislative hearing to 
consider the application. 

D. AGENCY COMMENTS:  The application was routed to several public agencies for review 
and comment.  As of the writing of this report, the city received the following agency 
comments:   

1. Oregon Parks and Recreation Department – Heritage Programs:  Attachment 2 is an 
email response received from Kuri Gill of the Oregon Heritage Program.  Her 
comments pertain to a part of the development code that regulates the Historic 
Landmarks Subdistrict.   

The purpose of this proposal is to establish a Historic Preservation Commission.  One 
of the task of the newly formed Commission would be to review the Historic 
Landmarks Subdistrict section of the code to see if any provisions may need changing. 
Staff feels that it would be more appropriate for a future Historic Preservation 
Commission to consider Ms. Gill’s comments at that time. 

E. PUBLIC COMMENTS:  As of the writing of this report, the city has received no written 
comments on the application.  If the city receives additional written comments by the 
comment deadline, planning staff will forward them to the commissioners 

F. ANALYSIS: A Historic Preservation Commission will likely require some additional city 
resources to implement.  The Commission will not only be taking over the role of the 
Planning Commission in the review of historic landmark application, it will also likely be 
taking a proactive role in the husbandry of local historic resources.  The creation and 
implementation of a Historic Preservation Commission will strengthen the effort to preserve 
historic resources. It will be a commission specifically tasked to work toward the preservation 
of local historic resources and it will have members with strong interests and special skills 
that will be especially useful in achieving this goal.  

With the adoption of the proposed code changes, the city should only need to appoint 
members to the newly created historic preservation commission to meet all the criteria to 
become a CLG. Forming this commission may lead to the city becoming a Certified Local 

 
167 of 183



 
“Working Together For A Better Community-Serious About Service" 

Z:\WP5FILES\FILES.DCA\DCA-13-001 Historic Preservation Commission\PC.Res 2013-300.CC recommendation.doc 

Government, which will provide the city with a variety of new resources intended to assist 
with the preservation of local historic resources. 

G. PRELIMINARY STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  The preliminary staff recommendation 
is made in the absence of public hearing testimony, and may be modified subsequent to the 
close of the public hearing.  At this writing, staff recommends the following motion: 

 Move to adopt Planning Commission Resolution 2013-300, which recommends that the City 
Council adopt the requested amendments. 

 
168 of 183



 
“Working Together For A Better Community-Serious About Service" 

Z:\WP5FILES\FILES.DCA\DCA-13-001 Historic Preservation Commission\PC.Res 2013-300.CC recommendation.doc 

PLANNING COMMISSION RESOLUTION 2013-300 

 

 A RESOLUTION RECOMMENDING THAT THE CITY COUNCIL AMEND THE 

NEWBERG DEVELOPMENT CODE AND MUNICIPAL CODE REGARDING THE 

ESTABLISHMENT AND FUNCTIONS OF A HISTORIC PRESERVATION COMMISSION   

RECITALS 

1. On April 1, 2013, the Newberg City Council heard a presentation by Kuri Gill of the Oregon 
Parks and Recreation Department – Heritage Programs regarding their Certified Local 
Government (CLG) program.  After hearing of the CLG program and discussion, the Council 
instructed city staff to bring to Council a proposal to establish Newberg as a CLG.  The 
recommend municipal code changes included in this resolution would comply with a portion 
of the criteria needed to become a CLG.    

2. After proper notice, the Newberg Planning Commission held a hearing on September 12, 2013 
to consider the amendment.  The Commission considered testimony and deliberated. 

The Newberg Planning Commission resolves as follows: 

1. The Commission recommends that the City Council adopt the amendments to the Newberg 
Development Code as shown in Exhibit “A”.  Exhibit "A" is hereby adopted and by this 
reference incorporated. 

2. The findings shown in Exhibit “B” are hereby adopted.  Exhibit "B" is by this reference 
incorporated. 

Adopted by the Newberg Planning Commission this 12th day of September, 2013. 

        ATTEST: 

 
Planning Commission Chair     Planning Commission Secretary 

List of Exhibits: 
 Exhibit “A”: Development Code Text Amendments  
 Exhibit “B”:  Findings 
  

 
169 of 183



Establishment of Newberg Historic Preservation Commission 

Newberg Code Amendments 

 

Legend for proposed development code changes: 

 Red lettering = directions for code changes 

 Black lettering = existing code language 

 Black strikeout = proposed language deletion 

 Black double underline = proposed language addition 

 

Section 1: The following shall be added to Chapter 15.05.030 Definitions of the 

Newberg Code. 

“Historic preservation commission” means the historic preservation commission 

of the City of Newberg, a body of officials appointed by the mayor with the 

consent of the city council, serving the city council by overseeing historic 

preservation issues affecting the city. 

Section 2: The following shall be added as Chapter 2.15, Article VI of the Newberg 

Code. 

ArticleVI. Historic Preservation Commission 

2.15.500 Establishment. 

There is hereby established a historic preservation commission for the City of 
Newberg, Oregon. 

2.15.510 Purpose.  

The City of Newberg Historic Preservation Commission is established to identify, 
recognize, and preserve significant properties related to the community’s history, 
encourage the rehabilitation and ongoing viability of historic buildings and structures, 
strengthen public support for historic preservation efforts within the community,; foster 
civic pride, and encourage cultural heritage tourism. 

2.15.520  Membership. 
A. The commission shall consist of five members who are not officials or employees 

of the city and an ex officio nonvoting member who shall be a student from one of the 
local high schools. 

Exhibit "A" to Planning Commission 
Resolution No. 2013-300

 
170 of 183



B. Members should have a demonstrated competence, knowledge, or interest in 
historic preservation with preference given to those with professional experience in the 
fields of preservation, architecture, archaeology, community history, building trades, real 
estate, or related specialties. 

C. Three of the five members shall have their principal place of residency inside the 
city limits. One member may have their principal place of residency outside city limits 
provided it is within one mile of the urban growth boundary of the city at the time of their 
appointment and during the term that they serve on the historic preservation 
commission.  There is no residency requirement for the one remaining member or the 
ex officio student. 

2.15.530 Term of office. 
A. Members of the historic preservation commission shall be appointed by the mayor 

with the consent of the city council for a term of three years from the first calendar day 
of the year. The appointments of some members shall be for other than specified terms 
in order to establish an approximately equal expiration of terms each year. The term of 
the student member will begin June 1st of each calendar year and end May 31st of 
succeeding calendar year with reappointment not to exceed three years. Members of 
the historic preservation commission shall continue after expiration of their term until 
such time as their successors are appointed. 

B. The term of each member shall continue until such time as their successors are 
appointed.  

2.15.540 Vacancies and removal. 
A. Any vacancy in the commission shall be filled by appointment of the mayor with 

consent of the city council for the unexpired term of the predecessor in the position. 
B. A member of the commission may be removed by the city council after hearing for 

misconduct or nonperformance of duty. 
C. A member who is absent from two consecutive meetings without an excuse as 

approved by the historic preservation commission is rebuttably presumed to be in 
nonperformance of duty and the city council shall declare the position vacant unless 
finding otherwise following the hearing.  

2.15.550 Presiding members. 
At the commission’s first meeting of each calendar year, the commission shall elect 

a chair and vice chair to serve one-year terms.  

2.15.560 Staff services. 
The city recorder shall provide a secretary to the commission and such other staff 

and consultation services as may be appropriate. The secretary shall keep a record of 
commission proceedings.  

2.15.570  Meetings. 
A. A majority of the voting members of the historic preservation commission shall 

constitute a quorum. The commission shall meet at least meet at least four times a year, 
and as required to conduct business in a timely fashion.  Meetings of the commission 

Exhibit "A" to Planning Commission 
Resolution No. 2013-300

 
171 of 183



shall be open to the public and shall be subject to the Open Meetings Law. Meetings 
other than the regularly scheduled times may be announced at a prior meeting and 
thereby be made a part of the meeting records. 

B. The chair, upon the chair’s own motion, may, or at the request of two members of 
the commission, shall, by giving notice to the members of the commission, call a special 
meeting of the commission for a time not earlier than 24 hours after the notice is given. 
Notice of a special meeting shall be posted at City Hall and to the extent feasible, 
provided to interested persons and the local newspaper at least 24 hours prior to the 
meeting.  

C. Meeting minutes, applications for historic review, landmark nominations, records 
of landmark designation, staff reports, and decisions of the commission shall be created 
and maintained as public records in accordance with applicable local state laws. 

2.15.580 Powers and duties. 
A. The commission shall have the powers and duties which are now and may 

hereinafter be assigned to it by Charter, ordinances or resolutions of the city and 
general laws of the state.  

B. The commission shall identify and evaluate properties in the City of Newberg and 
maintain a Historic Resource Survey consistent with the standards of the Oregon State 
Historic Preservation Office, hereinafter referred to as “SHPO.”   

C. The commission shall make recommendations to the city council regarding 
properties to be designated to the list of designated landmarks 

D. The commission shall review and act upon applications for the alteration, 
relocation, or demolition of designated landmarks. 

E. The commission shall support the enforcement of all state laws relating to historic 
preservation.  

F. The commission shall perform any other functions that may be designated by  
resolution or motion of the city council. 
G. The commission may publish and adopt written and graphic guidelines and 

example materials to clarify the criteria in the historic landmarks section of this code and 
to assist applicants in developing complete and viable applications to designate, alter, 
rehabilitate, relocate, or demolish landmarks. The commission may make 
recommendations to the city council regarding changes to regulations of designated 
landmarks within City of Newberg Development Code using the established procedures 
for amendments. 

H. The commission may undertake to inform the citizens and visitors to the City of 
Newberg of the community's history and prehistory, promote research into its history 
and prehistory. collect and make available materials on the preservation of designated 
landmarks. provide information on state and federal preservation programs, and 
document designated landmarks prior to their alteration, demolition, or relocation and 
archive that documentation.  

I. The commission may make recommendations to the city council regarding 
expenditures for historic preservation activities and potential funding source in which to 
pay for the recommended expenditures. 

J. The commission may recommend incentives and code amendments to the city  
council and planning commission to promote historic preservation in the community. 

Exhibit "A" to Planning Commission 
Resolution No. 2013-300

 
172 of 183



K.  The commission may comment on local, state, or federal issues, laws, and 
requests relating to historic preservation. 

L.  The commission may adopt rules to conduct its business meetings. 

2.15.590 Application for membership. 
A. The city shall give public notice of any vacancy of the historic preservation 

commission and accept such application for such vacancies. 
B. The application for membership on the historic preservation commission shall 

state the principal occupation of the applicant, the principal residence of the applicant, 
and give other information and qualifications as the city may deem necessary.  

2.15.600 Conflict of interest. 
A member of the historic preservation commission shall abide by and be in 

accordance with the State Ethics Code.  

2.15.610 Training. 
The city shall offer training to historic preservation commissioners to educate them in 

their duties. It shall be the duty of any newly appointed historic preservation 
commissioner to attend a basic training session from staff within 30 days of the historic 
preservation commissioner’s appointment. It shall be the duty of any reappointed 
historic preservation commissioner to attend at least a one-hour training session from 
staff or offered by the city within 12 months from the beginning of that person’s 
appointed term.  

 
Section 3:  Chapter 2.15, Article VI of the Newberg Code, “Penalty” shall be 

renumbered as Article VII, and the current Section 2.15.490 and all cross 

references to this section shall be renumbered as Section 2.15.900. 

Section 4: The following amendments shall be made to Chapter 15.344 of the 

Newberg Development Code. 

Chapter 15.344 
HISTORIC LANDMARKS (H) SUBDISTRICT 

Sections: 
15.344.010    Purpose. 
15.344.020    Landmark designation. 
15.344.030    Alteration, new construction, demolitions. 
15.344.040    Exceptions for economic hardship. 
15.344.050    General administration. 

15.344.010 Purpose. 
The purpose of the H overlay zone is to: 
A. Safeguard the historic landmarks, buildings and sites representing significant 

elements of Newberg history; 

Exhibit "A" to Planning Commission 
Resolution No. 2013-300

 
173 of 183



B. Promote the historic, educational, cultural, economic and general welfare of the 
public through the preservation, restoration and protection of these buildings, structures, 
sites, and objects of historic interest within the city; 

C. Foster civic pride in the accomplishments of the past; 
D. Protect and enhance the city’s attractions to tourists and visitors; 
E. Carry out the provisions of the Land Conservation and Development Commission 

Goal 5. [Ord. 2451, 12-2-96. Code 2001 § 151.490.] 
 

15.344.015:  Historic Preservation Commission Review 
The historic preservation commission shall review applications for landmark 
designation, alteration, new construction, and demolition requiring Type III review as 
outlined in this chapter.  In conducting a Type III review, the commission shall have all 
powers and duties of the planning commission.  The notice, review, and appeal 
provisions of this code that apply to Type III planning commission reviews shall apply 
equally to Type III historic preservation commission review. In cases where an 
application requires both historic preservation commission and planning commission 
review, such as for a modification to a landmark for a conditional use, the two 
commissions may hold a combined hearing.  However, the two commissions shall 
make separate decisions. 
 
15.344.020 Landmark designation. 

A. Institution of Proceedings. The owner(s) of record may initiate the proceedings for 
designation of a historic landmark. Initiation of an application by a property owner is 
voluntary and landmark designation may not occur without an owner’s consent. 
Applications for designation shall be made available by the director. No fee shall be 
charged for the application. 

B. Application Information. The following information shall be provided for 
designation or modification of a historic landmark: 

1. Site plan indicating the existing and/or proposed building or buildings. 
2. Architectural elevations or pictures of the structure and, if appropriate, 

elevations of any proposed additions or revisions. 
3. Information regarding the age and historic character of the landmark. Where 

available, information indicating its association with historic events, former residents or 
users of the landmark, and the period or style of the landmark. 

C. Designation Procedure Type III. Designation of a (H) historic landmarks 
subdistrict will be treated as a zoning map amendment and shall be processed under 
the Type III procedure. The designation of a site-specific historic landmark shall be 
processed under a Type III procedure and reviewed by the planning commissionhistoric 
preservation commission. Sites or buildings identified as historic landmarks shall be 
subject to this chapter. 

D. Designation Criteria. If the building, structure, site, or object is currently listed in 
the National Register of Historic Places of the United States of America, the property or 
properties shall be designated as a local landmark. In addition, landmarks shall include 
those buildings, structures, sites, or objects which have been identified as landmarks in 
the historic resources element of the comprehensive plan. The following criteria will be 

Exhibit "A" to Planning Commission 
Resolution No. 2013-300

 
174 of 183



used by the planning commissionhistoric preservation commission and city council in 
considering other properties: 

1. The evaluation criteria used in the 1990 historic resources evaluation shall be 
considered. Any or all of the criteria may be satisfied for designation: 

a. The landmark is associated with natural history, historic people, or with 
important events in national, state or local history. The age of a specific building shall be 
considered but shall not be deemed sufficient in itself to warrant designation as a 
significant historic resource. 

b. The landmark embodies distinguishing characteristics of architectural 
specimens inherently valuable for a study of a period, style, or method of construction. 

c. The landmark is a notable work of a master builder, designer or architect, 
or the structure represents a rarity of type, style, or design in the community. 

d. The landmark retains a high degree of original design, crafting, materials, 
and original site features. 

e. The landmark contributes to the immediate environment and the character 
of the neighborhood or city. 

2. The proposed landmark will serve the purpose of this section as stated in NMC 
15.344.010. 

3. The economic, social, environmental, and energy consequences of conflicting 
uses shall be considered. 

E. Designation Removal. Request for removal of a historic landmark designation 
may be made by the property owner and shall follow the same procedures as required 
for inclusion by this code. The planning commissionhistoric preservation commission is 
not obligated to remove a historic landmark designation if the landmark still meets the 
criteria contained in subsection (D) of this section. If a historic landmark designation is 
removed from the register, the planning commissionhistoric preservation commission or 
city council is authorized to require that all city fees that were waived during the time 
period that the landmark was designated be repaid to the city prior to the landmark 
designation being removed. [Ord. 2451, 12-2-96. Code 2001 § 151.491.] 

15.344.030 Alteration, new construction, demolitions. 
A. Exterior Alterations. 

1. Application Process. Application for permit approval shall be made to the 
director. The application shall include site plans, floor plans, elevations, materials, 
textures, and other information deemed necessary by the director to determine the 
appropriateness of the alterations of the designated landmark. 

2. Director Review of Minor Alterations Type I. 
a. The director shall approve minor alteration requests through the Type I 

procedure if there is no significant change in appearance, or in original material 
integrity, from the existing structure or site. The director’s approval may include 
conditions to ensure compatibility. Minor alterations meeting the following standards 
shall be approved and shall be documented by written findings: 

i. The proposed alteration duplicates or restores the affected exterior 
features and materials as determined from historic photographs, original building plans, 
or other evidence of original features or materials; 

Exhibit "A" to Planning Commission 
Resolution No. 2013-300

 
175 of 183



ii. The proposed alteration results in new siding, roofing, or foundation 
skirting which matches materials used on the structure or is typical in terms of material 
and texture for the style of the landmark; 

iii. The proposed alteration results in the replacement of gutters and 
downspouts, or the addition of gutters and downspouts, using materials that match or 
appear to match those typically used on similar-style buildings; 

iv. The proposed alteration results in a new foundation that does not raise 
or lower the building elevation, provided the foundation materials and/or craftsmanship 
do not contribute to the historical and architectural significance of the landmark; 

v. The proposed alteration results in the application of storm windows 
made with wood, bronze or flat-finished anodized aluminum, or baked enamel frames 
which complement or match the color detail and proportions of the building; 

vi. The proposed alteration results in replacement of existing sashes with 
new sashes, when using material which is consistent with the original historic material 
and appearance; 

vii. The proposed alteration results in modifications to the porch which 
imitate or restore railings, posts, steps, and skirting which were typical for the style of 
the landmark; 

viii. The proposed alteration results in construction of a wood fence in the 
front yard which was typical for the style of the landmark. Solid wood fences shall be 
permitted along side and rear property boundaries; 

ix. The proposed alteration results in the installation of permanent air 
conditioning or heating facilities, including solar panels, which do not result in the 
destruction or removal of original architectural features. If possible, facilities should be 
located in such a manner that they are not readily visible from the public right-of-way, 
excluding alleys; 

x. The proposed alteration results in new awnings or signage which were 
typical for the style of the landmark. 

b. The planning commissionhistoric preservation commission may develop 
additional standards to guide the director in determining what constitutes a significant 
change. 

3. Planning CommissionHistoric Preservation Commission Review Criteria and 
Guidelines Type III. Excluding routine maintenance and minor alterations subject to 
director review, requests to alter a designated landmark in such a manner as to affect 
its exterior appearance shall be reviewed for permit approval by the planning 
commissionhistoric preservation commission using the Type III procedure. The planning 
commissionhistoric preservation commission, in considering applications for permit 
approval for any alteration, shall base their decision on substantial compliance with the 
following criteria and guidelines: 

a. The historic character of a property shall be retained and preserved. The 
removal of historic materials or alteration of features and spaces that characterize a 
property shall be avoided. Specific design elements which must be addressed include: 

i. Average Setback. When a new structure is being constructed on an infill 
lot, the front yard setback shall be the same as the buildings on either side. When the 
front setbacks of the adjacent buildings are different, the front setback of the new 
structure shall be an average of the two. 

Exhibit "A" to Planning Commission 
Resolution No. 2013-300

 
176 of 183



ii. Architectural Elements. The design shall incorporate architectural 
elements of the city’s historic styles, including Queen Anne, colonial revival, Dutch 
colonial revival, and bungalow styles. Ideally, the architectural elements should reflect 
and/or be compatible with the style of other nearby historic structures. Typical design 
elements which should be considered include, but are not limited to, “crippled hip” roofs, 
Palladian-style windows, roof eave brackets, roof dormers, and decorative trim boards. 

iii. Building Orientation. The main entrance of the new structure shall be 
oriented to the street. Construction of a porch is encouraged but not required. Such a 
porch shall be at least six feet in depth. 

iv. Vehicle Parking/Storage. Garages and carports shall be set back from 
the front facade of the primary structure and shall relate to the primary structure in terms 
of design and building materials. 

v. Fences. Fences shall be built of materials which are compatible with the 
design and materials used in the primary structure. 

b. Each property shall be recognized as a physical record of its time, place, 
and use. Changes that create a false sense of historical development, such as adding 
conjectural features or architectural elements from other buildings, shall not be 
undertaken. 

c. Most properties change over time; those changes that have acquired 
historic significance in their own right shall be retained and preserved. 

d. Distinctive features, finishes, and construction techniques or examples of 
craftsmanship that characterize a historic property shall be preserved to the extent 
possible. 

e. Deteriorated historic features shall be repaired rather than replaced. Where 
the severity of deterioration requires replacement of a distinctive feature, the new 
feature shall reasonably match the old in design, color, texture, and other visual 
qualities and, where possible, materials. Replacement of missing features shall be 
substantiated by documentary, physical, or pictorial evidence. 

f. Chemical or physical treatments, such as sandblasting, that cause 
extensive damage to historic materials shall not be used. The surface cleaning of 
structures, if appropriate, shall be undertaken using the gentlest means possible. 

g. Significant archeological resources affected by a project shall be protected 
and preserved. If such resources must be disturbed, mitigation measures shall be 
undertaken. 

h. New additions, exterior alterations, or related new construction shall not 
destroy the historic character of the property. The new work shall be differentiated from 
the old and shall be compatible with the massing, size, scale, and architectural features 
to protect the historic integrity of the property and its environment. 

i. New additions and adjacent or related new construction shall be undertaken 
in such a manner that if removed in the future, the essential form and integrity of the 
historic property and its environment would be unimpaired. 

B. New Construction Type III Review Criteria. 
1. Review Required. If an application is made to build a new building on a 

landmark site, the planning commissionhistoric preservation commission shall review 
the request through the Type III procedure to assure the plans are compatible with any 

Exhibit "A" to Planning Commission 
Resolution No. 2013-300

 
177 of 183



existing landmark structures on the site. No new structure or major public improvement 
shall be constructed without review pursuant to the following criteria. 

2. Review Criteria. Designs shall be compatible with any existing landmark 
structures on the site in terms of size, scale, material and character. Contemporary 
designs shall not be discouraged when they do not destroy significant historical, 
architectural, or cultural material. Review criteria shall include consideration of the 
guidelines listed in subsection (A)(3) of this section. 

C. Demolition and Moving Review. 
1. Building Director Review Type I. The building director shall issue a permit for 

moving or demolition if any of the following conditions exist: 
a. The building is not a designated landmark. If the landmark is pending 

review under NMC 15.344.020, no permit shall be issued; and/or 
b. The landmark has been damaged beyond reasonable repair through fire, 

flood, wind or other acts of God, vandalism, or neglect, and poses an immediate threat 
to public safety. For any demolition or moving which does not comply with the above 
criteria, it shall be referred to the planning commissionhistoric preservation commission 
under the Type III procedure. 

2. Planning CommissionHistoric Preservation Commission Review Process Type 
III. The process and public notice for review of a demolition permit shall be conducted 
under the Type III procedure. Unless extended by mutual consent of the applicant and 
the planning commissionhistoric preservation commission, the planning 
commissionhistoric preservation commission shall complete any review within 45 days 
of the date the city received a complete application, with the intent that the planning 
commissionhistoric preservation commission and applicant seek alternatives such as 
sale, salvage, relocation or donation to historic or interested groups, not simply to delay 
the demolition or moving. 

3. Review Criteria. In reviewing an application for a demolition permit or moving 
permit, the commission shall consider the purpose of this chapter as stated in NMC 
15.344.010 and the criteria used in the original designation of the landmark as stated in 
NMC 15.344.020(D). 

D. City Council Review of Dangerous Structures. The city council may order the 
removal or demolition of any structure determined to be dangerous to life, health, or 
property. 

E. Documentation. In the event of the demolition or moving of a landmark, building, 
structure, site or object, the history of such landmark shall be documented and kept on 
file with the city. [Ord. 2505, 2-1-99; Ord. 2451, 12-2-96. Code 2001 § 151.492.] 

15.344.040 Exceptions for economic hardship. 
A. When the applicant has demonstrated an economic hardship as a result of the 

provisions of this code, the commission or city council may relax the requirements of the 
ordinance, provided the relaxation is consistent with the purpose of this chapter as 
stated in NMC 15.344.010. Any relaxation of requirements shall be the minimum 
necessary to alleviate the economic hardship. In determining whether an exception due 
to economic hardship is justified, the commission or city council shall consider the 
following factors: 

1. Estimated cost of rehabilitation; 

Exhibit "A" to Planning Commission 
Resolution No. 2013-300

 
178 of 183



2. Estimated market value of property in current condition and after proposed 
construction; 

3. Potential income from property if income-producing; 
4. Any other economic information deemed relevant to the decision; and 
5. Economic, social, environmental, and energy consequences of the exception. 

B. The applicant shall provide adequate documentation to justify an economic 
hardship. The information shall be provided on a form available from the director. [Ord. 
2451, 12-2-96. Code 2001 § 151.493.] 

15.344.050 General administration. 
A. Signs. One sign no larger than 200 square inches is permitted in addition to other 

permitted signs. 
B. Maintenance. Nothing in this code shall be construed to prevent the ordinary 

maintenance or repair of any exterior architectural features which does not involve a 
change in design, material or the outward appearance of such feature, nor to prevent 
the construction, reconstruction, alteration or demolition of such feature which the city’s 
building director shall certify is required by the city’s building and development codes. 
Maintenance and repair actions include, but are not limited to: 

1. Repair of siding, roofing, foundations, and gutters or downspouts when 
required due to deterioration, with materials that match the original materials or are in 
character with materials typically used on similar-style buildings; 

2. Painting and related preparation; 
3. Water quality protection actions; 
4. Installation of air conditioners, provided the units are removable and no 

architectural alterations are necessary; 
5. Site maintenance such as pruning, landscaping maintenance, brush clearing 

and removal of debris; 
6. Temporary removals of roofs or other access obstructions for purposes of repair or 

maintenance of interior components of industrial or power generation facilities. [Ord. 

2521, 11-15-99; Ord. 2499, 11-2-98; Ord. 2451, 12-2-96. Code 2001 § 151.494.] 

Exhibit "A" to Planning Commission 
Resolution No. 2013-300

 
179 of 183



 
“Working Together For A Better Community-Serious About Service" 

Z:\WP5FILES\FILES.DCA\DCA-13-001 Historic Preservation Commission\PC.Res 2013-300.CC recommendation.doc 

Exhibit “B” to Planning Commission Resolution 2013-300 
Findings –File DCA-13-001 

Historic Preservation Commission 

I. Statewide Planning Goal 5 

To protect natural resources and conserve scenic and historic areas and open spaces. 

Local governments shall adopt programs that will protect natural resources and 
conserve scenic, historic, and open space resources for present and future 
generations. These resources promote a healthy environment and natural landscape 
that contributes to Oregon's livability. 

II. Newberg Comprehensive Goal G. OPEN SPACE, SCENIC, NATURAL, HISTORIC 
AND RECREATIONAL RESOURCES 

1. To ensure that adequate land shall be retained in permanent open space use and that 
natural, scenic and historic resources are protected. 
 
Policy 3 - Historic Resources Policies 

a. The continued preservation of Newberg's designated historic sites and structures 
shall be encouraged. 

b. Newberg's Historic Inventory shall be updated as needed to reflect new information. 

c. The City will encourage the establishment of a museum for the housing of historic 
artifacts, the sponsorship of touring exhibits, seminars and oral history, archival research, 
etc. 

d. The City will encourage the re-use of historic structures such as the establishment of 
bed and breakfast operations, specialty shops, restaurants and professional offices. 

e. The City will encourage identification and/or preservation of significant historic 
landmarks, archaeological or architectural sites which meet criteria established by the City. 

Finding:  The creation and implementation of a Historic Preservation Commission will strengthen 
the effort to achieve these goals and policies. It will be a commission specifically tasked to 
work towards the preservation of local historic resource and it will have members with 
strong interests and special skills that will be especially useful in achieving these goals and 
policies.  In addition, forming this commission may lead to the city becoming a Certified 
Local Government, which will provide the city with a variety of new resources intended to 
assist with the preservation of local historic resources.   

II. Conclusion:  The proposed development code amendments meet the applicable requirements 
of state law, state rules, the Statewide Planning Goals, and the Newberg Comprehensive 
Plan, and should be approved.  

 
180 of 183



 

 Kuri Gill, CLG Coordinator Phone: (503) 986-0685 Email: Kuri.Gill@state.or.us 

Certified Local Government Certification 
 
Requirements 
The basic certification requirements for local governments are as follows: 
• Establish a historic preservation commission and appoint interested and 

qualified residents to serve.  To the extent they are available, at 
least some of the commission members should meet "professional" 
qualifications in the disciplines of history, architecture, architectural 
history, archaeology, or related fields.  

• Pass a preservation ordinance that outlines how the local government will 
address historic preservation issues.  

• Agree to participate in updating and expanding the state's historic 
building inventory program. SHPO takes the lead in this effort by 
maintaining the master database and the files for the statewide inventory, 
and by providing grants to survey additional properties.   

• Agree to review and comment on any National Register of Historic 
Places nominations of properties within the local government 
boundaries.  Nominations are usually submitted by the property owners 
themselves or other members of the public.  SHPO administers the 
National Register program in Oregon.  

• Affirm that it will fulfill its obligation to enforce existing state 
preservation laws.  

  
  
Benefits 
• Grants:  CLGs may apply for annual grants from SHPO.  The grants, which require a 50/50 

match, have typically been in the $5,000--$20,000 range in recent years.  Grants can be used for a 
broad range of preservation activities, though some of the most common grant-funded projects include 
the following:  

o Surveys of historic properties and accompanying context studies  
o National Register nominations of either individual buildings or historic districts  
o Public eduction activities: plaques, walking tour booklets, websites, etc.  
o Preservation planning: updating ordinances, preparing design guidelines, administering 

local preservation programs, etc.  
o Architectural and engineering studies and plans for rehabilitating historic properties  
o "Brick-and-mortar" rehabilitation work on National Register buildings  

• Training: workshops and conferences for staff and commission members 
• SHPO and National Park Service assistance:  CLGs enjoy a partnership relationship with the state 

and federal agencies that have the primary responsibility for promoting historic preservation in the 
U.S.  As such, CLGs are able to tap into the expertise and resources of these agencies in order to help 
address their local preservation issues. Networking:  Through CLG workshops, conferences, listservs, 
and websites, CLGs are able to participate in the discussion of preservation issues with other local 
governments throughout the state and country.  

• Increased Effectiveness:  By participating in the CLG program, local governments become more 
skilled and effective at promoting the economic, social, and educational benefits of historic 
preservation in their community.  They are also able to avoid much of the controversy that comes 
from mishandled local historic preservation issues.  

ATTACHMENT 1

 
181 of 183



ATTACHMENT 2

 
182 of 183



 
183 of 183


	2013-0912 agenda.pdf
	Planning Commission Minutes 2013-0711
	Planning Commission Minutes 2013-0808
	OUTLINE FOR QUASI-JUDICIAL PUBLIC HEARING 2012 plus ORS197
	Terra Estates Packet Combined_2013-0904
	PC Memo_2013-0904.pdf
	PC Order 2013-13
	Terra Estates_Findings_Conditions_2013-0730
	Exhibit “A” 
	to Planning Commission Order 2013-13
	Findings –File SUB2-12-003 – Terra Estates Subdivision
	Exhibit “B” 
	to Planning Commission Order 2012-02
	Conditions of Approval – File SUB2-12-003 – Terra Estates Subdivision

	Attachment 2.Supplemental through 8-15_Complete
	Terra Revised Phasing 8-15-13.pdf
	Terra Additional Street Sections
	Att.1.School District follow-up comments_2013-0814
	Att.2.TSC Traffic Calming Plan 2013
	Att.3.Terra Noticing
	Petunia Dr notice sign email + picture.pdf
	Slide Number 1


	Att.4.Darnell Wright Park info
	google.com
	Newberg Area Parks - Google Maps


	Letter comments from Nina Boe 080813
	Letter from Blythe Darula 080813
	Letter from John and Jane Greller 080813
	Letter from neighbors 080813
	Newberg Graphic article_2013-0808
	Newberg Graphic article_2013-0814
	Letter from Jay & Bridget Martin 081413
	Letter from Greller_2013-0815
	Letter from Mark & Blythe Darula_2013-0815
	Gary Bliss comments_2013-0815
	Density response

	Attachment 3.Supplemental 8-16 to 8-22_Complete
	Attachment 4.Supplemental 8-23 to 8-29_Complete
	Attachment 5.Greller Density Response

	OUTLINE FOR LEGISLATIVE PUBLIC HEARING 2012
	Bypass CPTA Packet Combined_2013-0904
	PC staff report_2013-0904.pdf
	Planning Commission Staff Report 
	Transportation System Plan Amendment for Bypass Phase 1

	PC Resolution 2013-301_draft
	Exhibit A. Text Amendment + Revised Figure 6-1
	Exhibit “A”: TSP Text Amendment
	to PC Resolution 2013-301

	Exhibit B. Figure 2
	Exhibit C. Figure 1
	Findings

	PC.Res 2013-300.Historic Preservation Commission
	Shepherd letter re construction dust - Meridian

	FCdVdaaVFMbzRZSFFDZyZwdz0yAA==: 
	textarea1: 



